Public Document Pack

/——\
e\

Wells Borough

AGENDA

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Wednesday 1 December 2021 at 11.00 am
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN1 1RS

Members: Councillor Backhouse (Chairman), Councillors Atwood and Funnell

Quorum: 3 Members

1 Chairman'’s Introduction (Pages 3 - 4)
Announcement on procedural matters.

2 Apologies for Absence (Pages 5 - 6)
Apologies for absence as reported.

3 Declarations of Interest: (Pages 7 - 8)
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda. For any advice
on declarations of interest, please contact the Monitoring Officer.

4 21/02689/REVIEW - Determination of an application for a review of the premises
licence for Colebrook Park, Colebrook Lakes, Land east of Kingstanding Way, Royal
Tunbridge Wells, TN2 3UP (Pages 9 - 234)

Democratic Services Team Town Hall
ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS
Kent TN1 1RS
Tel: (01892) 554413

Page 1



Attending Meetings

Meetings are held in the town hall and are webcast live online.

Any member of the public may attend to watch/listen in person or online live via our website on
the relevant committee’s meeting page. A recording of the meeting will also be available shortly
after the end of the meeting.

All meetings and agenda are open to the public except where confidential information is being
discussed. The agenda of the meeting will identify whether any meeting or part of the meeting is
not open to the public and explain why.

Speaking at Meetings

Members of the public are encouraged to participate and may speak to the Council directly on
any item on the agenda for up to 3 minutes. Members of the public (and any members of the
Council who are not members of the committee) will need to register with Democratic Services
in advance. Please see the agenda item titled Notification of Persons Registered to Speak
for more details.

Coming to the Town Hall

All visitors attending a public meeting at the Town Hall should report to Reception via the side
entrance in Monson Way no earlier than 15 minutes before the start of the meeting.

Seating will be allocated on a first-come-first-serve basis. The Council may alter the number
and location of available seats if necessary on safety or public health grounds.

The public proceedings of this meeting will be recorded and made available for playback on the
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council website. Any other third party may also record or film
meetings, unless exempt or confidential information is being considered, but are requested as a
courtesy to others to give notice of this to the Clerk before the meeting. The Council is not liable
for any third party recordings.

Further details are available on the website www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/meetings or from
Democratic Services

If you require this information in another format
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email
committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Page 2


http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/meetings
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 1

Wells Borough

Chairman’s Introduction

For Licencing Sub Committee hearing on Wednesday 1 December 2021

Procedural Iltem

Announcement on procedural matters.

Page Page 3 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
lofl Chairman’s Introduction



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

Wells Borough

Apologies for Absence

For Licencing Sub Committee hearing on Wednesday 1 December 2021

Procedural Iltem

To receive any apologies for absence.

Page Page 5

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
lofl Apologies for Absence



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

Wells Borough

Declarations of Interest

For Licencing Sub Committee hearing on Wednesday 1 December 2021

Procedural Iltem

To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda in accordance
with the Members’ Code of Conduct. For any advice on declarations of interest, please
contact the Monitoring Office before the meeting.

Page Page 7 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
lofl Declarations of Interest



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Tunbridge
Wells Borough

Determination of an application for a
review of the premises licence for
Colebrook Park, Colebrook Lakes, Land
east of Kingstanding Way, Royal
Tunbridge Wells, TN2 3UP

For Licensing Sub Committee on 1t December 2021

Summary

Lead Member: Councillor Bob Backhouse

Lead Director: Paul Taylor, Director of Change and Communities

Head of Service: Gary Stevenson, Head of Housing, Health and Environment
Report Author: Trevor Horner, Licensing Officer

Classification: Public document (non-exempt)

Wards Affected: Sherwood

Approval Timetable Date
Management Board N/A

Portfolio Holder N/A
Licensing Sub Committee 15t December
Cabinet N/A

Recommendations

Officer / Committee recommendations as supported by the Portfolio Holder:

1. That Members determine the review application and take such steps as the Sub-
Committee consider necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, giving
appropriate weight to:

e The merits of the review application.
e The representations and supporting information presented by all parties.

Page Page 9 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
10of10 Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park



Agenda Item 4

e The Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing Act
2003.

e The Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy.

1. Purpose of report and executive summary

1.1 This report sets out details of an application for a review of a premises licence, made
under the provisions of Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2 In accordance with the provisions of Section 52(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 the
licensing authority must hold a hearing to determine an application for a review of a
premises licence.

2. Introduction and background

2.1 On 13 October 2021 an application was received from Mr Duncan Haynes,
Environmental Protection, a responsible authority, for a review of the premises licence
for Colebrook Park, Colebrook Lakes, land East of Kingstanding Way, Royal
Tunbridge Wells, TN2 3UP. A copy of the application form is attached at Appendix A.
The application was accompanied by supporting documents attached at Appendix B
(complaints) and C (maps and photos).

2.2  In accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and
club premises certificates) Regulations 2005, a public notice was displayed at the
premises and surrounding area for a period of 28 consecutive days with the closing
date for representations being 9 November 2021. A notice was also placed on the
local authority website and displayed on the Council building.

2.3 During the 28 day public consultation period responsible authorities or other persons
may make representations in connection with one or more of the licensing objectives,
which are:

Prevention of crime and disorder
Prevention of public nuisance
Public safety

Protection of children from harm

2.4  Providing that the grounds for the representation are relevant to the promotion of one
or more of the licensing objectives and, in the case of interested parties, are not
vexatious, frivolous or repetitive, a hearing must be held to review the licence.

2.5 The premises known as Colebrook Park has the benefit of a premises licence under
the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003, which authorises the carrying out of
licensable activities as per the premises licence attached at Appendix D.

2.6  The premises licence allows for the flowing category of events to take place:

Page Page 10 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
2 of 10 Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park



Agenda Item 4

Category 1 event:

A Category One event is an event taking place on a Friday, Saturday and/or Sunday
where:

e Live music is provided indoors and outdoors until 23:00, and indoors only until
03:00 on the Friday and Saturday, and indoors only until 24:00 on the Sunday;
or

e Recorded music is provided indoors and outdoors until 23:00 and indoors only
until 03:00 on the Friday and Saturday, and indoors only until 24:00 on the
Sunday; or

e The capacity of the event (on any given day) is more than 1500, but less than
4999 not including staff and contractors

Category 2 event:

A Category Two event is an event taking place Friday, Saturday and/or Sunday
where:

e Live music is provided indoors and outdoors and ceases at 23:00 on the above-
mentioned days; or

e Recorded music is provided indoors and outdoors and ceases at 23:00
outdoors on the above-mentioned days and indoors at 01.00 ; or

e The capacity of the event (on any given day) is more than 1500, but less than
4999 not including staff and contractors.

Category 3 event:

A Category Three event is any event taking place on any day or consecutive days
where:

e The capacity of the event (on any given day) is less than 1500 not including
staff and contractors.

e Live music shall not be provided outdoors after 23:00
o Recorded music shall not be provided outdoors after 23:00

e There are no restrictions on the number of category 3 events

Page Page 11 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
3 0of 10 Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

3.

Agenda Item 4

The applicant has called for a review of the premises licence as the operation of
the site for Category 3 (small) events that are held under the current licence
have caused an ongoing and unacceptable public nuisance generated by noise
from music to residential premises over a wide area.

The grounds for the review are based on the Licensing Objective — Prevention of
Public Nuisance

During the 28-day consultation period the local authority received 35 relevant
representations supporting the review application, attached at Appendix E and 6
relevant representations in support of the premises licence holder, Mr Nick Love,
attached at Appendix F.

No other relevant representations were received from responsible authorities or other
persons within the 28 day consultation period prescribed by the Act.

On 8 November 2021 the premises licence holder, Mr Nick Love submitted a response
to the review application, attached at Appendix G. Mr Love also submitted a
Colebrook Lakes Noise Management report, attached at Appendix H.

The applicant requests that the Licensing Sub Committee consider the imposition on
Category 3 events of a combination of the suggested measures as set out in their
application at Appendix A, to successfully resolve the noise issues.

The Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Home Office under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003 advises that it is imperative that the Licensing Authority
ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are limited to
considerations of the promotion of the licensing objectives and nothing outside of
those parameters.

The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate
to the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to
achieve.

Moreover, decisions made in accordance with the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
must not replicate or seek to enforce the statutory provisions of other legislation.

Available options

3.1 Modify the conditions of the premises licence.

3.2Exclude a licensable activity from the premises licence.

3.3Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

3.4 Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months.

3.5Revoke the premises licence.

3.6 Reject the application for review.

Page

Page 12 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

4 of 10 Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park



Agenda Item 4

3.7Reject the whole or part of the application.

4. Preferred Option and Reason

4.1 That Members determine the application, and take such steps as the Sub-Committee
consider necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, giving appropriate
weight to:

e The merits of the application.

e The representations and supporting information presented by all parties.

e The Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing Act
2003.

e The Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy.

5. Consultation on Options

5.1 Other than the statutory consultation described in Part 2 of the report above, no other
consultation is required by the Licensing Act 2003.

6. Implementation

6.1 The Chairman will announce the Sub-Committee’s decision prior to the conclusion of the
hearing.

6.2 The applicant, any person who made relevant representations and the chief officer of
police will subsequently receive written confirmation of the decision.

6.3 A copy of the Decision Notice will be placed on the Council’s website.

6.4 1n accordance with the provisions of Section 181 and Schedule 5, Licensing Act 2003 the
applicant and any person who made a relevant representation has a right to appeal the
decision made by the Licensing Authority. The appeal must be made to the Magistrates’
Court within a period of twenty-one days from the date on which the appellant receives
notification of the decision from the licensing authority.

7. Appendices and Background Documents

Appendices:
e Appendix A: Review Application form

e Appendix B: Email complaints

Page Page 13 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
5 of 10 Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park



Agenda Item 4

e Appendix C: Maps and Photos

e Appendix D: Premises Licence

e Appendix E: Representations supporting the review
e Appendix F: Representations supporting Mr Love

e Appendix G: Mr Love’s response to review

e Appendix H: Colebrook Lakes Noise Management report

Background Papers:
e Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

https://www.qgov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-
quidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

e TWBC Statement of Licensing Policy

https://tunbridgewells.gov.uk/ data/assets/pdf file/0006/394593/Ratified-Statement-
of-Licensing-Policy-V1-2021-2026.pdf

e LGA Licensing Act 2003 — Councillors handbook (England and Wales)

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/licensing-act-2003-councillors-handbook-
england-and-wales

8. Cross Cutting Issues

A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act)

Licensing Act 2003

The Licensing Act 2003 at section 4(1) requires the Licensing Authority to carry out its
functions with a view to promoting the Licensing Objectives which Section 4(2) sets out as:-

a) The prevention of crime and disorder
b) Public safety
C) The prevention of public nuisance

d) The protection of children from harm

Page Page 14 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
6 of 10 Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://tunbridgewells.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0006/394593/Ratified-Statement-of-Licensing-Policy-V1-2021-2026.pdf
https://tunbridgewells.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0006/394593/Ratified-Statement-of-Licensing-Policy-V1-2021-2026.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/licensing-act-2003-councillors-handbook-england-and-wales
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/licensing-act-2003-councillors-handbook-england-and-wales

Agenda Item 4

The Sub-committee is permitted under Section 18 (3) of the Licensing Act 2003, having had
regard to relevant representations, to take such steps, as it considers necessary, for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

Section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 states ‘where relevant representations are made, the
authority must:-

@) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person
who has made such representations agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and

(b) having regard to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned in subsection
(4) (if any) as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Section 4(3) of the Licensing Act also requires the Licensing Authority to have regard to the
published statement of the Licensing Policy and any guidance issued by the Secretary of
State under section 182

Each application that comes before the Sub-Committee must be treated on its own merits,
and the Sub-Committee must take its decision based upon:

a) The merits of the application

b) The promotion of the four licensing objectives

C) The policy of the Licensing Authority

d) The Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

e) All valid representations made

Whilst the applicant, responsible authorities or persons making representations all have a
right of appeal to the Magistrates Court dependant on the decision of the Sub Committee, the
decision made takes immediate effect.

Human Rights Act

Article 1 of the First Protocol is concerned with the protection of property and provides that
every person is entitled to peaceful enjoyment of his possessions. The term ‘possessions’ is
given a broad definition and includes a licence.

Article 8 is concerned with the right to respect for private and family life. It states that
Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his
correspondence. There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this

Page Page 15 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
7 of 10 Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park



Agenda Item 4

right except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic society in
the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the country, for
the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the protection
of the rights and freedoms of others. The Council has had the proper regard for Article 8.

Article 6 relates to the right to a fair hearing. The applicant has seen this report prior to this
hearing and is aware of the reason why the Sub-Committee is considering this application.
[Report author to insert comment on legal issues including what is the legal authority for this
decision or report, what if any are the legal implications? Seek legal advice when completing.
The relevant legal officer must sign off the report before it is submitted to Democratic
Services.]

Robin Harris, Contentious Team leader, 15.11.2021

B. Finance and Other Resources

No implications

Trevor Horner, report author, 15.11.2021

C. Staffing

No implications

Trevor Horner, report author, 15.11.2021

D. Risk Management

No implications

Trevor Horner, report author, 15.11.2021

E. Environment and Sustainability

No implications

Trevor Horner, report author, 15.11.2021

F. Community Safety

Premises’ licence reviews provide for appropriate formal oversight when licensing conditions
may have been breached.

Section 17, Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Page Page 16 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
8 of 10 Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park



Agenda Item 4

17(1) Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the
duty of each authority to which this section applies to exercise its various
functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime
and disorder in its area.

Terry Hughes, Community Safety manager, 15.11.2021

G. Equalities

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to the
substance of the Equality Act. There is no apparent equality impact on end users

No implications

Trevor Horner, report author, 15.11.2021

H. Data Protection

Article 5, General Data Protection Regulation 2016

1. Personal data shall be:

(a) processed lawfully, fairly and in a transparent manner in relation to the
data subject;

(b) collected for specific, explicit and legitimate purposes and not further
processed in a manner that is incompatible with those purposes;

(c) adequate, relevant and limited to what is necessary in relation to the
purposes for which they are processed;

(d) accurate and, where necessary, kept up to date;

(e) kept in a form which permits identification of data subjects for no longer
than is necessary for the purposes for which the personal data are
processed;

(f) processed in a manner that ensures appropriate security of the personal
data, including protection against unauthorised or unlawful processing and
against accidental loss, destruction or damage, using appropriate technical
or organisational measures.

No implications.

Trevor Horner, report author, 15.11.2021

Page Page 17 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
9 of 10 Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park



|. Health and Safety

No implications

Trevor Horner, report author, 15.11.2021

J. Health and Wellbeing

Agenda ltem 4

No implications - Trevor Horner, report author, 15.11.2021

Page Page 18 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

10 of 10

Licensing Sub Committee hearing — Colebrook Park



pendix A

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council, Town Hall, Crescent Road, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN1 1RE)

Application for the review of a premises licence or club
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In ail cases ensure that -
your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You
may wish to keep a copy of the compieted form for your records.

‘Duncan Haynes

(insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 under section 87 of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below. . -

Part 1 - Prerhise_s or club premises details

Colebrook Park

Colebrooke Lakes

Land East Of Kingstanding .
Way ‘
Royal Tunbridge Wells

Kent TN2 3UP

Mr Robert Sheridan Bowie
-|Honnington Farm
‘Vauxhall Lane
Southborough

Royal Tunbridge Wells
'_I:ent- _
N4 0XD

Mr lain Nicholas Love
17 Frankiin Road
Brighton

BN2 3AD

Number of premlses Ilcence or club premises certlflcate (:f known)

19/04133/LAP -
RE

Page 19 -



Appendix A

Part 2 - Applicant Details

I am Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible authority ]
{vlease read guidance note 1, and complete {A) or (B) befow)

2) aresponsible authority (please complete (C) below) ' . [ |

3) amember of the club to which this application relates (please compiete (A) below) ]

Page 20



\ | Appendix A
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) : ' : !

Mr[] Mrs[] Miss[ ] Ms[_] Other title (for example, Rev.)

Ij Please tick v"yes

(C)} DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

.Duncan Haynes Environmental Protection Team Teader

{Town HaH
{Tunbridge Well
‘Kent - '

Tol 01622 602766




| Appendix A
This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxesv”
1} the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety |

3) the prevention of public nuisance

omio -

4) the protection of children from harm

:_ease state the' round(s) for rewew:(piease read guid:

The operation of the 's1te for the Category 3 (small) events that are held under the current license have caused an ongoing and,
unacceptable public nuisance generated by noise from music- to residential premises over a wide area. The Environmental
Protection Team has worked with the licensee to resolve these matters in the run up to and during the course of the 4 events held

this year but the problems have not been resolved.

The review is therefore focused specifically on the category 3 (small) events which have caused the problems and seeks to add
controls to them. This is Jus‘uﬁed and proportionate in seeking to add controls only to the elements of the license that that have)

caused the public nuisance:

The Environmental Protection Team requests that the review panel consider the imposition on category 3 events of a combination)
of the suggested measures below to successfully resolve the noise issues, These measures may be used in isolation or combined|

' to be most effective.

» Remove the music outside/inside distinction, this is erroneous. There is no effective inside on they
'~ site, the most important thing is to control noise levels.
» Reduce capacity to 500 from 1500. This would mean music could be played at a Iower level withouf]

complaint.
¢ Reduce finishing time to 23 00 hours or 0:00. This would ensure if residents were disturbed it would
be for a limited time. '
» Limit Cat 3 events to 1 night only on a Fnday or Saturday. This would ensure that if reS|dents arel
~ disturbed it would only be for 1 night of any weekend. :
“e Limit Cat'3 events to 6 per annum with a minimum of 4 calendar weeks between events. This would
ensure that if residents are disturbed it is for a Ilmlted number of incidents with a suitable resplte
" period. - :
» Remove category 3 events altogether. This would ensure residents are o_nly disturbed by the
~ permitted large events. -
o Condition the creation and implementation of a noise management plan for cat 3 events This fo

include but not be limited to,
o use of an in-house sound system agreed with the EP Team (including suppression systems

to prevent unauthorized tampering and band pass filters set to prevent bass issues),.

‘s Setting sound levels to a level to be agreed with EH

"o Sound levels on site are controlled by an in house sound engineer.

« Limit the number of stages and specify their locations and orientation on site.

« Additional fixed monitoring units to cover the gaps in the current system.

¢ Fixed monitoring units to stages to check the levels of individual stages.

» Provision of a dedicated complaints line that will be manned for the duration of the event and
responded to.

This would requwe the operator to take the control that has been dlscussed with EH but has not been
|mplemented :

Page 22



Appendlx A

Please provnde as’ much mfor "d:'atron ae possrbie to support the 'pplrcatlon L
(please read grurdance note 3) » ,

The Colebrook Lake S|te holds a W|de ranging hcense to conduct events ranglng from Category 1 (the
largest) to Category 3 (the smallest). The level of disturbance and therefore the level of restriction
placed on these events reduces from 1 to 3 to the extent that there is very little restriction on the
category 3 events.. This on the basis that they should cause no or minimal disturbance to residents in
the locality and for all practical purposes be inaudible. It is on that premise that the council has felt
able to give permission for a small number of large events that it is acknowledged will cause significant
disturbance in addition to the category 3 events. [f these category 3 events cannot be held as
described and intended, then further regulation of them wili be. required to protect residents.  Thel
current terms of the license for these events are; :

A Category Three event is any event takfng place on any day or consecutive days where: .

. The capacity of the event (on any given day) is less than 1500 not including staff and contractors.
. Live music shall not be provided outdoors after 23:00

. Recorded music shall not be provided outdoors after 23:00

There is general provision for music to be played inside until 03:00 hours; for the purposes of this
license a marquee style structure is courited as inside. This was on the basis that this would reduce]
numbers of attendees and thus music noise. This has not been the real life result and is out of step
with general licensing view of what would constrtute and |n5|de event. This distinction should therefore

- |be removed from the license.

No category 1 or 2 events have been undertaken in 2020 or 2021 due to the pandemic, however 5
category 3 events have been held in August and September 2021 and it those events which are the

subject of this review.
The events were held on;

7 — 9" August 2021 D festival

14-16" August 2021

21 August 2021

27-29" August 2021 Alfresco
© 18/19% September

_'Extr'ects from resident emails are included in this review document to give an indication of thej.
experiences they describe. The full content of emails from residents detailing their experlences in
_Jresponse to requests forinformation by the EP team are included as Appendrx 1

The first event was a one ‘stage festival with stage orientatio_n away from the nearest residentiai
premises. On the 6 August 2021 a site visit was made by an EP officer. The officer noted that a
standard F1 system was being used and was facing in the general direction of the boundary with the
{Tonbridge and Malling Borough. The fact that the speaker set up was not the type that was anticipated|
was raised at this point. There were also no hay bales in use to provide any insulation around the rear| -
and sides of the speaker arrays. The officer stressed the importance of ensurlng that the event was
not audible and that the DJ was prevented from raising Ievels :

At the time of the event no complalnts were received o Tunbndge Wells Borough Council with 1 being
received by Tonbridge and Malling from one of their residents. Since the event the council has been
lcontacted by 7 residents from Tunbridge Wells predominantly in the Vauxhall Lane area. They

describe the impact of the festival as : ~ '

- |Noise from early evening tilf 3am the next day. Loud booming music that was of high enough volume to disturb)
sieep. :

|Very hot night all windows open. Music was continuous from early evening but much more noticeable when| .
trying to get to sleep from about 10.30. Noticed it inlt&égéggeven worse on the sat night.

5 .



Appendix A

The locations of complaints for each event are shown on the maps presented in Appendix 2. Post,
_|codes only have been plotted to ensure that individual properties cannot be easily identified thus{
complying with GDPR so if there is more than one complaint from the same postcode it will only show
"lonce. We have included the numbers of complainants for each event in the main papers. '

The overall humbers of complaints for each event are made up of those received on the night of each
individual event, and those collated in the preparation of the review papers where EH contacted all o
[the complainants and asked them {6 give detailed information about-how they were affected. Not all
complainants contacted us on the night of each event but were then able to provide information about
the impact each had had after they had been completed. :

Following the first event EP officers were in contact with the operator and advised that there was 2]
complaint. Advice was given on the number of fixed permanent Sound Level Meters (SLM) and the
subsequent improved accuracy of the wrtual’ SLMs {computer generated predicted levels that use
the data from the fixed SLLMs). :

The second event was held on the 14" to 16' of August 2021. The council received-20 complaints in
total about this event from Tudeley, Pembury, Ashenden Walk and Knights Park areas, the council has|
not received complaints about music noise from these locations in the past. The operator.and their
consultant have offered the explanation that this may have been caused by a combination 01
temperature changes and wind direction. The EP team are of the opinion that the main reason for thej -
{mpact was the use of two marquees, each with two F1 speaker stacks facmg in that general direction.
The effect of the music on residents has been described as ‘ :

....... can't use our garden or go for a walk in the Weald g:ven it is extreme!y :rntatmg and dommates
the senses.

In the house, it was less aud.rble (although you could hear it if you listened for it).and you could drown
it out with the te!ewsmn or radio (not that we should have fo all dayona Saturday) ‘

..Windows we're closed but if could still be heard in -any room in which we didn't have a television
or radio on. Both me and my wife cou!dn 't sleep through it and t-herefore were very, tired the next day.

N I find the noise very distressing. We have recently moved to the area with two young
children. One of the aliractions was that we were moving to an AONB that was remote. Since we
moved in in mid August, we've effectively had to lock ourselves in the house and drown out the sound|
or go out for the day to avoid it on 50% of Saturdays. In my view, the commercial interests of the farm
. [cannot justify the impact this is having on residents" ability to use their properties and gardens. The
duratlon is.also. unreasonabie given it generates 12-13 hours of constant, thumpmg base: :

1Followmg the second event EF’_ officers again engaged with the site operator and his consultant.
{Advising that numerous complaints were received (11 initially rising to 20 subsequently) and
highlighting that the F1 speaker system was not what we were expecting. The lack of hay bales was
also noted. The orgainser indicated that the speaker system and lack of hay bales was down.to
unavailability and a national shortage respectively. The speakers were also not laid out as expected
(a quadrangle of speakers with lower volumes) as they were laid out in traditional orientation.
Photographs of the Iay out at the festival is shown in Appendzx 3. :

The third event was the Alfresco event held over the bank holiday weekend between the 27 29" August
2021. This comprised of 5 separate music stages on the site each, with a F1 sound system. The main
stages and outside stages had hay bales around them, but the system was so big that these were
likely to be sub-optimal. The marguee stages had a gquadrangle, but this was a doubling of the F1
systems per marquee: The EP team would have liked smaller systems with better screening. The
acoustic consultant for the organiser thought that the ‘measures in place should be sufficient. Due 10
the previous complaints this event was monitored by EH officers at key locations based upon the| -
' prewous complaints received. The officers concluded that an unacceptable level of noise disturbance|
for a category. 3 event was experienced at nominated receptors. It is acknowledged that if this had
been a nominated category 1 event then the sound levels produced would have been within the|

- accepted parameters (with the exception that tlpérg %\?s allowed to go to 3am). However, it was a
category 3 event and so should have been effect ? dible. The officers’ subjective observations




e Gvent e reproduced below e e e
Friday night Locations

Knights Park
1) The first visit 22.05 hrs we could hear music across the spectrum and there was a bass beat

- bands. The bass was audible inside the car. Overall LAeq 47dB
2) Visit 23.30hrs music is broad spectrum a dominant bass beat at times. Music and traffic noise
~ are the main noise sources. We could occasionally hear cheering. At one stage there were
dance type special effects that attracted attention such as “Whoop Whoop Whoop” noises and
rapid bass drumbeats. LAeq 46.5dB with some 63hz getting to about 60dB. :
+3) Visited 01.45hrs the level was down but we could still hear bass music inside the car with
windows closed. When outside could hear general music. The bass did appear reduced
compared with prewous occasrons LAeq 40dB and L.ow levels of 63Hz around 55dB.

Ashenden Walk o
1) Visited 23.05hrs we could hear the bass beat clearly and could hear it in the car with the doors

and windows closed. There was a bit of reflection from some of the surrounding
- buildings. There were no significant issues to residents, but it was audible and would have
been audible inside houses. Overali level 39.5dB the bass was present in the 63Hz region and
“was significantly above its neighbouring octave bands.
2) Visited 01.25hrs music levels audible but relatively low some bass coming through LAeq
32.5dB but no big spikes in 63Hz though the base is audible was audibie in the car with windows
open but not dlstlnct W|th windows closed.

lGimble Way
1} Visited 22.30hrs very faint music in places Inside car with windows open it was not

audible. Not a problem for residents. Overall LAeq 35dB.
2) Visited 01.07 very faint music just about audible outside would not be a problem inside. - The
LAeq 30dB was very low. No issues for residents.

Halfmoon Lane
1) Visited at 22. 50hrs and no music was audrble Overall LAeq 35dB

Other Locations — we had a drive by of Pemburleudeley —there was no music audible in places and
very light music barely audible in others. No reading taken as this was rot necessary as residents oﬁ
|Tudéeley and Pembury would have experienced no noise issues.

Saturday night Locations

qKnights Park

~audible). - Noise levelsincreased a bit, and some bass beats were drstmctly ewdent The levels

~ were too loud for a Cat 3 event.
2) Visited at 01.10hrs There was some broad-spectrum music noise audible. Could hear
saxophone at 01.26 hrs. Could hear cheering of people at the festival. We could clearly hear,

particular attention. The volume tended to go up and down with wind speed. There was aj
moderate breeze from the direction of the festival. The LAeq was 45dB and there was 63hz
Ievel of around 67dB though overall this was Leq 60dB.

Ashenden Walk .
1) Visited at 23.14hrs there was some general spectrum music and some bass music. There was

a fair bit of reflection of surrounding buildings. The general level was qurte low at LAeq 40dB
but there was a fair bit of bass with the LC-LA being 18dB.
2) Quick visit 01.55hrs no readings taken but it was very similar to what we observed earlier. -

Appendix A

that grabbed attention in the 63Hz sometimes by close to 10dB above neighbouring]

1) Visited 22.40hrs could hear general music though the bass was not too bad initially (it was still] -

the bass in the car with the wiridows closed. We heard a siren noise at 01.40hrs that drew| . -

Page 25

7



Appendix A

Glmble Way

1) Visited at 22.10hrs music barely audible. LAeq 39dB but this was from distant traffic. Even
during lulls in traffic, the music was barely audible. Not an issue for residents.
2) Visited at 0.45hrs there was a barely audible bass beat. The main noise source was trafflc

Old Church Road

1) Visit at 22.29hrs music totaily i_naudible only noise was distant traffic. LAeq 32dB. Notanissue

" |Other Locations '

We had a drive by of Pembury/Tudeley before our first visit as during the pre\nous night there was no
music audible in places and very light music barely audible in others. No reading taken as this was nof
necessary. We would focus on the High Brooms area where we experienced some issues last night.

We had a further drive by for Pembury/;l‘ udeley to make sure that there was no significant change to
the situation. It in¢luded The Ridgeway, Old Church Road, Halfmoon Lane there were no issues with
music or bass from these locations, so no readings were taken.

Sunday night Locations

[Knights Park

but increased with wind speed. There were occasions where the 63Hz octave band levels
~ ' became prominent, but this was for a very short period. At this stage it was audible inside the
‘ car with the windows closed. The LAeq varied around 42-44dB the LC-LA was around 16dB.

the general music that was audible across the spectrum. It was just about audible inside the
car. Given the issues on previous nights, the organiser decided that the DJ events would finish
at midnight and that background music would run till 02.00 hours. The music stopped just after
midnight and was no longer audible. | let the SLM continue to compare the music on levels
with the music off levels. LAeq 43dB on and 37dB off. The LC-LA was 18.3dB on and 17.1dB

- off. We considered the levels would not be an issue for CAT 1 or 2 but probably not good
enough for a CAT 3 which should be basically inaudible.

Ashenden Walk

“level would be intrusive inside. LAeq 35dB and LC-LA 15.5dB.

 |Gimble Way

1} Visited 22.30 The music was practically maudlbie with very faint.bass notlceable in traffig
iulls. This was considered as not likely to cause any disturbance to neighbours. The LAeq was
- 33.5dB anrd there-were no relevant octave band issues. :

[Other Locations

We had a brief visit to Pembury and Tudeley just to make sure that there were no issues there. We
did not take any readlngs but confirm that music was not an issue for these locations.

noise. There was no likelihood of neighbours being disturbed by the music. The LAeq was 34|

1) Visited at 22.50Hrs. The music levels were not too bad — they were audible but not very loud]

.2) Visited 23.50hrs. ‘Music was audible and there was a bit of bass for a short period, but it was| -

1) Visited at 23.35 hrs, music was audible with a bit of bass. We did not consider it to be|
- excessive, but it was a Cat 3 and it is possible that it would be noticed. We did not think the !

The council received 37 complaints about this event mainly from the Knights Park and ngh Brooms
areas. The impact on residents was described as music clearly heard including words at times with a
lbass that could be heard inside even with windpwsglasogin some locations.

8




Appendix A

The operator again offered explanations for the problems including wind direction and shortage ot{
sound equipment meaning that they could not use the equipment that was originally intended. EP
officers believe that the sound energy from doubling the F1 systems meant that effectively the noise
from the speakers was able to spread to directions not experienced in the previous concerts. The
council also acknowledges that the operator attempted to resolve the problems when notified by
officers on the night but was unable to do so to an acceptable level.

Following this event, the operator was contacted by the council by email and by telephone to advise
of the results of the monitoring. The operator was asked why there was so much low frequency noise
when they were using a high pass filter that should have reduced bass noise. Issuing a complain
telephone number was also discussed but the operator indicated that he would have a dedicated line
(with enhanced broadband) for next year’s festivals. He indicated that in the meantime, people could
log onto the SPL website and enter into dialog if they registered with the site — a number of residents
provided their email details to get registered for access to the site. The organiser was informed that i
the final event of the year did not operate successfully then a review of the license would be initiated.

EP officers visited the site on Friday 17" September in the afternoon. There was only one stage in
use, facing away from residential premises but using an F1 system which is one where two sets oi{
speakers are set up either side of the stage facing out into the audience. This is the same type of
system used in all the events in 2021. This is not ideal for sound reduction, as it means they have to
be loud enough for those at the back to hear it at a volume which will give them the desired experience,
here were approx. 700 people attending the event.

S
T R s S A

Photograph showmg typlcal F- 1 speaker r set up

Officers asked if hay bales were being put behind the speakers, these had not been ordered. The
operator advised he would get them ordered in. The operator has since confirmed that it was no

possible for him to order the bales. Officers stressed several times that it was essential that this evenﬂ
be a successful category 3 event such that it was not noticeable for residents or that it would be no

be possible to avoid calling for a review of the license. The operator understood this and also that the
continued problems with category 3 events put his annual large event in jeopardy as it uses up all
residential tolerance. We also stressed that we need to be in a position where officers do not need toj
monitor noise from category 3 events.

This event was again monitored by the EH team. The officers’ subjective observations are in the table

below.
Page 2/
9




Weather Conditions

observations using car external temperature gauge

Appendix A

/Almost still conditions occasional very slight'breeze from event site towards nights park development.
Temperature mild from approx. 18°C dropping to approx. 15°C in smail hours according to officer]

Time _ Location

Cbservations

21.55 ‘ : Gimble Way Pembury

Faint spund of music audible
not clear if from event as not
house music. No more audible
than traffic noise. Would not
be audible inside house.

' Pogsible sound of fire ‘works

22.02.

22.20 o ‘ QOutside entry to the festival
' site

With windows open barely |

audible and not over traffic

noise. Windows closed bass
faintly audible. Overall, just
detectable.

2__2.33 . Ashenden Walk

Very faint music intermittently |
audible not bassy.  Traffic
louder. Unlikely to be audible
inside with windows open,
fainty audible bass for a few
seconds at'a time,

22,53 | . | Beside Skinner Primary Schooi
' ' Knights Park opposite
Hawthorn House

Music and bass audible. Would
be disturbing inside with
window open if trying to sleep.
Contacted organiser to inform

1 him. Reply that he would turn

it down, not . noticeably
different. ‘

23.10 advised by organiser that

"had turned down, bass still

clearly audible.

23.30 ' I Pembury Hall Road

schopl and Hawthorn House:

Page 28

| No music audible
23.35 , ' Outside Nightingale Cottage | No music audible -
‘ . | Half Moon Lane Tudely '
23.54 _ Gimble Way Pembury No music audible
00.10 ‘ o Ashenden Walk Possible very faint bass on edge
‘ of -hearing.  Traffic - clearly
audible. Not audible in car with
: windows open .
00.30 Knights Park next to primary | Outside bass still audible als

faint sound of crowd cheering.
Bass audible in car with
windows closed.

00.55 windows open can hear |-

. bass and voice/lyrics but not

actual words,

Jained by Nick Love licensee to
hear bass and music. Is having
issues with DJ’s turning volume
up after his people have turned
down. Has tried to reduce from

1C




Appendix A

100dB on dance floor to SOdB
but customers are complaining
and ahs had to put security on
the speaker arrays.

01.25 Music drops in volume

0140 - ‘ Gimble Way Pembury No . music noise' background

' ‘ . sound has also dropped off

01.55 ' Ashenden Walk No music noise

02.05 Knights -Park near primary | Bass and DJ audible outside.
S school and Hawthorn House - | Faintly audible inside car with

windows open,

'| Event finished 02.30

The sound levels measured during the event were not very high in terms of overall LAeg value being,
. o -Ashenden Walk LAeq 37dB '
¢ Knights Park - LAeq 42dB reducmg to 40dB

The overall LAeq level was not the issue,, with most people complaining about the bass beat. There
-{was a high pass filter in place at 140 Hz with an 8 dB suppression per octave band below this level.
The main issue on the night was the 63Hz octave band. The levels were not dreadfully high but bass
music at this frequency can pass through structures much easier that mid and higher frequency noises,

: LAeq levels with the LCeq levels, The 63Hz octave band levels and LC'LA 14.8dlevels were,
e Ashenden Walk Leq 56dB (Lc-La 12. 4dB)
+ Knights Park Leq 54dB - 56dB (Lc-L.a 14.8dB)]

The octave bands are not particularly loud and would not be an issue for limited numbers of concerts,
as they are well within the guidelines of the current pop code. The Lc-La levels are not dreadfully bad
and the aim for normal concerts would be to keep this between 15dB and 20dB, but this is not a normal
- feoncert, it is a Cat 3 event which should be effectively inaudible and the Le-La in the region of 12-15dB
is too loud. The 63Hz octave band.is audible see the graph of Phon Levels below that plots the 63HzZ
56dB level (blue dot) which is clearly above the 0 Phon threshold of audibility.

and can be heard inside bedrooms where the LAeq with the windows closed can be around 20dB. The]
level of bass can be compared by looking at the 31.5 — 125Hz octave band levels or by comparing the| -

Page 29
11 '




Appendix A

S —— _/‘1120 phon

100 phon

. g \\__/ ',,«/ﬁ—llOphOn
| e ek
=] L.

90 phon
80 phony|
70 phon
60 phon
50 phon
40 phon
30 phon
20 phon

Sound Level (dB)
=]
]
I

- 10 phon
20
Ophﬂnw
D_
-10 T 1 . T T 1 T ™
40560 |100 200 40(}{ 800' 2000 5 5000‘ 10,000
50 80 500 1000 4000 8000
Frequency f (Hz)

Phon level Chart - showing audibility of sounds at different frequencies

At night, for a very limited number of events some councils have allowed a Laegsmin level of 45dB. As
has been stated before, the Cat 3 events are supposed to be inaudible and on occasion the LAeq
levels have risen to 48dB (Alfresco) and around 40-42dB for the last event. The bottom line is that if]
was not possible to get the music levels down to levels where it was imperceptible to residents as
demonstrated by the number of complaints.

The council received 14 complaints about this event from the Ashenden Walk, Knights Park and
VVauxhall Lane areas. The Vauxhall Lane area was not covered by the monitoring by officers as
residents had not previously contacted us until following this event. The impact of the event was
described by a complainant as

Even worse than above. It was really loud in the garden and in the Weald.

It was also very audible in every room in the house, even over the television and radio. This caused
my wife significant anxiety.

Windows were closed but it was prominent in every room. | had the radio on loudly in my office and
yet had to work through it as it overpowered the radio. We then couldn't sleep unless we put in-ear
headphones in and played white noise, which of course is extremely uncomfortable.

As above, save that this weekend's event made our whole house unusable which | find totally
unacceptable. While the garden and Weald have been unusable on all events, we have at least been
able to hide in the house. We shouldn't have to, but there was at least some escape. This weekend|
there was nowhere to run - every room was dominated by it.

Discussion

The license holder has previously advised EH that his intention is that he will procure a different type
of system to those used for these events, which has more but smaller speakers within the dance floor,
meaning that they can be of a lower volume. ita useggwill then be required to use his system and
his sound engineer will be in control of volume. sfifl has not happened, with users bringing their
12




Appendix A

lown systems and usmg their own sound englneers The operator has also failed to make use of simple
measures such as hay baies uniess prompted by EH officers, even for the final event of the summer
when he was aware of the consequences of the event causing noise problems. The operator has
advised that there has been a shortage of hay bhales but, with pre- plannmg this should have been

‘Ipossible.

These were category 3 events which means that in essence they should not be noticeabie to any|
nearby residents. This point is important as it is on this basis that there are no limitations on the
number and spacing of events and this must be achieved to make the disturbance caused by the

annual large event acceptable.

There have been up to 5 stages at events this year, which would be very dlfﬂcult to oontrol 50 as not
to be disturblng and does not fit the small event ethos.

The operator has made comments regarding wind direction and temperature effecting sound impact
on residents, however this cannot be a sustainable excuse. For category 3 events to be viable on site
they must not impact residents regardless of weather conditions. Note that on the 18/19 September iff

was essentially a still night.

it is acknowledged that if this and indeed the previous event had been category 1 the sound levels
observed would have been compliant with license conditions. That is why these larger events are
Ilmlted in the numbers that can be held and the time between them :

it is clear from the complalnts made that the |mpact of these events has been significant on Iarge
numbers of people across a large geographic area.

Itis telling that the operator told us, during the final event, that he was having problems with the DJ’s
bringing the levels up, this re-enforces that discussions we have been having with him about the need
for him to have absolute control over scund levels and the choice of equipment. This is something he
has advised EH is his intention since the ﬂrst discussions on the license variation in 2019 yet is still

has not happened

[EH do no. doubt that the operator has the desire to resolve these problems, and we acknowledge that
during events the problems have been recognized by him and he has attempted to resolve them and|
was in regular communication with the EH officers on the night.. However, he seems unabie to
translate the plans and intentions to actual solutions that are implemented on site. There also seems
to be an ongoing problem with control over visiting DJ's and sound engineers.

This has resulted in the EH team havmg little confidence that these problems will be-‘successfully
resolved before the event season begins in spring 2022. Consequently, we have conciuded that the|
review of the Ilcense must be called.

[EH do not have the capacity or resources to monitor category 3 events either financially or in officen
availability.  They should be of such a level that this is not necessary, with EH bemg requlred to oniy
monitor the category 1 events for compilance with conditions, '

It is therefore the conclusion of the EP team as a responsible authority that further restriction of the
category 3 events as described above is justified and proportionate. The panel are asked to consider]
the imposition of the conditions above to resolve this matter.

Please use addiﬁonal pages If needed

Page 31
18



Appendix A
Please tick v yes | :

Have you made an application for review relating to the premises before? ]

' _ o Day Month Year‘r
If yes, please state the date of that application : [T T o]

Representatmn made regardmg the Var1at1on of the current 11cense in 20 19,

" Please t.rck v'yes

. I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and the ]
premises licence holder or club hotdmg the club premises certificate, as approprlate

« | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my appllcatlon will 0
be rejected —.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE
STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKEA FALSE
STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO'A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Sighatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). if signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

[12 Octaber 2021

Environmental Protection Team Leader

Page 32
14



Appendix A

Tunbridge
- Wells Borough

Addressee as per envelope Please Contact; Duncan Haynes
E-mail: duncan.haynes@MidKent. gov uk
" Phone: 01622 602766
Our ref: 21/514461/NAMP
Date: 12 October 2021

Dear sirfmadam,

Licensing Act 2003.

Please find enclosed an application made for a review of the premlses license for Colebrook. -
Park, Colebrook Lakes, Land East of Kingstanding Way, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 3UP. This
review has made by the Environmental Protection Team that has been forwarded to the

~ Licensing Authonty

This review follows a series of events on the site over the summer of 2021 which we belleve
breach the licensing objective of Prevention of Public Nuisance.

Yours faithfully,

Duncan Haynes
Envrronmental Protection Team Leader

Mid Kent Environmental Protection Team _
Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN1 1RS

switchboa'rd 01892 526121 SMS (text) 07870526121
DX 3929 Tunbridge Wells * website www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk.

Page 33"




Appendix A

Page 34



Appendix A

Responsible Authorities

Environmental Protection Tunbridge Wells Borough Council Town Hall Royal
Tunbridge Wells Kent TN1 1RS Tel: 01892 526 121 Email: -
envprotection@midkent.gov.uk _

Health and Safety Tunbridge Wells Borough Council Town Hall Royal Tunbridge
Wells Kent TN1 1RS Tel: 01892 526 212 Email: _
-food&commercial@tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Health & Safety Executive International House Dover Place Ashford TN23 1HU Tel
01233 653900 Website: www.hse.gov.uk :

Looai Planning Authority Tunbridge Wells Borough Council Town Hall Royal
Tunbridge Wells Kent TN1 1RS Tel: 01892 526 121 Emait:
planning@tunbridgewells.gov.uk

West Kent Fire Safety Office Tonbridge Fire Station 424 Vale Road Tonbridge Kent
TN9 1SW Tel: 01622 692 121 Email: tfs.midgroup@kent.fire-uk.org

West Kent Licensing Officer Community Safety Unit Kings Hill Gibson BUIldlng
Gibson Drive West Malling ME19 4LZ Tel: 01732 379 255 Email:
west.division.iicensing@kent.police.uk

Trading Standards Kent County Councilr 1st Floor, Invicta House County Hall
Maidstone Kent ME14 1XX Tel: 01622 221012 Email:
trading.standards@kent.gov.uk

Kent Child Protection Committee Children’s and Families KCC Social Services
Sessmns House, Room 2.60 County Road Maidstone Kent ME14 1XQ Website:

www.kent.gov.uk Email: social.services@kent.qov.uk

Kent Public Health Department Room 3.45, Sessions House County Hall, County
‘Road Maidstone ME14 1XQ Tel: 0300 333 6379 www.kent.dov.uk

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) Alcohol Licensing Team Lunar House 40
‘Wellesley Road Croydon CR9 2BY htips://www.gov.uk/immigration-reporting-centres

Page 35




Appendix A

Page 36




Appendix B

Appendix 1 |
Emails from Complainants -

 Page 37



Page 38

- Appendix B



Appendix B

DuncanHa!h’es" S o :

From: -«

Sent: C ‘ .

“To: | o S John McCuHough Duncan Haynes

Subject: - ' - Re:Chasing Information on my pravious request for information - Events at

- Colebrook Lakeﬁ”*N’b"ﬁt‘ffarmﬂ -“‘-'.'-'_ “lﬁ%’ﬁrm g,aw* SR

"1.
L

i

-Oh, | shou!d add: on the 14th and 15th of August we had friends wsntmg s, and they stayed overnight. They have

"two small children and visited us for a break while the grandparents looked after their kids. Unsurprisingly they were

| a..lso heavrly.dlsturbed _They remarked on the disturbance the next day, and were surprised at how loud it was, and
‘said that they were kept awake spacifically by the bass from the event until at Iea-'s.t Bam. =S

On Mon, 4 Oct 2021 at 10:14, M ey ﬁa&!«&n '

- Hi John and Duncan,

..Apologles for the delay, | apprecrate that yo"u e dh s bmt\bﬂa@ﬁﬁ G“f*fritétawehhapﬁ-‘““bf’té"ﬂ@l"eill"iﬁalow is stJII
helpfui to you. I've tried to keep to the facts as: muchas posstble tf you have any more questlons about specrﬂcs o
that I ve been unable to recall below, please do ask. S : . <

1was able to assembie the mformatmn be!ovv from a comb:natlon ofmemory, messages I sent to nelghbours, and '
the location history on my phone s : _ ,

: M‘yaddres Gt

i 7-9th August i do not recall bemg dlsturbed however we were at our nelghhour s vveddmg on the 7th untll 1- 2am :

!

bn the Bth

'13th-:15th August (you asked for 14th-—16th but f ber’reve the eﬁent Wwos actua!ly one day earlier than thrs,‘ We
were significantly disturbed until very late for all 3 days of this event, |-started hearing loud bass from about -
lunchtime on Friday but didn’t think much of it at first, We were kept awake until about 2am but wrote igBHaS
maybe a one-off party that had gotten out of hand. The nature ‘of the noisé over the whole weekerid approx noon—

e 2/3am was mostiy thumping bass. The nosse levels went upand down over time (maybe due to wind?}, butwas = -
1 dlmost contmually present during these times. On Sunday the 15th, we walked to Matfield and back and amazingly -

~ could still hear bass quite Ioudly from 2.5 milas away across the countryside (thIS would have been at about 5pmy}.
,Thls was pretty upsettrng, as we knew it would be worse when we got home as we were walking, back.

20-22nd August {you did not ask about thas date but there was another aevent, the “Love Ha Hgove gide !val on

| these dates, see pubhcxty hera). We were srgmﬁca ntly impacted-in the same way as the previous weekend an
: :Fraday 20th August, After another sleepless night and the prospect of another weekend of the same, we went away
to visit my sister in law overnlght on Sat 21st'to get an undisturbed night's sleep. We returned on Sunday at about

" 6:30pm. My neighbour and | were in contact wrth Nicl Love (Ilcensee) who we met in person for a tour ofthe -
venue on Monday 23rd August ‘ - '

L

27th 25th August After the repeat on the prev:ous weekend, we went away again. to visit my parents and sister

overmght on Saturday. We were at home for the 27th and 25th, however, and although we could faintly hear some.

_ intermittent sound from Colebrook on occasmn we couldn't hear it inside, and | would not describe ’che event as -
havmg drsturbed us. : ‘ ,

18th- 19th September' We didn't hear anything from Colebrook Park this vveekend hovvever therewas another

very loud event at The Hop’ Farm running for'2 days that weekend which would have masked it. This, event ended at -

about 10pm, however and ['didn't hear anything from Colebrook after that.

Page 39



Appendix B

Our wmdows were closed at all times during all of the above detailed disturbance. We live in a I|sted building w:th '
single glazed windows, and by law cannot install double glazing (although 'don't think it would have made a
difference). It was guite warm over the impacted weekends, and for some nights we had air conditioning running in

our bedroom The impact described belov(ﬁ'mgcurred» A;e;s" 5 ‘;@%Jﬂaah;a kg;raund noise of .our air conditlonmg
R R [ T i |

on i, 1 ‘Oct 2021 at 09:06, T Ot
Sorry, John!l managed to send that i in a half—wrltten state Sa usage flngers

~ will fl” out the rest and seﬂd it over shortly

Cheers,

|

On Fri, 1 Oct 2021 at 09:05 waewg
Hi.J_ohn and Duncan,” -

R et

My address: d
7-9th: August- [ do not recall bemg drsturbed however we were at our neigh bour S weddlng on the 7th until 1-
~ 2amon the Sth : , .

3.3th—15th August { you asked for 14th-1 Eth but the event was actuaﬁy one day earher than thrs,

see https://mytunbridaewells.com event/live-forever-90s-festivai/). We were significantly disturbed until very

late for all 3 days of this event. | started heﬁﬁw@@mg»@%@%ﬁ@mawml%ﬁmwwm&m@m,@@u think'much

| of it at first. We were kept awake until about 2am but wrote it off as maybe a one-cff party that had gotten out
- of hand. The nature of the neise over the whole weekend approx noon—zfaam was mostly thumping bass, The

11 times.”

“On 28 Sep 2021, atrlﬁ_:zllz, John McCuIIoUgh'-w:John.IVIcCu!Idugh@-rﬁidkent.éc_iv..ul<_> wrota: - °

-_! am Iookmg to draw a Ilne under it after Frrday this week If you could pull somethmg together
bafore then that would be Perfect . :

¢

Best regards,.

John 'McC.uHough EP

Page 470 

" noisé levels went up and down over time (maybe due to.wind?), but was aimost contmually presant durmg these ‘




Appendix B

Duncan Haynes - D - |

From: : : - - John McCullough
~ Sent: .- 04 October 2021 12:24
To: - Duncan Haynes . — _ , : o i
- Subject: L FW: Last Call - Chasing Information on my previous request for information -~ g

- Events at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm our ref 21/514461/NAMP :

Friday just before 5

~ Sent: 01 October 2021 1652 . - ' '
. Totlohn McCuilough <lohn. McCquough@Mndl(ent gov, uk> Duncan Haynes <Duncan Haynes@M1dKent gov.uks
‘Subject: Re: Last Call - Chasing Information on my prewous request for lnformatlon Events at CoIebrook Lakes,

. North Farm our ref21/514461/NAMP

Hello,
- My feedback

7:9th Aug = wa sn 't aware of where the hoise was commg from so d|dn't make a complamt (or proba bly thought a
“Toisy private party?)

ol was a_way 14th-16th"Aug

27-26th AUg Alfresco Electronic Music Festival

'B) lunchtime Saturday 27th Aug
. C)Sunday 25th Aug late afterndon o ' :
D} during the daytime mix of “songs/ tracks” some Wlth vocalist {| could hear the wcrds in some casas) mostly dance -
music, into the evening continuous repetltlve dance tracks that had Ilttfe or no tune (assume from a DJ) w1th
repetltrve thumping beat - : -
- E) the'nolse in the evening seemed to get Iouder
.'F) 7-12.30pm Fri and sat night : :
'G) during the day the nmse was annoying when | was out in my garden o} the extent. that I couldn’t stay outs:de |
could hear lyrics. -
‘H}) at nlght I could not leave my wmdows open (even though ! wanted to) and even with ear plugs { coufd not get to.
sleep - the, continuous thumping beat was extremely annoying and stressful. 1 s’cayed up Iate on Saturday after my
_ experlence o Fnday, the noise started to iessen at 12.30pi - o

M} the type of misic and repehtive beat wWas partlcularly \rntatmg and had a blg lmpact on my sleep Ifelt very tired
after the weelcend : , . .

o .18/19t_h Sept

B)Saturday 18th. Se'ptearly afternoon
CJSunday 19th Sept late afternoon :
D) loud music '

Page 41




| Appendix B

E) the hoise Ievef f!uctuated but the Saturday evening was very loud and was obvuously a big commercral sound

system.- _ _ o .
FiSaturday evening ' B C

G)t had wanted to spend t|me fn my garden but found the nolse too annoying.
H) we needed to close the windows and | needed ear plugs to get to sleep

1) have started planning whether we can move from the area to somewhere guieter as the repeated noise |ssues are '

: Worsenmg

Sent from my iPhone |

On 29 Sep 2021 at 15:38, John IVtcCullough <John McCuIIoueh@mrdkent eov uk> wrote

All,
‘Thenk-yoe to all who have submitted d_ata to us ar'ready this jsmost"appredated.

,Sorry'té nag but|am clbsing the'survey down ~the last day being Friday this week if your comments
aren’t inby 5pm.on Friday they will not be used in our data. We had ongmally 50 people but have
acdded’a few more who have contacted me in re!atron to the survey havmg not complamed tous. . -
before 50 now we have 54 comp!amants So far | have had 18 responses to my survey so'we tould
work out who at what location could hear music and to what level. That is only a third of people

_respondmg

. That is & lot less evidence than | would have expected given the strength of‘féeling on the
subject. The council needs supportin gathering evidence and data to be In as strong a position as
possible with regards to potentiai actions.. It is important that peopie fill out'accurately as to
whether they ACTUALLY heard and were disturbed by noise as we do not want someone sayln
theyjustA and B whilst their ne|ghbour puts down they heard all the even@aﬁg&%ﬁ&;@m

5

. ternble Please refate to the disturbance to the dates indicated below’ -

o that

Ifyou woufd like to drscuss thls orany other matter further please contact me at the address ema;l
or telephone number given below ‘ : ‘

John McCuuo'ugh EP Team

From John McCuIIough

Sent: 23 September 2021 16:43 o

To: Hugd Pound {Clir} <Hugo, Pound@TunbrldeeWells gov uk> paul barrmgton kmg@kent gov uk
~ <paul.barrington-kina@kent.zov. uk>; 'Bob Backhouss {bobbackhouse@gmail.com)’

<bobbackhouse@gmail.com>; Gary Stevenson <Gary. Stevenson@TunbndgeweHs gov.ule; Hugh

-Patterson (Clir} <Hugh. Patterson@TunbndgeWeHs sov.ul>; Lance Goodshlp (Cllr '

<Lance. Goodshlp@TunbrideeWeils gov.uk> ‘ .

Ce: Duncan Haynes <Duncan.Haynes@ MidKent. eov uk> Tracey Beattie

<Tracay, Beatt|e@M1dKent gov.uk> ‘

Subject: Chasing Infurmatlon on my prewous request for mformatlon Events at Colebrook Lakes,

- 'North Farm

) A amm%%
) TR ¥ y T e
The EP team are worklng to try and gather mformatmn to determine the best courss of acti basemﬁ%
on evidence. To this end we need everyone to assist and give us. the information we need. If you '
. have not ALREADY responded to thls emafl could you please do so as soon as possible. Please relate
- it to éach of the events so we know if one, two, three or all events caused you noise issues, Only:
put dpwn the dates on which you disturbed as just “having an issue” with the event taking place is

Paye 42

All,




Appendix B

not sufficient we need to establish which events caused issues to whrch groups of complamants 50
- wecan bulld up a complete picture,

The response rate,-so far, has beena bit underwhelming and we need you support to determlne the

best course of action for the council to take in relation to the complaints. So please glve respondmg _

to my emall (copled belaw) a prlonty for your fime so that we can proceed

If you would like to discuss thls orany other matter further please contact me at the address emall
or telephane number glven below, . L

Best r_egarcis, _ -

John McCullough BS¢ (Hons) MSc MCIEH CEan MIOA
Mid Kent Shared Service - : _
“Serior- Envitonmental Health Ofﬁcer

T: 01622 602767 o

E: john mecillough/@midkent.gov.uk

Town Hall; Royal Tunbndge ‘Wells, Kent, TN1 IRS

WWW. tunbndgeweﬂs gov.uk _
<image001.png>

o <i'mage0.0Z.j'pg>

: -<intage003. ping>

: From John McCulIough ‘
Sent: 21 Septembier 2021-13:12

' To: Hugo Pound (Cllr) <Hygo. Pour:d@Tunbnd,quefls gov,UK>; "'paul. barrmgton kmg@kent gov uk

<paul.barrington- kine@kent:gov.uk>; 'Bob Backhouse (hobbickhouse@gmail.com)'
<bobbackhouse @gmail. com>; Gary Stevenson <Gary.Stevenson®Tunbridgewe!ls gov.uks; Hugh

. Patterson (Clir) <Hugh. Pattersan@TunbradgeWeHs gov.uk>: Lance Goodshlp (Cilr)
- <Lance.Goodshin@TunbrideeWells.zov.uk> ' 7
Cc: Duncan Haynes <Duncan.Haynes@MidKent, gov ul>; Tracey Beattie . -

<Tracev Beattie@Midkent.gov.uk> ‘
- Subject: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our ref

_21/515028/NAMP Update 25th August 2021

Al

Some new peaple have been added to the circulation list. | have blind carbon copied you into this

" email to protect your privacy as nobody else will be able to see your email address. There have
been prevrous updates detailing the Envircnmental Protections actions and options for control

etc. If you need this historic info please contact me and | ¢an forward you (lnd:\ndually) coples of "

tmportantemalls

. There was an event held on 17 September that was again monitored by the Enwronmental

~* Protection Team. We are had a new set of complamts which | have added to the circulation list.

‘ What would be useful to us is details that relate to events We need to know what you actually
- heard and obsefved directly (no third-party information or general supportive comments just

" focused on actual first-hand evidence) as thls Is fundamental in gettmg to the facts of the case and

for us bundmg a case.

n

Page 43




Appendix B

There have been four events and we will be trying to piece together information relating to the
" number of speaker systéms the orientation of the speaker systems etc o get to a better
understandmg of what happened and why. The four dates were, .
. ~ 9™ August 2021
» 14 16" August 2021
o 27-29" August .
e 18/19 September

.The mformahon we need for each date Is (do not click respond to all as this wili make your
mformataon available to all ENSURE that you send your comments to

a) Your Name Address and Postcode: _
b)" 'What time did you first notice noise from the event in guestion. (lf you did not notice please e

. indicate this as well) :
c). What was the last time you notlced noise from the event and questlon
d) Abrief descnptlon of what you could hear.
&) Was the noise unifarm or did it go.up and down.
f)  Weie there any spemflcally bad times when it appeared worse.

g)" How it dlsturbed you during the day (where, and how)
h) How It dlsturbed you at night (did you have windows open or closed etc)
T} Any other comments on the nofse that you ‘think would be useful to- us in assessmg the

|mpact

if you wou id Ilke to discuss this or any Dther rnatter further please contac’t me at the address, email
or telephone number grven below, :

Best 'regards, :

Gofi Me :
i ohn MoCullough BSc (Hons) MSC MCIEH CEnVH MIOA
Mld Kent Shared Service
Senior Environmental Health Officer
T: 01622 602767
- "E:john mccullough@mldkent gov.uk
- Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN1 IRS

WWW ttmbrldﬁeweﬂs ooV, uk
<image00l1. png:a

) <1mage002.1pg>

- <imaged03.png> '

Page 44




Appendix B

| Duncan Haynes

From: ~_ John'McCullough | o
Sent: - . 071 October 2021 10:50

To: ' ‘ -~ Duncan Haynes :

Subject: . ‘ ‘ EW: Chasmg Informatxon on my prev10us reguest for mformatlon Events at

_Colebrook Lakes, North Farm

g P e v D DT

Sent: 01 chr 2021 £ 08; 06 .
To: John McCull ough <John, McCuli’ough@MldKent gov Ul

‘ _Subject. Re Chasing Informatjon o.My pravious request for mformetlon Events at Colebrook Lakes North Farm )

Sorry; Johnl | managed to send that ina hah‘-wrltten state Sausage ﬁngers
“Will ﬂI! out the rest and send It over shortly

g ,Cheer_s, ' . o o - L
On Fri, 1 Oct 2021 at 09:05, St

- HiJohn and Duncan;

i

MV addreSS: S ——

.1 7-8th August I to not recall bemg d|sturbed however we were at our nefghbour 5 weddmg on the 7th until 1- 2am
“}oon the 8th. ‘

-13th-15th August (you asked for 14th—16th, but the event was actuaﬁy one day ear!rer thon-this, .
- see httns://mytunbridgewells.com/event/live-farever -90s-festival/). We were significantly disturbed until very [ate
for all 3 days of this event, I started hearing loud bass from about lunchtime on Frlday but didn’t think much of it at
first. We were kept awake until about 2am but wrote it off as maybe a ohe-off party that had gotten out of hand.

The nature of the noise over the whole weekend approx noon-2/3am was-mostly thumping bass. The noise Ieveis ‘

went up and down overt me (maybe due to wmd?) but was a!most contmually present durmg these t|mesh

On 28 Sep 2021, at 16:42, John McCuHoUgh'_ <tohn.McCuIIo'_ugh@midkent.gov.uk>-wrote: ,

latn Iookmg to draw a line under it after. I"rlday this week if youcould puil somethmg together
before then that would be Perfect. - - ' .

Page 45



Appendix B

Best rega'rds,

John McCullough EP

- Fro e ,
_ Sent: 24 September 2021 09:06 : '
To: John McCullough <John.McCullough@WMidKent.gov.uk>'

Subject: Re: Chasing Information on my previous request forinformation - Events at Coiebrook
Lakes, North Farm _ ‘ . C f.,w«m w s pi b

HiJohn,

* Just acknowledging yourrequest.
- e

b, T

h Super busy with work today, and it u;.rlll'proba'E;I\ftake mea Ilttleﬁvh“le to ge’t Htthe mformatlon
togetherast It need to combine a few sources of information, incl my calendar (some days we were
away), and messages exchanged wrch nelghbours at the tlmes when we were coI}ectNer most

dlsturbEd - L e T e --v'---_ et Ll Sggen e T s A
© Alright if T get back to ybu_over the weekend?

heers, ~

© On Thu, 23 Sept 2021 at 16:43, John McCullough %John‘.McCulioUﬁh@midkent.gov.ub wrote:
Al

. : ) h
: The EP feam are work Ing tc try and gather information to determine the best course of actio n' Ha
| based on evidence. To this end wa need everyone to assist and give us the information we -
need. Ifyou have not ALREADY responded to this email could you please do s as soon as
possible. Please relate it to each of the events so we know if one, two, three or all events caused
'you noise issues. Onlyput down the dates on which you disturbed as just “having an issue” with
the event taking place is not sufficient we need to establish which events caused Issues to which

_ groups ot complainants so we can buildup a compiete picture.

Page 46

,.




,'_Appendix B

' The response rate, so far has been a bit underwhelmmg and we need you support to determme

- the best course of action for the council to take in relationto the complaints. So piease glve
o responding to my email {copled below) a priority for your time so that we can proceed.

If you would like 10 d Iseuss this orany other matter further p!ease contact me at the address
emall or telephone number g‘rven below, ' :

Bestregards; o

_rJohn McCullough BSc (Hons) MSC MCIEI—I CEnVH MIOA
4 M1d Kent Shared Servwe |

7 Sernor Env1romnental Health Ofﬂcer

T 01622 602767 -

E iohn. mccullough(bmrdkent 20V, uk

Town Hall, Royal Tunbrldge Wells Kenl TNl 1RS

www tunbndgeweﬂs 20V, uk

: éﬁﬁge ' \
if’e’aﬁi Borough

o LOUBEH

From: John McCullough ,

. Sent: 21 September 2021 13: 12

- To: Huga Pound {Clir) <Hugo. Pound@TunbndEeWells EOV uk>; 'pau, barrmeton-
king@kent.gov.uk! <paul.barrington- I<|ng@kent gov.uk>; 'Bob Backhouse
(bobbackhouse@gmail.com)' <hobbackhouse @gmail.com>; Gary Stevenson
<Gary.Stevenson@Tunbridzewells,gov.uk>; Hugh Patterson (Clir)

<Hugh. Pattersan@TunbrldgeWelis gov.uk>; Lance Goodship {Cl)

<Lance. Goodshlg@TunbrldgeWells gov.uk» o _

- Ce: Duncan Haynes <Duncan, Haynes@MidKent. FOV. uk>; Tracey Beattre

_ <Tracey.Beattle@MidKent.gov.uk>

- Subject: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our raf
P 21451 sn’rg/w;\ l\nD ; !ml—,m ")r:th /\Lgnrf 2021

'Page 47




Appendix B

All,

Some new people have been added to the c;rculatlon list. -1 have blmd carbon copiad you into thIS '

amail to protect your privacy as nobody else will be able to see your email address. There have
heen previous updates detailing the Environmental Protections actions and options for control -
etc. if you need thrs hlstoric mfo please contact me and [ can forward you (individually). Coples of
rmportant emalls ' :

.

There was an event held on 17t September that was agam momtored by the Envwoﬂmental
. Protectlon Team. ‘We are had a new set of com plamts WhICh i have added to the circulation list,

il What would be useful to us is detalls that relate to events. We read to know what you actually
- heard and observed directly (no third- ~party information or general supportive comments just
focused on actual first-harid ewdence) as this lS fundamental in getting to the facts of the case and

'for us bunldmgacase S .

, Tﬁere have been four events and we will be trying to piEce iogether ihformefion' relating to the
number of speaker systems the orientation of the speaker systems etc to get to a better -
‘u nderstandmg of what happened and why. The four dates were,

» 7ot August 2021_, g
s 14-16% August 2021

-s27-29" August S . : o
¢ 18/19% September - . . . SRR

The mformatlon we need for each date s (do fnot C|le respond toall as this will make your _
information avaiiable to all ENSURE that you send your comments to
John.mecullough@midkent.gov.uk and duncan.haynes@midkent.gov. ule )

“

a. Your Name Address ‘and Postcode : :
What time did you first notice noise from the 'vent in questuon (I you dld not notice
please indicate this as well) .
- What was the last time you noticed noise from the event and questlon
A brief description of what you could hear. o
Was the noise uniform or did it go up and down.
Were there any specifically bad times when it appeared worse.
‘How it disturbed you during the day (where and how) .
How It disturbed you at night (did you have windows open or closed etc)
_Any other comments on the noise that you think would be useful to us in assessmg the
lmner'r

o

—smme g0

Page 48



Appendix B

f you would I1I<e to discuss this or any'other matter further please contact me at the address
: emalf ortelephone number glven below.:

Best regards,

| John Mcdllllough BSc (Hons) MSc MCI_-EH CEnvH MIOA -
Mid Kent Shared S'e}vice . o
Senior Enwronmental Health Ofﬁcer o |

T 01522 602757

_ E: 10hn 111ccu110ugh@m1dkent ooV uk

' TOWH Hall Royal Tunbndge Wells, I{ent TN1 lRS

WWW, mnbndgeweﬂs gov uk

?ni};zﬁﬁe ™
: %‘%"&‘-‘ﬂ% fmﬁu@

Page 49




AppendixB

" Page 50




Appendix B

Duncan Haynes

“'
-_Fi-om:" ‘ -+ . John McCullough
Sent: .- . © .. 01 October 2021 10:52
To: : Duncan Haynes -
Subject: . o FW: Colebraok iakes festivals our ref21/514461/NAMP

" From: Jilis p
‘Sent: 29 September 2021 13 16 :
To: John McCullough <John. McCuHough@MldKent gov. uks
Cc: Duhcan Haynes <Duncan,Haynes@MidKent.gov.ule>
- Subject Re: Co!ebrook lakes festlvals our ref21/514461/NAMP

John.

_Thank you foryour respo‘nse.‘l was not really expecting a response so am very grateful.

‘ My add ress is * "--n-w e il

My home number - (Eonilinnes
Mobhile- SBIBAINERG,

_ _ . . _ ‘

l am not the best complamant | did not take note ofdates as | assumed these were one events. What | believe to be. i

music fastivals were horrendous Too many suceessive nights, far too late and nonsy The faurgrouncl dld not cause .
" me a problem, ' ~

Regards -

I Orlgmal Message ~--- - ‘ -
From "John McCuIIough" <John McCulIough@MldKent g0y, uk>

lu'. X
Cci "Duncan Haynes ?:Duncan Havnes@M:dKent BOV. uk>

Pege 51




Appendix B

Sent: Tuesday, 28 Sep, 21 At 14: a2
Subject Co[ebrook £akes festrva?s our ref21/514461/NAMP

-m
Could you please give my your add ress and contact number I have been mContact wrth other complamants who are -
.bllnd carbon copred mto group emails to pro’cect privacy. i will add you to this list gomg forward ' o

Also if you could fillin emalf i sent ’co others earirerthat wil allow myselfand Duncan Haynes to puH the evidence
: ’cogether The info.we need i5... ‘ . :

AL, o . : E . o g ettt - ot
The EP team are working to try and gather in'fermati'o'n to determine the best course of action based on evidence. -
To this end we need everyone to assist and give us tha information we need. If you have not ALREADY responded to
this email could you please do 50 as soon as possible. Please relate 1t to each of the events so we know if orie, two,

. threeor all events caused you noise issues. Only put down the dates on which you disturbed as just ”havmg an
Issue’ " with the event ‘takrng placei is not sufﬂcrent we need to- establlsh Wthh events caused issues o which groups .

of complarnants 50 we can bujld up a COmpIete plcture

The response rate sofar, has been a blt underwhelmlng and we need you suppert 1o determrne ‘the best course of
- action for the council to take in relation to the complalnts So please. gwe respondmg to my email (cop\ed below) a

- pnonty for your time so-that we can proceed

fyou would like to dlscuss thrs or any other matter further please contact me atthe address emall or teiephone

numbergwen below _' ; - T
Eest regerds, ‘ S
~John McCuIIough | ' o IR - - ._ T
John McCulrough BSc (Hons) IVISc MCIEH CERVH mioa" I o "‘”«.x o
Mlid Kent Shared Service, R S S
Seni'c')rlrf.nvironmental_ Health_dfﬁcer

T: 01622 602767

E;john.rncc'uIldurzh@midk'ent.gov.uk_
 Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN1 1RS o _ ' y o . , : S

www.tunbridgewells_-.gov‘.uk o S

g ot BanEL

Tunbridge
s@aﬁs agm@

N, iw;wk

From: Jchn McCuIlough' :

Sent: 21 September 202113: 12 ' , ;
“To: Hugo Pound (Cllr} <Hugo.Pound @TunbridgeWells.gov.uk>; paul barrmgton kmg@kent gov. uk <paul.barrington-

»

kinp@helt, wov.uk>; ‘Bob Backhiouse {bublawhouse @gneiiluging’ < imuum.ixnuu.u_rws-..nmn Ll Gary, SLK,\IEH“JUH

<@Gary. Stevenson@TunbndgeweIls gov.uk>; Hugh Patterson (CI[r) <Hugh. Patterson@ unbrldgeWells gov.uks; Lance
P@ge 52 |

T T e



Appendix_B

Goodsh:p lClIr) <Lance. Goodshlo@TunbrldgeWells gov.uks

~ Ce: Duncan Haynes <Duncan.Haynes@MidKent.gov.uk>; Tracey Beattle < racey,Beattre@M id! Cent. gov. ylk
Subject: Latest Event at Colebrock La kes North Farm on Saturday 20th September our ref 21/515028/NAMP

Update 25th August 2021

Al
Some new people have been added to the circulation list. | have blind carbon copied. you into th|s email to protect

your privacy as nobody else will be able to see your email address. There have been previous updates detailing the
Environmental Protections actions and options for contro! atc, If you need this historic info pleese contact me and .
- can farward you (mdrvrdually} coples of |mportant emails. :

There was.an event Held on 17 September that was. agam monitored bythe Environmental Protectron Team. We o

are had a new set of complalnts which I have added to the mrculatron Irst e

LI T o ey J,x i ev, #m&'

. What would be useful tousis detalls that relate to events. We need to know what you actually heard and observed -

directly (no third- -party information or general supportive comments just-focused on actual ﬁrst—hand ewdence) as
this is fundamental m gettmg to the facts of the case and for us bu:ldlng acass. :

There have been four events and we will be tr\/lng to plece together mformatlon relating to the num ber of speaker

systems the orientation of the speaker systems etc to get to a better understanding of what happened and why The

four dates Were,

e 7n9thugu‘stzoz1 '
e 14-16" August 2021
‘s 27-29% August

-'.. 18/19% September

The mformatlon we need for each date is (do not Clle respond to all as this will make your mformatron avallable to -

all ENSURE that you ‘send your comments toLhn mcculloueh@mrdkent gav.uk’ and duncan. havnes@mldkent gov.uk

: Your Name Address and Postcode : ‘
What time did you frrst notlce noise from the event in questlon (If you drd not notice please mdrcate this as
Cwell) S : -
What was the Iast time you notrced noise from the event and questmn
A brief descrrptlon of what you could hear. : :
Was the neise uniform or.did it go up and down.
Were there any specifieally bad times when it appeared Worse
How it disturbed you during the day {where, and how! _
How it disturbed you at night {did you have wmdows open or closed etc}
: Any other comments on the naise that you think would be useful to usin assessmg the |mpact

Mo

V.ooNGwmaEW®

fyou would like to discuss thls or any other matter further please cantact me at the address, email or telephone
. number gwen below o

N Best regards.

"John McCu!lough

, John McCuIlough BSc {Hons N[Sc MCIEH CEnvH MIOA
Mid Kent Shared Service | |

S'enlor Environmental Health Officer

Page 53 "




Appendix B

T: 01622 602767

E: john.mccullough@midkent.gov.uk

Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TNL 1RS 

www tunbridgewells.gov.uk

; Tamhr o
d Wiy Egm@% |

Sent: 26 September 2021 17 11 . : _
To: John McCullough <John. McCul]oughOMldKentgov ul<> L -
" Cés Duncan Haynes <Duncan, Havnes@l\deent gov,uk> o

*. Subject: Colehrook lakes festivals-

1

Dear Mr McCquough / Mr HaYnes

- lam sorry to trouble you. | ami told that you are the gent!eman to wrlte to reaardlng noise pollutlon from events at
~ Colebrook lakes. o - . , - o

T live on the Knigh-ts Wood development. My post code im

There were three weekends durmg August and one waekend in September that were made qmte mlserable by the

festival,

7

| have ‘a,yeun_g son who has a'bedtime’of 7:36. The anUsic_j was very loud and.disturbad his sleep. The music as | recall
,went on well past midnight. Even shutting the windows on a warm night did 'not- really help. :

I felt it unreaso nable that we ware: subjected to this noise for several consecutlve ntghts over several weelkends
within a short perlod of time. If that level of nmse Is be generated it should be very occasmna! and noton

‘ ‘consecutlve nrghts

Tam alarmed to-hear that there are plans foran even greater number of mghtt:me events next year Itis very unfa|r’

_on the nelghbours | am hoping that this is not true.
‘As this. housing estate has a rep_uteble pr_imary‘school there are lots of yoeng" famities in the immediate vicinity. _' -

' As we are clrosle to the hospite!'we ha\)e a number of NHS statf who work shifts. .

‘I wouid therefore Ilke to reglsler my objectlon to Foud music. bemg played at Co]ebrook Lakes. s there anythmg lcan

do to prevent It7

* Sent via BT Email App ' . - h .

Page 54 -



Appendix B

Duncan Haynes
“

- From: . o * John McCullough * y
- Sent: "~ 01 Octgber 2027 10:52
To: , - Duncan Haynes
Subject: -~ . _ FW: Colebrooks Lakes
From: Mﬁﬂmﬂlﬁh

Sent: 28 September 2021 18:50 =
“To: John McCullough <john. McCuIIough@MrdKent gov.ule>
j Subject Colebmoks Lakes .

' .Hello,
| would like to log my obje::tlon to further Ioud mu5|c events at Colebrooks La I<es, after bemg lkept awake at night

. over these dates . : . . - - . . -

7 — 9th August 2021 | o R ,
14-16th August 2021, . . -~ o ‘ R ‘ |
27-29th August Lo S L T
18/19th September :

- The noise started in the afternoons/evemnga and could clearly be heard from around
6/7pm until around 2/3am Due to the warm weather.our wmdows were open so we

~ could hear it more, - .
‘The music was Very loud and had a hard bass, which didn’t help. when my famlly and l

were frying to sleep. It was worse from.arotind 10pm onwards.

if the music finished at midnight-or could at Ieast he turned down, it wouldn't have been such an jssue. .

I certalnly don't ohject to peaple enjoymg autside music events, especrally as we have all missad the fun. thmgs in .7
-life but more cansideration needs to be made for the peopie wha live around the venue, '

E .‘ IVIy namem

‘With-l(i_ndé"stRegards o o _ . T
) Il. i .~a .- - . . B . R . ) ) i . B - - o . 1

“Sent from my iPhone

Page 55




Appendix B




AppendixB

'-‘D'uncanHaznes : - SR S .
From: .. John McCullough ' ' o '
. Sent; I - 0TQctober 2027 10:52
" Tat : o Duncan Haynes '
~ Subject: . . _ FW Colebrook Lakes, North Farm our ref 21/514461/NAMP
O LA
‘Fl‘om calusn ’ il . .’.ﬁ'_‘.-‘i-r—"‘-‘,.'.-a-;-.-:'-—i:_;.--
Sent: 28 September 2021 17: 54
" Te: John McCullotigh <Jonn. McCullough@MldKent gov.uk>
- Cc: Duncan Haynes <Duncan. Haynes@MidKent.gov.uk>. ;
Subject: Re: Colebrook Lakes ‘North Farm our ref21/514461/NAMP :
'On'28Sep 2021, at 17:15, John McCullaugh <John,i\ﬂ"cCuIloue"h@midlcent.gov.uks_wrote: s oho g
: i have found your emarl It dld net grve your house number nor phone contact
Best regards, . T L s e
John_lvlcCuliou_gh EP Team -
. Erom: John McCuIIough | r
Sent: 28 September 2021 17: os
To:' i : i L e }L
. Ce Duncan Haynes <Dunc:an Havnes@MldKent gov. uJ<> S !
fSub;ect Colebrook Lakes, North Farm - our ref 21/5 14461/NAMP :
Sorry but | did not receive an emau from you giving the detalls Could you please resend the I
- mforrnation asthls would be most useful to my col eague andl. ~ . o {
Pon't forget to putan address and contact telephone number on your reply as we have no, detaﬂs L i | 7 E :_
Hfrom you.. : o { 5
. Best reg‘ards,- : o ' _ » . ' . ‘ |
J ohn McCuIlough BSe¢ (Hons) MSc MCIEH CEan MIOA ‘ . o . _
Mid Kent Shared Service ‘ _ . ' : ‘ ' o
Senior P1'1v11~nﬂ‘1‘1‘leﬂfﬁ1 Hezlth ("\chpr . . - : o 3 1

T: 01622 602767

Pagesz . |




Append_ix B

| E: john. mccullough@mldkent gov. ik

. Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN1 IRS
www.tunbridgewells.gov. uk

<|mage001 png>

<'rmége0027.j pg>

<jirr1-ag_e003.png>

Sent: 23 September 2021 19 22 ' : .

"To:lJohn McCuIIough <John. McCu[IouEh@MldKen‘c govqu > e s m\e. #
- Cc: Duncan Haynes <Duncan, Havnes@MdKent g0V, ul> ' ' o
. VSubject Re: Colebrook Lakes, North Farm our ref 21/514461/NAMP

Dear Sirs, : : :
S Im tr‘avelmg m Europe this week but have just sent’ you an ema|l W|th my mputs

“Very unhappy about thqse'regular intrusions in.oGr ‘quallty of hfe.

~ Thanks for-your assistance - happy to dis;u'ss'fu rther as I'm sure is my wife.

‘ l .' l' .

H

‘wrote:

. Idon't have and address or'phone number for you. could you put this'on the replyto -

the email I sentyou to give info on each of the four events that have been

: held.. Thls woulcl be Very useful for us.

If you woulcl I|I<e to dlscuss thls or anyﬂpthﬁr.matter furtherﬁp case oggg%&gﬁg%mg

el R

address, email or telephone number glven below'

- Johi McCulIough BSc (Hons) MSC MCIEH CEan MIOA

Mid Kent Shared Service

Senior Enwr{)nmental Health Of[ic:er
T: 01622 602767

E: john. mccuﬂough(b,imdkent gov. uk

"Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN1 1RS
" www.hunbridgewells.gov. uk
- <|mage001 png:»

A <1mageOO-2.Jpg> .

<image_003-.png$ | . : : l L

Page 58

?4

e

-u.,»;w

0On23 Sep 2021 at 17:28, John IVIcCuIIough <John McCuHough@mldkent gov ule> s Y




Du'nca,n Haznes ,

- From; - ' o - John McCuIlough
Sent: o . 01 October2021 10:53
To: L ~ Duncai Haynes

. Subject: - FW: Festival site

Appendix B

L e it m.-r-n--.- abmmm -

Sent: 26 September 20212038 '

© To: John McCuliough <John, McCuIlough@MldKent OV, uk> -

.Subject. Féstival site

o ' . %

_ Every fight it was s on the bass travelled overto nursery rd and kept us and our chlldren up, One mght we e\ren heard

what Craig Charles said over the mic, it was that faud.

The noise tended to be about 10-1 at its worst. But there were a couple of nights when it went on fater. The nolse -

- was fairly uniform and we were out during the night sa it did not disturb us, but it mgnrfrcantl\/ disturbed our nrghts _

We shit ali the wmdows but it wasg the bass that was reaﬂy invasive so lt madle little difference |fwe re honest

.~ I'really hope It's he!d somewhiere else next year, it made a nuimber of nights and absolute nightmare!-

- Sorry to'moa'n,.l'_t just made our lives réally tricky and sleep deprived du ring'that- period.

Thanks;

n. i l m - m

CHI All, to support a review of the license for Colebrook Park nexi year by TWBC Borough Councillors we need y‘our
- help to subm|t the following information to the TWBC enwronmental ofﬂcers

-iWBL need to k_now wiiat you actually heard ana observed djrectiy and now this 'ir'npactéd you and your tanuly.

Page 59




Appendix B

There have been four events at Colebrooks Lakes over the: summer and we W|II be trylng to piece together
information relating to the number of speaker systems the orientation ofthe spea ker systems etc to get to a better

. understandmg of what happened and why.,

- The four dates were: ' - ‘- - o . c
7 —9th August 2021 - ' ' ‘ ' . ' ‘

14-16th August 2021 -

27-29th August

 1B/19th September

The fnformation we ne_ed for each da,te is:

Your Name Address and Pastcode. :

- What time did you first notice nolsé from the event in questron {if you did hot notice please mducate this as well)
- What was the last time you noticed noise from the event and questlon : .

-A brlefdescrlptron of what you could hear, . : :

- Was the noise uniform or did it go up and dpwn. , _

- Were there any spécifically bad times when it appedred worse. R I g

. ~Haw it disturbed you during the day {(where, and how) S - - T :

" - How it disturbed.yeu at night {did you have windows open or r closed. et(;) T ST

- Any other comments on the nmse that you thmk would be useful to usin assessmg the |mpact

" Please send your comments to [ohn mccu[louph@mmlkent OV, uk and Hi AII to support a review of the iicense For

Colebrook Park next year hy TWBC Borough Councillors we need your help to submlt the fellowmg mformatlon to

the TWBC enwronmental offlcers

TWBC"heed to know-what you‘actually heard and abserved dir.ettly-and how this impected you and youffamily.

" There have been four events at Coiebrooks Lakes over the summer and we W|[l be trymg to pfece together o
informatian relating to the number of speaker systems the orrentatlon ofthe speaker systems etctogettoa bette_r

understandmg ofwhat happened and why,

The four dates were:

7 - 9th August 2021

14-16th August 2021 -

- 27-29th August K . } o
© 18/19th Septeniber ' . . - o |

' 'The‘i_njfo'rmati‘on we needffer each date is: -

Your Name Address and Postcode -
S What ‘time did you first notice noise from the event in question, (Ifyou did not notlce please indicate thls as weﬂfw )
- What was the last time you noticed noise from the event and questlon

- - Abrief descnpilon of what you could hear. -

- Was the noise uniform or-did it go up.and down

- - Were there any specifically bad times when it. appea red worse.

- How it disturbed you during the day (where and how)

- How it disturbed you at night (dld you have windows open or closed etc)

-Any other eomments on the noise that you thmk would be useful to us’ m assessmg the |mpact

v

" Thank you In advance for yqur-help w;th prqwdllngl .your |m pact statement.

Thank you in advance for your help with providing Vour impact statement.

'. - Page 60



Appendix B

Duncan Haynes e AR
- . R . :
From: : S John McCullough
 Sent: ‘ : 01 Octcber 2021 10:53
To: ‘ .. Duncan Haynes ‘
" Subject: = - : - FW: Chasing Information on my previous reguest for information - E\rents at

Colebrook Lakes North Farm

P L arnya

Sent: 27 September 2021 09 30 -
© To: John McCullough <lohn. McCuIIough@MldKent gov. uk:>

Subject: Re Chasrng Informetron on my prewous request for information - Events at Colebrook Lakes, North Fari"n’”' >

2

- Dear.Mr McCullough
Thanks for the remlnder, and apolog|es for not havmg had the time to reply sooner

We can only help with the Iatter two dates, as prlor to the August Bank Holrday weekend we had not known of the

existence of Colebrook Park. Prior to the BH weekend, whenever we had.heard any thumpmg bass or music-type
sounds we'd assumed it had come from maybe informal gatherings in the fields befow er from the pubs on London

Road or passing cars. As you know, |t can be dn‘ﬂcult to pmpomt accurately where nofse comes from from a

distance, = - o

The noise from the events over the BH weekend and 18/19 September were pretty srmriar in terms of duratmn and

volume 50 Jl answer your ] questrons for both events together.

., b Early to ‘mid- aftemoen Both weekends we had been trdymg up the garden a. necessary task we had 1o curtail
' beca use of the eonstant norse ofthe bess and "music” which made being outdOOrs ternbly unpleasant

‘¢ We could still hear the noise at 1me over our terewsron but had to go to bed soon after S0 dld not stay up
. wartmg for the noise to abate .

. pl. .Thumping bass, indistinct "musicf‘ of the pedestrian, repetitive, tuneless nightclub variety..
e. Mostiyrun-iform but intermittently the bass would get louder and be more obtrusive.

f. Not that we noticed; It was a c—:onstant;backdrop.

g- As'mentioned in b, we noticed it from the early afternoon onwards as we were having lunch in the ‘gerden When .

It continued all afterncon as we tried to do the gardening, | Googled "events in the area" and that's how we- learnt of
Coiebrook Park's existence. Even indoors it was audible, so we had 10 open fewer windows than we wanted (they
were both rather warm weekends) and also put on some music of our own o mask the noise, ' :

~h. The disturbznce at nrght was worse, unsurpr:srngly, given the reductron in traffic and general norse We could
- hear the bass over our television. We had all windows closed but could hear the "music" from all rooms of the

house {whether facing the woods or at the front of the house). At bedtime we had to sleep without fresh air (ie with-
windows tightly shut) and with earplugs and still my husbang could hear the "musrc" so we had to switch a fan an

- to further mask the norse

‘Page 61




Appendix B

l. As]sald, the noise was audible from all rooms of the house, which was why we couldn't fathom where it might be
coming from until | twrgged that It must be some sort of organised eVentWand the surrcunding roads are
quiet residential, almost semi-rural areas, and 1 imagine that is the primary attraction and reason why the residents
chose to live here. The sortof music and noise emanating from Colebrook Park's events Is inappropriate and.

~disproportionate, If | wanted to hear such Insipid, cacophonous "musm" I'd have bought a flat in a town centre
close toa garden~varlety nlghtclub lnstead

| hope these deta:ls are sufficient for vour purpose, and can we thank you for taking our complaintso - -'
seriously. Now that we know our complaint won't just fall on deaf esrs, we!ll make a better note of any future noise
disturbances. Regrettably, we hadn't taken more detailed notice of earlier instances and had just wrltten them off

.ds one- off end- of—lockdown parties.

' Pleaselet us know if you need any further clarification. . s v N

Many tha nks,

© On Thu, Sep 23, 2021 at 4:43 PM John McCullough <John.McCulloush@midkent.sov.uk> wrote:

Al, -

The EP team are workmg to tryr and gather information- to delermme the bes‘c course of action based on

evidence. Tothis end we need everyone to assist and give us the information we need. If you have not ALREADY-
responded to this emait could you please do so as soon as possible, Please relate it to each of the events 50 we
know if ane, two, three or all events caused you noise issues. Only put dowrthe dates‘on which you disturbed as
just “having an issue” with the avent takmg place is not sufficient we need to. estabhsh which events caused issues
to whtch groups of complarnants 50 we can build up a complete prcture : :

gl e AT

' The response rate, so far, has been a bit’ underwhelmmg and we need you support o deLermme the best course Uf :

“action for the couna! to take in relation to the complaints; So please give respondlng to my email (copied below) a
priority for your time so that we can proceed : , ,

If you wou!cl like to discuss thls arany other matter further p[ease contact me at the address emall or telephone
number given below : . . :

M

Best regards,

John McCullough BSc (Hons) MSc MCIEH CEnvH MIOA

Page 62



Appendix B

Senior En_vironmental I—Ieé.lth Officer
T: 01622 602767 | '_ o |

E' john. mccull@ugh@mldkent 2OV, uk

Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN11RS l'

www.tunbridgewells. gov.uk

Funbridge N\

- Wells pyoups

%5 Lamunet .

i From: John McCuilOugh
Sent: 21 September 2021 13:12

- Ta: Hugo Pound. (Cilr) <Hugo. Pound@TunbridgeWells Fov. Uk pau[ barrmgton kmg@kent BOV. uk'

" <paul:barrington- king@kent.gov, uk>: 'Bob Backhouse (bobbackhouse@gmail cam)' <bobbackhouse@gmall com?
Gary Stevenson <Gary.Stevenson@Tunbridgewells.gov.uk>;. Mugh Patterson’{Cllr)

<Hugh Patterson@TunbridgeWells.gov.uk>; Lance Goodshlp (€lir) 2Lance, Goedshlg@TﬂnbndgeWe Ils.gov:uk > _
Ce::Duncan Haynes <Duncan, Haynes@MidKent.gov.uk>; Tracéy Beattie <T racgy. eat’ae@i\/!_g ent.goviuks -
Subject. Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our refZl/SlSOZS/NAN!P

‘ Update 25th August 2021

Al

Some new pEOpIe have been added to the mrcu!atlon list. | have blind carbon copled you into thls ema;l to protect
your privacy as nobody else will be able to see your email address. There have been previous updates detailing the
Environmental Protections actions and options for control etc, If you need this hlstonc mfo please contact me and |

can forward you {md:wdually) copres of nmportant emails:

There was an. event held on 17" Saptember that was -again monltored hy the Environmental Protectmn Team We
are-had a new set af complaints which | have added to the cnrquatlon list.

What would be useful to usis detalls that relate to events. We need to kriow what you actually heard anci
observed direttly (no third-party information or general supportwe comments just focused on actual first- hand
. ewdence) as this is fundamental in gettmg to the facts ofthe case and for us bu”dmg d case. '

There, 'have been four events and we will be trying to piece together Information relating to the number of speaker
systams the orientation of the speaker systems etc to Eet to a better understandlng of what happened and -
why The four dates were, -

Page 63




Appendix B

+ 7-9" August 2021

o 14-16™ August 2021

e 2729 August
e 18/19" September

The mformatton we nead for each date Is {do not click-respond to all as this will make your mfermation availa ble to
~all ENSURE that you send your comments to john.mccullough@midkent.gov.uk and

duncan.haynés@midkent.gov.uk )

a. Your Name Address and Postcode
. What time did you flrst natice noise from the event in questron (Ifyou dld not notice please mdicate thisas

- well) :
.What was the last tlme youl noticed noise from the event and questlon
. A brief description of what-you could hear. ‘ :
"Was the noise uniform or did it go up and down. :
Were there any specn‘mally bad times when it appeared worse.
How it disturbed you during the day {where and how)
How it disturbed you at night {did you have windows open or closed ete}
Any other comments on the noise that you thlnk weuld be useful fousin assessmg the im pact

B=2

F®m e e,

' “ifyou would like to discuss this ar any other matter further piease contac:t me at the address, email or telephone
nu mber glven below. : : .o

Best regards,

John McCuIleugh BSe_(Hone) MSe MCIEH C-EIlIYH!MIOlA
1 Mid Kezfr Shared Sefvice | |
_ Semm Env1r0nmental Health Officer

T: 01622 602767

.E mhn mccui]ouﬁh@mldkent 20V, uk

{ Town Hell Royal Tunbndge Wells, Kent TN11RS

| W, tunbndgeweﬂs }-;rov uk

"Page 64



Appendix B o

Duncan Haynes -~ _ - - L .
" From: 7 John McCullough ’ '

Sent: =~ . ‘ . 01 October 2021 10:54
CTor . Duncan Haynes :
" Subject: f © . PW: Latest Event-at Colebrook Lekes North Farm on Saturday 20th September our

ref 2'!/5‘1 5028/NAMP Update 25th August 2021,

" From: Lance Goodshlp (CI r) <Lance Goodsmp@TunbndgeWells gov uk>
. Sent: 27 September 2021 08:29 '
- To: John McCullough <John McCuIlough@MldKent gov uks; Duncan Haynes <Duncan. Haynes@MrdKent gov.uk>
‘ Subject Re: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes North Farm on Saturday 20th September aur ref21/515028/NAMP
_ ‘Update 25th August w021 - S .

~ Dear John / Duncan, . -

'Pleaseseebelowf'c:rmysu'bmi'ssion. ' T

e ‘-YeurNameAddressandPostcode : " L o - I ]

o Llance Goodship ot
. o ‘ '
+ What time did vou first notice n0|se from the event in C{UES’HOh (!fyou dld not notrce please mdlcate thisas
- well) - ‘ : i, . ,

" - 7-9" August 2021 - from around late afternoon onwards
e 14-16% August 2021 - from around late afternoon anwards
s 27-29" August - 1 went away for the weekend to avoid belng im pected by the nmse from the
 musicevents, ) :
" 12?1/19m September from around 7 30pm onwards

_What_was the I_ast time you n_otrced noise from the eventand questi_on.

s 7-9"MAugust 2021 - just after midnight
e 14 16 August 2021 around 1am to 2am
e 27-20" August | went it 2away forthe weekend to-avoid bemg |mpacted by the noise from the music
. events, | . :
. 18/19th September araund 10: 30pm

*

A brlefdescnptlon of what you could hear,
Jo 79" August 2021 contmuous music with the same monetonous tones W|th a strong bass - g

o 14-16™ Algust 2021 - continlous music WIth the.same monotonous tones with a strong bass -

o 27-29" August - [went away forthe weekend to avoid being: lmparted by the noise from the music. j

© events, B

o 187197 September - contmuods music with a strong bass

@

‘Was the noise uniform or did it g0 up and aown.

p@geas




Appendix B

. Music impact was farrly unnforrn expect for the weekend of the 14-16th August where it was much more
noticeable in volume both mdoors and in the garden, particularly after 9pm
+ ‘Were there any spemfcallv bad times when it appeared worse,

o On the 14-16th AuguSt from around 9pm to j_ust after midnight -
e Howlt disturbed you d;uring the day (where, and how}

-~

l had’ to close all the wmdows and couldn't use. my garden due to the noise lmpact Bulld up of heat m the
_ house from not being able to open the windows also had a stress impact. :
* Howi disturbed you at nlght (dld you have wrndows open or clesed etc)

1 closed all the wmdows’and air vents to try and reduce the noise :mpac’c 50 myself, my wife and son could
sleep, However, even with triple glazed wrndows the noise was too’ ‘disturbing and we couldn't getto sfeep until

“-around 3am on-the weekend of the 14-16th August which s why we decided we had to book a last mlnute trip away

for the following event on the 27- 25th August.
e Any other comments on the noise that you think would be useful to us in assessing thé |mpact

. Background noise is what you expect toa certaln degree in a semi-urban area, however the type of sound w:th

" continuous monotonous bass beat sound is actually very: stressful when you are trying to relax at home after a busy

week at work when it goes on hours on end; All the other live-music eventsin Tunbridge Wells that | am aware of

‘ ‘end ataround 10; BOpm which seems the right balance and they don'trun over all ‘the bank hollday weakends in"the
‘summetr. The balance of the license for- Colebrooks Lakes saerns dlsproportlonate to how welicense the other ilve

music events within the urban areas of Tun brldge Wells in terms of the numbgr of events’ ailowed and a]so for it to

‘:goonafterllpm S

Regards, , _ _
lance’ : et - o S
) ‘ B T A ]

'From lohn McCuliough .
_ Sent: 21 September 2021 13:11 : -
To: Hugo Pound (ClIry; paul barrmgton |<rng@kent gov.uk;; 'Bob Backhouse (bobbackhouse@gmall com)' Gary

Stevenson; Hugh Patterson (Cllr); Lance Goodshlp (Cllr)

. Cc' Duncan Haynes; Tracey Beattie ’ ) ‘
Subject: Latest Event at Colebrook Lz kes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our rerC 21/515028/NA|VIP

. Update 25th August 2021 o N o v
All,

Some new people have been added to the circulation list. .1 have blind carbon copied you into this email to protect
your privacy as nobody else will be able to see your email address. There have béen previous updates detailing the

Environmental Protections actions and options for control ete. If you need th|s hlstorlc info p!ease contact me and |

can forward you (|nd|vrdua!ly) copies of |mportant amalls.

4

-~ There was an gvent held on 17 September that was agdln monitored by the Envrronmental Protection Team. We
are.had a new set of comp[alnts which I have added to the mrcu!atlon list.

Pege 66



- why. The four dates were,

Appendix B

) What would be useful to usis details that relate to events. We nead to know what you actually heard and observed

directly (no third- ~party information or general supportive comments just focused on actual first-hand ewdence) as -’
thisis fundamentai in gettmg to the facts of the case and for us building a case.

There have been four events and we will be trymg to piece together Inforrnatlon relatingto the number of speaker _'
systems the orientation of the speaker systems stctogettoa better understandmg of what happened and -

e 7-9"August 2021 o e

. '14 16" August 2021 T
e 27-29" August - I I

»  18/19™ September .

.'The |nformatzon we need for each date is {do not click respond to aII as th|s will make your information avallable to

;e

‘a. Your Name Address and Postcode C
- What time dld you first notlce noise from the event in quest|on (If you dld not notice please mdrcate th|s as

well) - .

What was the last time you notlced noise from the event and questlon

A brief description of what you could hear.

Was the noise uniform or.did it go up and down..

Were there any spemﬁca fy bad timas when it appeared WOrse.

How It disturbed you during the day (where, and how)
'How It.disturbed yau at night (did you have windows open or closed etc)

-Any ether commenits on the noise that you think weuld be useful to us in assessmg the impact:

i

T@ oo o

: If you would like to discuss thls or any other matter fu rther pleasé contact me at the address emanl ortelephonei
number gwen below : : _

Best regards,

' John McCullough BSc (Hons) MSe MCIEII CEHVH MIOA
Mid Kent Shared Service ,
Senior Environmental Health Ofﬂcer
T: 01622 602767 _ :
- F: 1ohn mecullough@midkent govuk .
Town Hall, Royal T‘unbndge Wells, Kent, TNI lRS

L WWW. ‘runbnd,eewells ZOY. uk o

‘e%,:z on

5@'—, 5 i:srmez:i& |

- Page 67 |

&Il ENSURE that you send your comments to jehn, mccullom&@mrdl<ent gov ulk and duncan havnes@mrdkent 2OV. uk -




| Appendix B

- Page 68




Appendix B

Il'I'.zluncan Haynes

- Frorm: ‘ ~ John McCullough
.. Sent: " 01 October 2027 10:54 )
S Ter - Duncan Haynes.
Subject: B o FW Colebrook lakes festrvals

. ,.-,.ﬂnnn::muu._ .

- From: e “
 Sent: 26 September 2021 17 11 .
- To John McCullough <John.McCullough@MidKent.gov.uk>
o Cc*‘Duncan Haynes <Duncan. Haynes@M|dt<ent gov. uk>

- Subject: Colebrook lakes festrvais o

Dear Mr Mcé.ullough / Mr Haynes.

lam sorry to troub[e ycu fam told that you are the gentleman to wrlte to regardlng noise pollutlon from events at
Colebrook lakes. . . o

N . .

[ live-on the Knights Wood development. My post code is o

. There were three weekends durmg August and one weekend in September that were made quite mlserable by’ the .' :

festival. _- t . ‘

| have a young son whao has a bedtime of 7: 30. The musrc was very loud-and dasturbed his sleep The music as | recall

went on well past mldmght Even shutting the wmdows oh a warm mght did not really help.

AN

| elt it unreasonable that we were subjectecl to this nolse for several consecutive mghts aver several weekends
within a short period of time, If that level of noise is be genérated it should be very occasmnal and not on

consecutwe nights. v

['am a?armed to hear that there are plans for an even greater number of mghtttme events next year It-is very unfalr

on the nerghbours | am hoping that this is not true.
* As this housing estate has a reputable primary schocl there are lots of young families in the immediate vicinity.

| 'Plage' 69 .

SeseR



Appendix B
 As we are close o the hospital we have a humber of NHS staff who work shifts.
7 | would therefore like to register my objection to loud music being played at Colebrook Lakes. is there anything | can
do to prevent it? o , o : ' - ' -

Sent via BT EmaHApp ,

WA

~ Page 70




Appendix B

2

Duncan Haynes - o :
‘From: o ' John McCullough

Sent: o 01 October 2021 10 54
- Tox - S Duncan Haynes

Subject: : . FW; Colebrook Events

- From: .' B T A T Y a3 et ety ey bbb g e
Sent: 26 September 2021 15:28 ' :
" Ta: John McCullough <John McCulIough@MdKent gov uk> Duncan Haynes <Duncan Haynes@MldKent gov uk:—

Subject Colebrook Events

v '

‘ Dear Mr Mc_.CUIloug‘h

re: que brook Park

sl g ‘w.,.i‘.nc-mn‘#

- Your list of events at Colebrook seems to be lncomplete There was a flfth event Whrch was held from 20 22 August

: We were ﬂrst disturbed by the loud music,. heavy hass and overly loud p/a systems on Saturday 7 August We
belleved this tp be a local résidents' wedding célebration.and therefore did not make a formal complaint as it would

“have been a 'one-off'. The disturbance started at tunchtime - Just as our'own family lunch.began in our garden The .

disturbance was non-stap until 3am. The music, bass and p/a system could clearly he heard during the whole event
and seemed to be worse once the A21 traffic lessened atabout 9pm. We had, by then, retired to the house and -
closed all of our windows in an- attempt to escape the neise - to no avail, Even with windows closed, the n0|5e could

be clearly heard over the tv and untfl 3am As a side note, it was a very warm n:ght and having to close the wmdows'

was extremely |nc0nven|en’c

We had the exact same experlence on Sunday 8 August and decnded to investigate. We found the Colebrock event

'advertlsed on social med|a and reallsed that this was one of several events planned by the venue durmg the com:ng -

.month

Agaim, we did not complain as we firmly believed that there would have been numerous complaints from the local -+ -

' cor‘h‘munlty about tha event an‘d that the Councll would step in to addrass the nc'ise issue before the next event.

A The noise was disturbing agam on 13 August We drove the Iocal area as it sounded as though someone was sitting
n their car close to our house with their radio biaring. Finding nobody, we realised that it was another Colebrook
‘event and the Council had, desp|te numercus complamts about the previous event; failed to take steps to reduce -

the noise.

* Agaln, we could clearly hear music, bass and p/a systems until 3am on the Friday and Saturday, both in ourgarden'
during the day and during the evening; inside with windows closed and over the tv. We are unsure of the time the
disturbance started en the Friday and Saturday or stopped on the Sunday as we failed to make a note of it. We
made 3 formal cempiaint to the Counml about thlS eventdue to sleep depnvat:on

We were, agam disturbed from around Junchtime an Fr:day 20 Augusl until the early hours we are unsure of the
hours on Saturday and untll lamon Sunday 22 August, We had the same problems as onthe pre\nous two -

Page 71




__ Appendix B

’

evenfs. The music on this event was slightly- qureter than on the prewous two events but we cc:nuld still clearly hear it
and the bass and p/a systems seemed to bejust as loud as before

The event on 27, 28 and 29 were Just as d|st‘urb_:ng - particlar_lv the bass noise. We are unsure of times for the Friday _‘
and Sunday but were disturbed until 3am on the Saturday night. Again, over tv and windows closed. :

Fortunately, we were away'over the weelkend of the 17th S'e'ptem ber when the [ast event took place. - '

. 'I“o be clear, when we say we are unsure ofthe times of d|sturbances, thlS is not because we were not dlsturbed We
. were disturbed for the whole duration of all events during August. We did not, unfortunately, make a note ofall -
startmg and fmlshmg times for all of the 'festlvals ; :

ou g ﬂ!ﬁf"’?ﬁ
To sum up, for every weekend in August, the emoyment of our property, both mdoors and ouslde, w%s
: compromrsed due to excessrvely loud music, bass and p/a systems -

* Wenote that there are condrtlons contamed within the current Llcence that request the appointment of an acoustlc

consultant and that post event accoustic reports are submitted to the En\nronmental Health Team. These reports
E would be. in\raluable in relatlon to buﬂdmg a case if, mdeed ’the conditions refer to all events, which is unclear

' Regfards

T e s e WP,

 Page 72



- Du‘ncanHaxnés - . - : L o

Appendix B

“From: ‘ ' - John McCullough

Sent: - 01 October 2021 10:55

To: - SR Duncan Haynes

Subject: . ’ FW: Colebrook Lakes events

Sent: 25 September 2021 16 21

- Toi John McCuﬂough <John McCulIough@iVlldKent Bov. u|<> Duncan Haynes <Duncan Haynes@MldKent gov uk>

© 7 —9th August 2021 -

18!19th September Y s

27-29th August e

'Subject Colebrook Lakes avents

Thank goodness | heard nothmgthls weekend The wmd wafs blowrng from the South West 80 blew any noise away

I_hoaird hothiog this waékend. Again, the wind

¥

The noise woke me durmgthe nlght 2, BDam Fnday 27th and Saturday 28th about 1. SOam despite Wearmg ear plugs
and having the bedroom windows closed. ' It sounded as if it was very cloge by, it wag so Ioud Friday night | was so

tired | Just Went to a‘nother room to try to sleep.

Sunday 29+h - We went out for fhe day on Sunday 29th to avo|d the noise,-but when we came home, it was very, very
-loud, coming across in waves. Must have been as the wind direction was changing. It was worse when the wind was

blowing from the North East. | couldn't sit out in the garden because of the noise and |r13|de the house, I could hear
the beat above the sound of the TV and that was with all the wmdows closed B .

' .When ! went to bed, |closed the bedroom windows (We normally sleep with them open} and wore earplugs and yet it
still kept me awake. A relentless base beat: | live sbout 2 miles away and goodness knows how loud it was close- by

{was-se ahgryabout the dlsturbance | eontacted my, oounorllors and also the c;ouncni!ors for Sherwood.

ner "_ 'l-l""‘v__.»_ i

The noise was dudible from abouHOpm | thought atfirsta ne|ghbour was having a party, but realrsed it was rmmrng

__frorn North Farm direction. Again | wore earplugs and c:!osed my bedroom wmdow to get some slzep. Nowhers near

It just séams unfa]r and lmpacts on resrdents all across the area many of whom are unaware of Where tho sound is .
- travelling ﬂ”om .

‘the noise of the Alfresoo Festival, but stlll |ntru3|ve

- It seems like the remdents views don't matter, We had festlvals ovear 3 oonsooutwe weekends. Just good luok the
wmcl was blowmg away for 2 of the weekends. ‘

o am ‘dreading next ysar, | Would havs bookod o go away for the. weekend of the 27th 29th to avoid the AEfresco
Festival but itwas too expensive. | _ o : :

Page 73

H
i
E




Appendix B

i
‘
. i
' P
' .
a Lot
.
et
.
i
H
e
W
K .
woay .
.
.
;
v
. . H
. :
- i
. |
|
. :
. i
ar .
. i




Appendix B

Duncan Haynes

from: . = John McCulleugh
Sent: . 01 October 2021 10:56
Tos ' : ~ Duncan Haynes
Subject: o . " FW: Colebrock festivals

R T A

Sent; 24 September 2021 10‘23
"To: John McCullough <Johin. McCuIIough@MldKent gov, uI<>
_ Cc: Duncan Haynes <Duncan. Haynes@fvlld Kent. gov uk>
‘Subject: Colebrook festwals 7 : :

' Hello-)ohn,

There was a post on Nextdoor to the effect that feedback on the nmse nmsance of the festlvals at Colebrook !a kes

o ‘ ‘had been underwheimmg

1 ind this hard to accept, grven all the posts on soc:al medla at the time from people trying to sleep, or get their
children to sleep, or paclfy their anxious pets, or simply enjoy their Ielsure time wnthout the mcessant mMonetonous
thud thud thud that just went on relentlessly durmg thase events. »

Fam gmng to refer spemﬁcafly to Alfresc:o, that went on over the. entnre August bank hohday weekend The other .

festivals were audible, but for me in Sherwood, 1 wasn’t as badly affacted as by Alfresco

. Yes, you have heard from me i previous-\)ears about th?'s_ event, which goes fo show they have taken nothing on-
- board, and whatever spin they put on their noise mitigation measures, such as straw bales and the like, it’s totally
. ineffective. And what's more they have a licence to go on banging out the “music” until 3am. You wilt appreciate

what may sound like music at the event, is ;ust plercmg and unre!entmg bahgmg when it travels a distance, which lt ‘

V‘most certainly does.

i used ‘the online form on the council web5|te to register my n0|se complalnts after llpm on Frlday 27, Saturdav 28
B and Sunday 29 August and | ti‘ust those went aon record. . , : .

‘My name ah'd_ address a"re: ‘

e
SR

" The noise occurrad dufing the daytime in the afternoon of this event, and went on well after midnight. It seems to

'- increase after dark. Although the weather was hot, | shut all my wmdows which were double giazed. On each night i - ‘
- had to go downstairs and sleep on the sofa in the lounge as this room is the other side of the house to the direction .-

of the noise, and has the upper floor to insulate it. But I could still-hear it. However | was able to get to sleep,
through general exhaustion, some time in the early hours ofthe marning. Although from social media I know some
‘ peopfe continued to be dlsturbed .

it seems 50 frustratl ng that from a smgfe event a few years ago, ‘we are now subjected toa chain of festivals at th:s

iocation ali through the summer, dand the councii SBEMNS CUnlpiELBW nnpotent to do anythmg ahout it, iU SJust gomg

the other way."

Page 75

Y T




Appendix B

| do appreciate yg'u have fdug‘ht far us John I\/Ic(:ul'lough', so why has it escalated in this way?
| hope this email helps build the case.
Kind regards,

L ke s e g D
RO R VL ""';..\‘giﬁ"i:“" Ca
1
.

Page 76




Appendix B

Duncan Haynes

. From: . John Mc‘Cullotlgh
" Sent; : - 01 October 2021.10:56
To: s - Duncan Haynes :
Subject: = - FW Chasmg Information on my prewous request for lnformatlon Events at

Colebrook Lakes, North Farm

Sent: 24 September 2021 09 65 - ,
To: lohn McCullough <John. McCullough@MidKent.gov. uk> )
‘ Subject Re: Chasing Informatron on'my previous request forlnﬁ)rmatlon Events at Colebrook Lalkes, North Farm '

Hrlohh," o L
“Just acknowleclglng your requ‘est.

Super busy with work today, and |t Wl|| probably take mea l|ttle whlle to get all the information together asl' II need
to combine a few sources of information, Incl my calandar (some days we were away), and messages exchanged
“with nmghbours at the tlmes when we were collectwely most dlsturbed :

' _ ,Alrlght if lge_t_back to you over the weekEnd?

‘Chieers, :

. On Thu, 23 Sept 2021 at 16:43, John McCullough <John.McCullough @midkent,gov.uk> wrate:

All, -

The EP team are workmg to try and gather :nformatlon t0 determme the oest course of actton based on:

' '1eV|clen(:e To this end we need everyone to assist and glve us the information we need. Ifyou have not ALREADY
‘responded to this emall could you please do so as soon as possrble Please relate it to each of the events sowe
know if ane, two, three or all events caused you noise issues.. Only put down.the dates on which you dasturbed as.

just “having an 1$sug” with the event taking place is not sufficient we neecf to establlsh wh|ch events caused issues

_to Wthh groups. of complamants s0 we can bulld | up a complete plcture

| The response fate, so far, has been a bit underwhelrning and we need you support to detefmine the best course of
 action for the councll to take in relation to the complamts So please give responding to my email (copled below)
prlorlty for your time so that we can proceed v : :

If you would like to cl|scuss th|s orany other matter further please contact me at the address emall or telephone
1 number gwen below. . . ‘

Page 77




Appendix B

:
H
1
i
i
H
¢
i

Best regards,

John McCu]lough B‘ic (Hons) MSc MCIEH CEnvI—I MIOA

Mld Kent Shared Servwe _'

Sen‘ior Enviromnemal' Health Offieer | _

T: 01622 602767 e
E ]ohn mcculIoughgw;mldkent gov uk

Town Hall Royal T‘unbndge Wells, Kent TNI IRS'. o . R y : ‘ : S

1 WWW. tunbrxdfzewells gOV. uk

@x- |
_Wells worvan

From: John McCuI’Iough
| Sent: 21 September 2021 13:12: : .

Té: Hugo Pound (Clir) <Hugo.Pound @ TunbridgeWells.goy. uk> 'paul, barrmgton king @kent.gov.uk' _ .
<paul.barrington- king@kent.gov.uk>; 'Bob Backhouse (bohbackhouse @gmail.com)' < obbackhouse mail.com>)
Gary Stevenson <Gary. Stevanson@Tunbridgews!lls.gov.uk>; Hugh Patterson (Cilr) . .
<Hugh, Patterson@TunbrldgeWells gov.uk>; Lance Goodship (ClIv) <Lance, Goodshlp@TunbndgeWelis gov uk>
"} Cc: Duncan Haynes <Duncan.Haynes@MidKent.gov.uk>; Tracey Beattie <Tracey.Beattie@MidKent.gov. uks .
Subject: Latest Event at Coiebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our ref 21/515028/NAMP

| Update 25th August 2021 | N | .

Al

Some new people have been added to the circulation list. 1 have blind carbon copied yoi into this email t protect
your privacy as nohody else will be able to see your email address. There have been previous updates detailing the -
Environmental Protections actions and options for control ete. If you nead this hlstonc mfo please contact me and |

can forward you (mdnnd ually} coples of |mporta nt emalls ‘ . : -

There was an event held on 17 September that was again momtored by the Envuronmental Protectlon Team. We

£ wl L.
arc had o new sct of cemp! aints which t have odded ‘:u tha girculation list,

Page 78




'Appendix B

What weuld be useful tg usis detarls that relate to events. We. néed to know what yOoul actually heard and
observed directly {no third- party information. or general supportive commentsrust focused on actual first-hand
evidence) as this is fundamental in getting to the facts of the case and for us bullding a case.

There have been' four events and we will be'ttying to piece together information relating to the number of speaker"
systems the orientation of the speaker systems etcto’ get toa better understandzng of what ha ppenecl and -
t why. The four-dates’ were, ‘

. 7_—-9‘“ August'202_1'
e 14-16M August 2021
s 27-29% August -

« 18/19" September

‘The mformatlen we need for each date is (do not click respond toallas thls will make your rnfotmatron avar!able to
all ENSURE that you send your comments to john, mcculleueh@mrdkent gOV, uk and ' ' '
duncan haynes@midkent.gov, uk) ' " - : :

a. Your Name Address and Postcode
. What time did you ﬂrst notlce noise from the event in questlon (IF you did not notice piease :ndicate th:s as =
: well) : '

. What was the Iast time you natlced noise *from the event and. questlon
. A brief description of what you could hear. :
. Was the noise-uniform or did it go up and down., .
‘Were there any specifically bad tirmes when it appeared worse.
. How it disturbed you during the day {where, and how) =
. How it disturbed you at night {did you have windows open or closed etc) ‘ _
) Any other comments on.the norse that’ you ‘think would be usefut to us in assessing the rmpact

o

S m Lo on

If you would like to discuss thrs or any other matter further pleassa contact me at the address emall ar telephone '
number gr\ren below. . .

Best regards,

’ .Tohn McCullough BSc (Hons) MSe MCIEH CEan MIOA

, Mld Kent Shared Servwe

| ngé 79




Senior Environmental Health Officer
T: 01622 602767

E: iohn.mccﬁl]éu,qh@midkent;gov.uk_ .

'T'own_ 'H-all,' Royal-TunBridga Wells, Kén‘;, TN1 iRS :

ke

www.tunbridgewells.govuk
. -

Tunbridge
Wells E«z}}m;ga:\

" %\f""_’”’fﬂ )

| Page 80

: ‘Appendix B




Appendix B

~ Duncan Haynes

‘From; . . John McCullouigh

Sent: ' . 01 October 2021 10 57 .

To: S . Duncan Haynes =« .
- Subject: FW: Chasing Information on my prewous request for mformatlon Events at

Colebrook Lakes North Farm

© o From: GileewenEilIeTT: 000
. Sent: 24 September 202108:10. . T

. To:lohn McCullough <Jahn. McCulIough@MldKent gov.uk> o

- Cet Hugo Pound (Clir) <Hugo. Pound@TunbrldgeWells gov.uk>; paul. barrmgton klng@kent gov uk; Bob Backhouse

(bobbackhouse@gmall com}: <bobbackhouse@gmall com:> Gary.Stevenson -

<Gary. Stevenson @Tunbridgewelis.gov.uk>; Hugh Patterson {Cllr) <Hugh Patterson@TunbndgeWelIs gov uk>; Lance:

Goodship (Clir) <Lance.Goodship@TunbridgeWells.gov. uk> Duncan Haynes <Duncan Haynes@MrdKent gov uk>;
Tracey Bealtie <Tracey.Beattle@MidKent.gov.uk>

Subject Re Chasmg Informatron onmy previous request far mformatlon Events at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm

Dear I\/Ir McCuHough
T Wr'ote to complain about the noise from the direétion-ef Nortn Fé‘r’m '

*

I dld 50 via the T\NBC websrce on the date that you will have in your system As It was on your website 1 do not have
a copy of any of the mformatlon that I'sent, mcludmg the date that I sentit. = ‘

Basrcally it was bass heat music norse whlch was mtrusrve m my garden and audlble m5|de my house wrth the
.wmdows closed : D

.My \riew_is_that, having repor‘teu‘ it at-’rhe: t.irn'e W|th .afs_mur:h 'ae'gail as l_heu,' I had no neeu to nlo nmre; ‘
| ' Yeure srnCerer . . |

- On23 Sep 2021, at 16‘:43, John I\/lcCu{Iough ‘<J6hn!McCuHoueh@mid.ken't.g'ov.uk> wrote:

Tl

~ The'EP tearn are worklng to try and gather informatlon to determme the best course of action based -
on-evidence. To this end we need everyone to assist and give us the mformaticn we need. Ifyou
have not ALREADY responded to this email could you please do so as soon as possible, Please relaté
itto each of the events so we know if one, two three or all events caused you nolse Issues. Only
‘put down the dates on which you disturbed as just. "havrng anissue” with the event taking place is
not syificient we need to estabhsh which events caused Issues to whiéh groups ot compiamants 50

we can bu|[d up a compiete plcture
. Page 81 -




Appendix B

_' The response rate, so far, has been a bit underwhelmihg and we need you support to determine the:
‘best course of action for the council to take in relation to the complaints. So please glve respondlng
to my email {copied below) a priority for your time so that we can proceed.

_ Ifyou wou!d like to dlscuss thisorany other matter further please contact me at the address, emall
ortelephone numbergwen below : .-

-

Best regards, _

J olm McCullough BSo (Hens) MSe MCIEH CEnVH MIOA Y S A S
.| 'Mid Kent Shared Service . . .

" Senior Environmenital Health Ofﬁcer '

T: 01622 602767

.E: johnmecullough@midkent. govuk .

Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TNl IRS

www.tunbridgewells. gov.uk :

<|mage001 png.;>

‘ -<§mage002.Jpg> ,

<image003.png> |

From: John McCullough _
Sent: 21 September 2021 13i12 - .
To: Hugo Pound (Cllr) <Hugo. Pound@TunbrldReWelfs GV, uk> 'paul; barrmgton kmg@kent gov uk’

- <paul.harrington-king @ kent.gov.uk>; 'Bob Backhouse {b obbackhouse@gmall com)' ‘

' <b0bbackhouse@gma1| comp; Gary Stevenson <Gary, Stevenson@Tunbmd,qeweHs pov.uk>; Hugh

. Patterson (CllIr) <Hugh.Patterson@TunbrideeWails.gov. ul<> Lance GOOdShIp (C!Ir)
<Lance.Goodship@TunbridgeWelis.gov.ule '

Lo Duncan Haynes <Dufican. Havnes@MldKent guv uk:“:- Tracey Beattle

<Iracey.Beattie@MidKent,zov.uk>

Subject: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our. ref
21/515028/NAMP Update 25th August 2021 : :

- Al :
) . - . | . MP i J"""“?"f'a,‘;»
Some new people have been added to the csrculatlon list. | have blind carbon copred yau mtﬁ*""thl
‘email to protect your privacy as nobody else will be able to see your email address, There have
bekn previous updates detalllngthe En\nronmental Protectlons actions and options for control
ete. I you heed this historic info please contact me and | can forward you (individually) copies of

: [mportant emails. :

'u# gt “’,ﬂ?‘

.There was aty event held on 17t Septerﬁrber that was again monitored by the En\iirohmental' '
Protection Team. We are had.a new set of complaints which | have added to the circulation list.”

What would be useful to us is details that’ relate to events. We need to know what you actualliy
heard and observed directly {na third-party information or general supportive comments just .
focused on actual ﬂrst—hand ewdence) asthisis fundamenta! Iy gettmg to the facts of the case and

forus bwldmg a case.

'qué'82 -

‘,.J;;i*lvgg “"'"'“-"?W'LM

A tmwmph .’



Appendix B

There have been four events and we will be trying to piece together information relating to the
number of speaker systems the orientation of the speaker systems et¢ to get to a better
" understanding of what happened and why. The four datas weré, '
o 7-9"August 2021
e 14-16Y August 2021
e 27-29% August
. f18/19t“ September

The mformatlon we need far each date is {do not click respond to all as th|s will make your
mformatlon available to all ENSURE that you send your comments to

ohn mecullough@midkent.gov.uk and duncan.| ha ynes@mldkent gov uk )

a) Your Name Address and Postcode

b)) -What time dld yau flrst notice naise from the event in questlon (Ifyou d[d not not:ce please o

indicate this as well) - .
q) What was the Jast tlme you noticed noise from the event and questlon
d) " A brief descrlptlon of what you could hear.
e) Was the noise uniform or did it go up and down.
) Were there any specifically bad times when it appeargd worse.
 g) How itdisturbed you during the day (where, and how)
h}) How it disturbed you at night {did you have windows open of closed etc)
. Any other commenis on the nolse that you thmk would be useful to us in’ assesslng the
|mpac1: : - .

If you would like to dISCUSS this or ariy other matler further please contact me at the address, email
or telephone number given below A ‘

Best regards,

J olm McCulIough BSc (Hons) MS(: MCIFH CEnvII MIOA
Mid Kent Shared Service , ,

. Senior Environmental Health Officer

T 01622 602767 ‘

E: jobn. mccullough@mldkent a0V, uk

“TownHall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, , Kent, TN1 IRS

WWW, tunbmdeewells gov uk

<nmage001 png> :

' ‘<:i'mage{)_0.2.jpg>

-<image003.bng> .

Page 83




Appendix B

'. Page 84



- Appendix B

Duncan Haynes

From:. L © John McCuliough

Sent:. - © . 01 October 2021 10:57

Te: .. - Duncan Haynés -

Subject: ' ' FW: Events at Colebrook lakes

Sent: 23 Septembar 2021 20: 33 ‘
o Tos John McCuIIough <John. McCuIIough@MldKent gov uk>
Subject Events atCoIebrookIakes

Ll

Eve‘nt 79 aug

Noise from early evemng till 3am ‘the next day. Loud boommg musIc that was of hlgh enough volume to disturh
sleep ‘ . .

Very hot nightall windows open, fVIusrc was contmuous from early evenlng but much more notlceabFe when trymg‘

' o get to sleep fram about 10.30. Noticed itin the Friday , even worse on the sat night:
Noticed music on other weekends mentloned but only really annoying post 11 pm. Got the sake-of residents there

E should be an end time and a noise lavel guidance that should be kept to. A bianket licence should not be issued.
‘Residents should be able to make representatlons when Ilcence is requested

i ,
" Events like this should stop &t mi'c_:lnIgh't at the latest. .~

Sent from m:y il?'ad

Page 85




m : ‘ . |
S . ‘
c . : .
) : : - ‘
Q ‘ . o
Q : o |
< : : N .
| O
) . 00}
)
| ST . . S
. | | ) ks



Appendix B

Duncan Haynes -

. From: ‘ I ._JohnMoCuIlough
- Sent: - - 01 October 2021 10:58
To: - o Duhcan Haynas :
Subject: S - FW: Chasing Information on my prevmus requast for mformatlon Events at

Cofebrook Lakes North Farm

. From: . L g T
Sent: 23 September 2021 18 11
To: John McCulIough <John. McCuIIough@MldKent gov. uk>

Subject Re: Chasmg Informatlon on my previous request for mformatlon Events at Colebrook Lakes North Farm .'

lHI John',
Below m.y responses.

- We were significantly dlsturbed on only one ofthe weekends (maybe direction of speakers?)
August Bank Holiday Weekend, - ‘

C 8. Your Name Address and Postcode

" b, What time did you ﬁrst notice noise from the event in questron {If you d|d not notlce please
indicate this as well) ' S o , '
Friday evening approx 8pm? thought goshloud. = . | o L e
) Seemed to get louder as evenmg wenton. Could hear indoors dESpItE wmdows belng closed
~The base was ever so intrusive could hear over my television. i
. Felt like my personal space was berng mvaded.

' What was the last trme you notlced noise from the event and questron _
The Sunday- and it Was mad that day. During the day, it was the BH weekend and [ had-my
‘parents around for a family get together, we planned to use the garden, but the base thump ~
was just ridiculous. The sound went on all weekend, fromi Friday night until about midnighton
thé Sunday. I had'read and understood they were stopping at midnight that night, which was a_
- blessing as Friday and Saturday nrght it wenton and on until 3am Just rldlculous time for being
'S0 c!ose toa resrdentral area. - A

“d. A bnef description of what you could hear., - C '
- Base thumpmg, then as the weekend went on (Sunday in partrcular) ceuld actually hear words
to the music, couldnt' make out the songs as don't know what their were but thump tnump
' thurmp, and it echoed too around the houses. It was so loud Sunday | even thought perhaps it
had somehow moved closer. | visited the industrial estate on Sunday to get a take out, and it
seemed quieter there than in my backgarden (whrch is further away) but. maybe was in a dip, or ‘
protected by the- bmldlngs around _

. Was the noise unrform or did it go up and down

Pfage 87




Appendix B

It seemed as if it got louder as the evenings got later - but that could jds’t be because the rest of
the waorld was guietening down, no traffic, no hirds, no planes - night time basu:ally when '
people have stopped, and are (should be} resting. :

R Were there any speCIficalIy bad times when it appeared worse,
Past 10.00pm for me, when I was gettmg tlred and wanted to get sleep, and on the Sunday

8. How it dlsturbed you durmg the day (Where and how)
Think covered above. During the day not too bad, apart from just being background thurnpmg,
apart from the Sunday when It was really loud, and distrupted me using my own garden that
: afternoon because we couldn't hold a conversation in the garden as it was just so disruptiveto .
us all. Had to go inside, even though we cl planned a fam|ly gathermg in the garden (BBQ) for
the BH weekend ‘ . e w0 :

h. How it dlsturbed you at mght (did you have wmdows open or closed etc)
Couldn t concentrate inside; even heard the noise over television. Had windows and doors
closed, and the th udding still came in through It caused unrest, stress ‘ahd Iack of sleep and to
. be horiest a really tiring hOl‘l‘Id bank hol;day weekend : : :

L Any ether cumments on-the ncuse that you thmk would be useful to us in assessmg the

impact,
| think the organ!sers should advance warn re5|dents that an event will be happening. 50 Ef able
tcan go away, or at the very least be prepared that your weekend may he disturbed by the nolse.
| wouldn't had planned a famlly get together. at mme if [ knew it was happenlng in advance we

probably would have gone elsewhere

This close to re?.ldentral Ijust don 1 understand why they are allowed such late lic;eﬁ“ses. Rt
. you go to a concert at a stadium or something, they are always, ﬂmshed around 10 00 or
10.30pm. ' : ‘
No need foritto go into the next mormng lts unreasonable and selﬂsh
« 27-29% August . :
© Kind regards '

© OnThu, 23 Sept 2021 at 16:43, Jchn McCullough <john.Mc_CuIlou‘e.h@midl(_ent.eovluk> Wrgte:

Al

The EP team are work:ng to try and ga ther mfermatlon to determine the best course ef action based on i |
evidence. To this end we need everyone to assist and give us the information we need. Il’\,rou have not ALREADY -
responded to'this email could you please do so as soon as possible. Please relate it to each of the events so.we

know if one, two, three or-all avents causad you naise issues. Only put down the dates on which you disturbed as
just "having an issue” with the event taking place is not sufficient we need to establish which events caused issuas-

to which groups of complainants 50 we can bwld up a complete plcture

| The response rate, so far, has been a bit underwhelming and we head you sepport to determine the best course of
action-for the council to take.in relation to the complamts 50 please gwe respondmg to my emazl {copied below) a
priority for your tlme 50 that we can praceed:.

Page 88 S




Appendix B

h‘ you would Ilke to discuss this or any other matter further piease contact me at the address, email or telephone
nUmber given below - .

Best regards,

| I ohn McCuHough BSc (Hons) MSc MCIEH CEnVH MIOA-
Mld Kent Shared Serwce |

7. | Se‘mor Envronmentat I—Iealth.(_)fﬁ'c'er

l‘ T: 01622 602767 “

| -E ]ohn mccullough@mldkent gov ul

| 'Town Hall Royal Tunbmdge Welis Kent, TNl IRS

WWW, tunbndgewells gov uk

© WA 1 5 ﬂvw»%k

* From: John McCullough’
Sent: 21 September 2021 13: 12 L : C : '
To: Hugo Pound (Cllr) <Hueo Pound@TunbrldgeWeHs gov.uks; gaul barrmgton—k:ng@lcent gov.uk

<paul.barrington- kmg@kent gov.uk>; 'Bob Backhouse (bobbackhouse @gmail. com) <bobbackhouse@ema|lcom»; o

Gary Stevénson <Gary. Stevenson @Tunbridgewells.gov.uk>; Hugh Patterson {ClIr).
<Hugh.Patterson@JTunbridgeWells.gov, ul>; Lance Gooclshrp {Cllr} <Lance, Goodship @ TunbridgeWells sov.uk>.

“ce: Diincan Haynes <Duncan;Haynes@MidKent.gov.u k>; Tracey Beattie <Tracey.Beattie@MidKent.gov.uk>" .
Subject: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our ref 21/515028/NAMP

Update 25th August 2021

All,

Some new people have been added to the circulation list. | have blind carbon copied you Into this email to protect
your privacy as nobody else will be able to see ybur email address. There have been previous updates detailing the
" Environmental Protections actions and options for control etc. If you need this hIS‘tOI"IC mfo piease contact me and I

-, an 'fnr i!f\v‘r‘l \rnll f:ur@nnr’-u-\ll \ (‘r\l’\ fnr ~F ||~'\nf\rf'ﬁm+ nm-nlc-
:CO

¥ P\“""" TUrpad

 Page 89




| Appendix B

There was an event held on 17t September that was again monltored by the Enwronmenta! Protectlon Team. We '

are had a new set of complamts which | have agded to the mrcutatton list.

What would be useful to us is details that relate to events. We need to know what you actually heard and
observed directly (no third- -party information or general supportive comments just focused on actual first-hand
evrdence) as thls is-fundamental in gettmg to the facts of the case and for us bmldlng a case.- -

1

There have been four events and we will be trying to-piece together information relating to the number of speaker
systems the orlentatlon of the speaker systems etc to get to a better understandmg of what happened and
- why. The four dates were, ‘ - :

14-16" August 2021
27-29% August .
18/19% September

X Y

: The information we need for each date is (do not click respond to all as this will make your mformatlon avallable to
‘all. ENSURE that you send your comments to john. mccullough@midkent gov.uk and”
duncan. havnes@mldkent g0V, uk)

;YourNameAddressand Postcode L SR v

j=3]

b. What time did you ﬂrst notice noisé from the event in questron (If you did not notice please mdlcate thlS as .

“well) :
. What vas the last time you notnced noise from the event and questlon
. A brief description of what you could hear: -
. Was the noise unifarm ar did it go up and down.
Were there any specifically bad times when it appeared Worse.
. How it d:sturbed you durmg the day (where, and how} .
How. it dlsturbed you.at night (did you have windows open or closed etc) .
- Any other comments on the no|se that you thlnk would be useful to us in assessmg the |mpact

oD e o o

If you would like to d|souss thlS or any other matter further p1ease contact me at the address, email or telephone ;
number given below. S ‘

Best regards,

Page 90

7~ 9“‘Augustzozl - o Lo ORI 8




Appendix B

| John McCullough BSc (Hons) MSc MCIEH CEan MIOA
_ Mld I(ent Shared Semce
| Senior Envlronnlental Health Officer’

T: 01622 '602757 |

E 10]111 mccullouzh@nudkent .80V, ulc

Town Hall Royai Tunbndge Wells Kent TN 1 IRS '

-Www.tunbndgewells.gov.uk

Tunhrzdge
. V’ifﬂ"i grﬁ -Em»x:g;)

Cananei

‘ P@g‘e‘91_.




Page92 -

Appendix B




Appendix B S

Duncan Haynes

From: . - - X I et el o e

Sent: - s August 2021 2127 o : : ' : ,
 Ta: o . JohnMcCullough - o ' : - ' §
Car - o * Gary Stevenson; Duncan Haynes, Frank Williams (ClIr); Bob Backhouse (Clin); Trevor
o . ' Horner; Sharon Degiorgio; Eilen Shaw 46052479, (Ellen.Shaw@kent. po]:ce uk)

Subject: " " .+ Alfresco Festival : :

Hello All T

Unfortunately it'sa dlfferent year but same problem @Ven worse thls vear than before I emailed the orgamsers and
they told me they hzd put more measures in place but it seems worse than ever this year, my husband ¢an hear it .

~ ‘this year and he can’t hormally hearit.as bad as | can, We don’t have a numberto call this year which normally -

" sends 2 noise monitar out to the location to check the sound level so all | can do Is email you and lve made a noise ‘

_ complamt but other than that we have to put up with it again aswe do every year. Please can something be done -

about this as it is awful, I've closed all my windows but can still hear the thumping base music. The same thing

-happens every year, nnthmg is done at the time of the event and we have to listen to it all through the day and nlght
ll weekend, It really isnot falr on the residents who have to put up with this-every year. It ruins my wekkend and”

my anxiety goes through the roof. All other gvents in the town f‘msh at @ more reasanable time 50 why Is this one .

alrowed to go.oh untll 3arn

;. Sent from my iPad :
On 16 Apr 2021, at 16:40,'John McCullough <John..i\'/IcCquougn@midkenf;gov.uk> wrote’

7 ! have had communication with the Management of Colebrook Lakes and have recelved mformation :
that | would Ilke to pass on. : : .

‘

- Some of the events have been cancelled due to Nick Love (the licence holder) nct belng satisfied
- with one of the people who was !ookmg to run’ events, This is part afan emaﬂ he sent to me, the

police and Iicencmg

“Hello everyone .
Due to the'inahility of Richie Carrera to agree a worlcab!e EMP to my sat sfactren, | have cancelled aII

of his shows for 2021, | know this will be of no surprise to some of you. | can only say that lam
committed to delivering évents of the- highest standard of corpliance at Colebrook Park, and wilt -
~anly commit te working with like-minded mdiwduals and organisations. Sadly Mr Carrera and his
*Garden Project are unable to meet my hire critena e S S o '
‘Best Regards. _ j . - I _ ‘
Nick” . L o S

© At Ieast this shows that the management are proactive in not Iettmg their evants be hljacked by
: pecpfe who will not follow the rules. We had concerns, basad on experience, that Richie Carrera
‘had the potential to cause probiems ~Mr Love indicated that he would be: personally managing any
event and that if he-was not satisfied with any of the people proposing events then they wouid not
be allowed t0 hold the event. This looks like Mr Love has enforced this sanction on Mr Carrera '
' whnch logks promfsmg for effective ongoing mwnagement :

Page 93




Appendix B

1 am hot sure which events are the ones that he has cancelled but below. was the list that was sent
to Licencing prior ta the email above .
“Dear Sharon and Trevor,

 Please see below a list of proposed events for this ¥Rar yg:ovrd perm;;:w,g -y

= May28- Cat 3. Soclally distanced concert. 1800 - 2300hrs
= May 29 - Cat 3. Socially distanced concert. 1800 - 2300hrs
. 'lVlay 30 - Cat 3. Soclally distanced conceért. 1800 - 2300hrs
¢ May 31 - Cat 3. Soclally distanced concert. 1800 - 2300hr5
e Junie 4 .- Cat 3. Socially distanced concert. 1800 - ZSOOhrs
» June5.-Cat 3. Soctally distanced concert. 1800 - 2300hrs
e " June & - Cat 3, Socially distanced concert.-1800 - 2300hrs
o July 16-18- Cat 3. Scallywag Festival, 3-day music festival with campang
e July 23 - Cat 3. Socially dlstanced concert. 1800 - 2300hrs
"o July 24 -Cat 3. Soclally dlstanced concert. 1800 - 2300hrs
« July 31-Aug1. Cat 1. Neverworld. 3 day music festival Wlth campmg ThIS will be a test
event for Noise Monitoring in conjunction with EP. .
» Aug 13 - 15, Cat 3, Pleasuredome. 3 day music festival with camping.
« Aug 20-22. Cat 3. Love Hangover. 3 day music festival with camping. -
a0 Aug 27 -29, - Cat3. Alfresco. 3 day. musig festival with campmg
o Septll- Cat3. Concert. 1800 - 2300hts ‘
+ Sept 12 - Cat3.Concert. 1800 - 2300hrs.
. Sept i7-19. Cat 3. Goa Cream 3 day music festival with camplng

1 Wl” update you wrth any changes to the | programme as and when 1hey occur
Best Regards ' : \
Nick”

, I will be writing to Nlck o ensure that measures are in place to.ensure that the Cats events (those
" hot currently controlled by the licence) are well managed so that they do not give rise to the Local

Authority looking to review the licence in relation to these and also not give rise to concgra. i;o EOET

- residents and coun:clllo rs about the larger events. We are laoking fora conference meeting with Mr
Love shortly for us té run threugh “expectations” of the Local Authority, Polu:e, L:cencmg and other
agents for the E\rents proposed 1 wilt keep you all mformed about this. :

lam currenlly \.'ery busy with Covnd related assessment and actlons relating to the “Road Map and
_ the easing cf restrictions that inevitably result in us having to give advice, visit and occasionally .
enforee against businesses and activities that are coming out of current restrictions according ta the

- Road Map timescales. If you wish any further mforma‘oon drop me an email and twill get back to
-l

yOu as s00n as-possible,
}

- Best regards,

J olm McCullough BSc¢ (Hons) MSc MCIEH CEnVI-I MIOA

Mid Kent Shared Service
‘Senior Environmental Health Ofﬁcer

o T 01622 602767 *

E: 10hn mccullough@mldkent gov uk .
‘Town Hall, Royal Tunbndge Wells, Kent, TNI RS
- www.tunbridgewells.gov.ul

~<1rn"lge{301 pngs

<image002.ipg> - .

Page 94




Appendix B

Duncan Haynes

From: , e e
- Sent; - o . 29 August 2021 ‘l'f 04
. To: -~ John McCutiough
' Cet o -~ Hugo Pound (Cllr); Paul.Barrington- Klng@kent gov.uk; Bob Backhouse _ _
' ' (bobbackhouse@gman com);-Gary Stevenson; Hugh Patterson (Cllr), Lance L
: : ‘ _ ) Goodshlp (- Dunean Haynes, Tracey Beattle
Subject: T ' Re: Events at Colebrook Lakes North Farm - our ref 21/515028/NAMP Update 25th -

August 2021

- Gdod morﬁing Johh‘.
_ -

The measures put In place for th|s weekend have certainly quretened thmgs down for the res:dents of the corridorto

~ the east of Tudeley {helped undoubtably by a north easterly wind unlike the prevailing westerfy wmds) Sadly
howeuer it seems to have caused maore complamts from the Sherwood area.

‘These festlvals really must have a reasonable curfew placed oh them 3am ISJUSt too iate and whoever demded that
holding a festival in a tent. made it ¢ |n51de “and therefore quieter needs to spend & week under canvasto iea rn the

. leésson that there is no nolse attenuation whatsoever afforded by these temporary. structures. In addition 3 night
events for as many weekends as the Iicensee can Sell to promotors means a Iarger number of dlsturbed mghts than

any other festival site.

' Movmg the festival site is not really an optron as. yau II Just be shrftmg the problem to another area with a dlfferent
set of resldents . :

. Regards

Sent from my iPad

Page 95




i Page 96

Appendix B

ERRRR Y i I T

T LE AR 2t




Appendix B

DuncanHayneS' . S _

From;. S " John McCullough

. Sent: _ 01 October 2021 11:50 .
To: Lo Duncan Haynes ‘
Subject: - o Fw: Events at Cole Brook Lakes - North Farm

7 Sent. 23 September 2021 17 06 , C
~ To: lIohn McCullough <John: McCuIIough@MdKent gov.uic; Duncan Haynes <Duncan. Haynes@MldKent gov uk> -
'Subject. RE: Eve nts at Cole Brook Lakes - North Farm '

John/Duncan

Thanks for your. response with regards to the noise complamt and apologles for the delay in respond

out the responses for each date as detailed in you mall and trust thisis presented in the format you refufte.

7-g® August 2021 :

No issues on this date as we were away.

14-16™ August 2021
Ypu.r_NameAddress'andPostcode_ S - IR o

md

What time did you first notice noise from the event in question. {If you did not notice please indicate this as well) -

The rioise was no-tis;e'_d fro:r'r? a'r'g_)'i,md me' on both nights -
What was the Irarst time you notic'éd rjc;ise froﬁ*l the event and‘ question.
Noise w;a; still being heard well after 11..pm'l_ CO"l-,l-ld not sé\} e;<actly a5 we were .;:ryihg to get tb's!eep.
A briéf'd;escriprtio.n -cffwhat you c-duld' hea r |
Music c_oﬁld'bc‘e- heard Mth mény Df:thE. Words aulldjble.- lots ofinéfrument_s‘and the annoying beat of drlums.
.Wa.as the noise u_niférm .or did it-'go up and down. | | -
© The sound-IE\'fel-stayed the-same ., . |

‘Wera ihere any specifically bad times when it appearéd'wcrse. S

We only heard |t when we went to. bed as the bedroom faces the dwectmn of North Farm (a!though a considerable
dtstance away) ‘

Page: 97

N




Appendix B

How it disturbed ydu during'the dav (where, and how)
Ne disturbance
How it dis'turbed you at night (did you have andows'open or cic:sed:étc)

The noise of the music and percussive beats were so audible that my wife could not sleep. Wmdows were open it
s the summer and we' ‘have the right not to over heat and enjoy qu:et (espemally &t unreasonable tEmes) '

" Any other comments on the noise that you thlnk would be useful fousin assessmg the |mpact.

T G R B R MRS AR

- .The biggest concern was generally the time. it went on far too (e,

27-29* August

" Your Name Address and Postcode

What tirme did you first notice noise from the event in.question. (H you did not notice please indicate this as well}
o ~ The noise was noticed from around 9pm on friday and saturday but seerhed louder on the Saturday evening.

What,was the last time you noticed noise frdm the event 'and que.stio,n.

 Noise was stlll bemg heard we!l after 11 30pm ['could-not say exactly as we were trymg to get to sleeg | mm,;.—g, :

A'brief description of wh'at you could hear.

-Music could be heard WIth many ofthe words audible. Iots of:nstrurﬁents and fhe annoymg beat of drums.. %wh
Was the noise umform ordid it go up and down | |

Thersound level ‘stayed the same'

Wefe ther;e ahy Speciﬂcaﬂy Ead.'tir‘nés when if appearéd. worse..

: We only heard it when we went 1o bed as the bedroom faces the dlrectlon of North Farm (although a consuderable
‘ d|stance away) :

How irt di'sturbed‘yo‘u during the day (_where,_ and how)
" No disfurbance'

How it disturbed you at night (dld yau have windows open or élosed etc)

The nolse of the music and percussive beats were so audible that both my w:fe and | could not sleep which led tome "

issuing a'complaint,. this was’ issued at 23.36 and still the noise was far too loud, Windows were open. it is the
summer and we have the right not to aver heat and enjoy quiet {especially at unreasonable times} -

Any otdier comiments on tie noise that you think wouid be useful lo usin assessing the impact.

P'age 98-




 Page 99

Appendix B

T

e it




‘Appendix B

tcomplained at 23.36. thisis 'far too latel . .

18/19 September

" Your Name Address and Postcode.

- What time did you first nbtic'e noise from the event in question. {ff'yo'u did not nntice please indicate this as well)

L The ncnse was no‘aced from around 9pm on frlday and saturday

What was tne last tlme you notlced no:se from the event and question.
| Nonse was stiil belng heard well after 11.001 could nat say exact!y as we.were trylng to get to sleep
A brref descrrption ofwhat you could hear |
" The dull rhythm of a beat.
. 'V\}_a_s the hoise unife_lrm or did it ge-ap and dey\'rn,.' -
The aound level stayedl_the same |

Were there any specnﬂcally baci ’nmes when it appeared worse.

Wa nnly heard it when we- went to bed as the bedroom faces the dlrectmn ef North Farm’ (a!though a conmderable K

“distance away)
" How _it.alfatUrbed you during the day {where, and how)
 No disturbance -

How it disturlaed you at nfght (did= you have windows open er closed atc).

The nmse of the percusswe Heats were 50 audible that both my wrfe and | could not sleep Wmdows were 0pen lt",

A -15 the summer and we haye the rlght not to over heat and enjoy qu1et (espemally at unreasanahble tlmesJ '

‘ Any othe'r com mentsronjthe noise that you th|nk.-would be useful to usin assessmg_the impact.

v

.'None

! trust thls clarlﬂes In generaf the issue was that the noise went on fartoo Iate in the eyenmg and was contrary to-

'

my expectation of qu1et enjoyment

Regards

i

Page 100 .




Appendix B

Duncan Haznes.
Frem: ‘
Sent: - _
To: o
- Ces )
Subject:

Sorrv I tho:ught you ware a new compla-inanf bLit I already have ydu on' the books.

~John McCullough -
01 October 2021 12:02
L '

Duncan Haynes

© Chasing Information on my prewous request for information - Events at Colebrook:

Lakes, North Farm 0urref21/514461/NAMP

| presume that you were hot disturbed by the other events as they are conspicuous by their absence from the ema||

~ below.

" From: John McCuliough _
Sent; 01 Ottober 2021 11:56 o

Subject Chasmg lnformatlon on my prewous request for mformatlon Events at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm our

ref 21/514461/NAIVI P

j | .

From Julie Clark

“Sent: 23 September 2021 16 58

To: Johrn McCullough <John. McCuIldugh@Mrd <ent gov uk>

Subject Noise com piamt

A R there

We were. dlsturbed by the music over the bank hollda\} weekend, this happened all 3 mgh'ts {27-29th August) from

* approx 9pm until finaliy falling asleep around 2am all 3 nights, we Had to close all windows desplte the heat and

could still hear the thumpmg base daspite the closed wmdows

' Th:s is totally unacceptab]e when there are so many peop!e that have to get up early for work desplte it bemg abank -

.,hohday

- Page 101



Appendix B

L

|
|
P
4
1
!

H i
=L s 3 4
'\
.




Appendix B

Duncan Haynes - 3 ' o :

From: . ' S * John McCullough
Sent: e 101 October 2021 12:05
To: -~ Duncan Haynes . :
. Subject: ) S FW; Chasing Im‘ormatlon on my previous request for information - Events at -

Colebrook Lakes North Farm our ref 2‘1/514461/NAMP

Sent: 23 September 2021 16:58
To: John McCutlough <lohn, McCuIIouwh@MedKent SOV, uks
Sublect Noise complam‘c . .

Hi there

We were disturbed by the music over the bank holiday weekend, this happened all 3 nights (27-29th August) from
approx-9pm until finally falling asleep around 2am all 3 nights, we had to close aII wmdows despl te the heat and
could still hearthe ‘thumplng base desplte the closed wmdows -

ThIS is totaliy unacceptab!e when there are SO many- people that have to get up early for work despite It bemg a bank .

holiday:

Page 103

T e



Appendix B

‘ G
Page 104



- Appendix B

Duncan Haynes

From: = S John McCuliough
. Sent: SR - 01 October 2021 12:15
To: - Duncan Haynes : '
- Subject; R o FW: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday ZOth September - our

At i#\iﬁ.

ref 2']/515025/NAMP Update 25th August 2021

‘ Sent. 23 September 2021 13 45 ' '
ot John McCuiIough <John. McCuIIough@MrdKent gov.uk>; Duncan Haynes <Duncan Haynes@MrdKent gOV. uk> B
. Subject; Re: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes North Farm on Saturday 20th September ourref 21/515028/NAMP '

Update 25th August 2021 L

' . ‘ 7 |

~ Dear John and Dun'can L AR _ S Lo ‘ i
| |

Clam replymg in response t0 your emarl about the noise at Colebrook Lakes Ref 21 /51 5028/NAMP

T My name, address and postcode are: e L i -
b... 1 only noticed noisé from the last. two events 271029 August and 18- 19 September :
. Regarding the Alfrasco event 27-29 August, | heard the noise throughout the whole festival. Regardmg the
. event 18-19 September | heard the noise on both evenings from within my house and during the.
" afternoon/early avening when Fwas walkmg across the Ridgeway playmg fields on my way to Tesco on 18
September
d.” 1tis hard to say what tlme 1 noticed the noise from the events as| was in and out of my property but | can
- tellyou that when | was at my-property | was severley bothered by the noise, whether it was 1lam to 3am.
.. Regarding the Alfresco fastival, | lodged a complaint at 1.30ani on one of the evenings and then at Spm the
.. following day..| was kept awake until 2.30am on the particular evening that | complamed ‘
f.. The noise | could hear from both events was the loud base in particular, It sounded like |t was thumping
. throughihe walls of my house and | could feel the beat through the bed and. through my body.
g The noise deﬂnrtefy increased in volume as the evening got later. For example, during the Alfresco festwal
. the noise was more low key at 11arn and seemed to get louder at: Spm and then. Iouder again at IOpm and
was unbearable when | was in bed. - ‘
h. The noise appeared worst iri the evenings., and the ear!y hours as there was no other ambrent noase around
s - to muffle it. : - = :
i was disturbed durlng the day but not upset asl could str[l geton with’ my day
. 1was very disturbed at night and very upset by the noise as | couldn't slegp, During the Alfresco festwal I had |
to close my windows which was annoying as the weather was hot. During the September festwal my
, “windows were closed but it didn't: affect the beat coming through the house. _ -
k.~ Other comments that | want to rmake on the noise, is that during the Alfresco festival | weant down to North
Farm [ndustrial Estate to shop and | couldn't hear the noise at all. When | returned home to niniliwarsst,
* the noise was so loud that- |ffe|t as though my house was o top of the festival. 1 have noticed that noise
: tra\rels \rery strangely in our aresNEEN NN
" nolse seems to get funneled up from the event area saceSEEERERER
‘houses to deflect or muﬂ”le it on its way. ‘

Flnally, { want to add that | moved to HE - because of it's quret posmon on the edge of town, borden ng
wood land. It's a crescent so we don't get traffrc noise eithar as only residents use the road. The thought of having to
live through these festivals again, is heartbreaklng and very stressful. | can tolerdte a day time festival but loud

T l prlatols
Parlwhichhasio

.
bl - RN S TR T A P T T a T k= S [ vrred Eortiisnl Lo ol
music untid 2am IJ rot ot allfair [ should be e unl\_:CnL Xelgis a,n-C \—Hld LOUG Tosuive! I \..a.t’(:..)

finish at 9. 3Dprn No- -one shouid be subjected o the level of noise that the Alfresco festival pr‘oduced in our

Page 105 ' o




Appe_ndix B

residential area. There is a reason why nightclubs are usually in buildings; below ground, in town centre locations.
Why should the majority-of residents who may be elderly or have young children or pets or who are facing life
changing |Ilnesses have to put up with this intolerahle situation for the mmorlty who want to party and- who
probably are lass Ilkely to own thew preperties and pay the hlgh councﬂ tax that we all pay? ¥

“Kind regards

on Tue, Sep 21, 2021 at1:11PM Joh'n.McCullough, <John.McCullough@midkent.gov.uk> wrote:
All,

- e = 2 o teas R
B R ~'z':-M\~'-'-'53=;‘.|‘}£;W'?wwﬂpw"§* -f‘”““:f‘%:“-.ru-ca

Nl

Some hew people have been added to the circulation list. I have blind carbon copled you into this email to protect .
your privacy as nobody else will be able to see your email address. There have been previous updates detailing the
IanronmentaI Protections actions and options for control etc. If you need thls historic info please contact me and |
can forward you. (mdrwdually) copies of lmportant emalls :

There wa% - :W’w&' tﬁa@%as?a‘?am ighedtea by the Enwronmental Protectlon Team. We |
are had a. new Set of complalnts whrch i have added to the mrcu[atlon list.-. :

What would be useful to us is detalls that relate to events 'We nead 1o know what you actually heard and
_ observed directly {no third-party information or general'supportive commentSJust focused on actual first- hand
b ewdence) asthisi rs fundamental in gettmg to the facts of the- case and for us building a case,

' There have been four evenhts and we W|II be trying to prece together information relatmg to-the number of speaker
systems the orlentation of the spea ker systems eic io get to a better understa nding of What happened and

i why The four dates were,

e _‘7'«»9th August 2621
e 14-16"™ August 2021
o 27-20" August
e 18/19% Septémber

dorin A Wm
The information we need for each date is. (do not click respond to aII as this w:ll make your mformatlon avallable to

ali ENSURE. that you send your comments to ohn mccuI!ou h@mid| Jt
.-\T‘“’ e el 7 A
duncan havnes@mldkent gov. uk ) * sl B
%:‘;”\Qu ot

Pt hagitatl B T ) : o ;
. - - . . i

a. Your Namie Address and Postcode,
b. What tlme did you first notlce noise from the event in questron (If you did nat notice please indicate this as

: wplﬂ A . | . . o !._
o C. What was the Iast time you noticed noise from the event and questlcn S - ' :

Page 106




Appendix B

. A brief deseri pt|on of what'you could hear.

. Was'the noise uniform or did it go up and down.

Were there any specifically bad times when it appeared worse.

- How it disturbed you during the day (where, and how) :

How It disturbed you at night {did you have windows open or closed etc)

‘Any other comments on the noise that you thlnk would be useful to usin assessmg the |mpact

ST ohm oo

If you would like to discuss this or any other matter fu rther please contact me at the address, emall or telephone
number given be!ow : . .

Best regards,

‘John McCullough BSc (Hons) MSe MCIEH CEan MIOA '
) Mld Kent Shared Serv1ce
Semor Envzronmental Health Ofﬁcer

T 01622 602767

| E: 1ohn.mccullough@midkam.,cr,ov.ulc

Town Hall, Royal Tﬁnbridge- W_ells; Ként,'TNl IRS

Ww.tmab:idgewells.gdv.uk '

1@?’9;«!3 mgs .
s, JoemifcH

szl

Page' 107




Appendix B

Page 108



~Appendix B

Duncan Haynes ‘ - e

. From: Ny -+ John McCullouigh

Sent: . ©© 01 Qctober 2021 12:18

To: - Duncan Haynes ‘
. Subject: o FW. Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes North Farm on Saturday 20th September - our
R 3 ‘ ref21/5']4461/NAMP .

Sent: 23 September 2021 13 06
© To: John McCullough <John, McCuIIough@M[dKent gov. uk> '
Subject Re: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday ZOth September our ref21/514461/NAMP

‘DearJohn

v -1 didn't say anything about bank ho!tday weekend as!had already complamed Do you want me to go through your ‘

questlons re the bank hohday disturbance [I cando so]

Ididn't mention the other events as | was away on both occasrons, snrry l didn' t mention that.

best wnshes

e

On 23 Sep 2021, at 13:02, John McCu!!o-ugh '<Johh.M_CCul[ough@Mid-l(ent.ﬁo\}.u k> wrote: -

" Thank you for-replying — this is mesthelp'ful_to us.

Just checking our records show that you com‘pieinéd on the 31 August just after the, 27-29" event
“but you havnt mentioned that event in your email. Could yau confirm if you heard the ether eveﬁts t
~andan mdlcatlon of the level of |ntrus:on if any.

 Best regards,

- John McCullough EP Team

From: Alison Penn <aii_sqn;p_ehn@idqdd,,,cem>‘ e o
Sent: 21 September 2021 15:07 ' : . :

Page 109




Appendix B

‘ To: John McCuIlough <John. McCuIIouﬂh@MudKent gOV, uk> ) .
Subject: Re: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Sa‘curday 20th September our ref ‘

. 21/515028/NAIV|P Update 25th August 2021

. Dear Mr McCullough -

Thank you for youremail,
_ Regardir'}g the Iétest event: 18/19 September. ~ - a0 '.

! ||ve in Andrew Road, backmg onto the allotments lﬁrét noticed a deep base noise in the evening,
around 9pm when | went out into the garden to put out waste, and until going to bad at 11pm. K
~was a consistent noise of a deep base thud, it did not go up or down. : :

It was not very intrusive and no where near as loud as the musi¢ noise of bank holiday weekend.

‘When going to bad, | had to Iieép the back window. closed,r but fortunately have a bedroom with a o

front window, and had that openand could not hear anything. So'my sleep was not disturbed. -
' l.hope_thlis is hefpful ’

Cregards . N

‘ On 21 Sep 2021, at 13:11, John McCuIlough <John McCuIIough@MldKent gOV. ul<>
wrote: , . _

All,

Page 110

o :je:bww .



Appendix B

~ Some new people have been added to the CI'I'C.I:I'lé-ltiDn list. 1 have blind carbon
" copled you into this email to protect your privacy as nobody else will be able to see

your email address. There have been previous updates detailing the Environmental

Protections actions and options for control etc. If you need this historic info please
-contact me and I can forward you (individually).coples of important emails.

There ‘was an event held on 17t Séptember that was again monitored by the
Enwronmental Protection Team. We are had a new set of complamts WhICh l have
aclded to the cnrculatlon list. : :

'What would be useful to usls detalls that relate to avents. We need to know: what
you actually heard and observed dlrectly (no third-party information or general
suppartive comments just focused on actual first-hand ewdence) asthisis
fundamental in getting to the facts of the case and for us-building a case,.

There have been four eve'nts and we will be rtrying to plece together information -
- relating to the number of speaker systems the orientation of the speaker systems
etctogettoa better understandlng of what ha ppened and why The four da’ces

were, . _ .

o« 79" August 2021
s '14-16™ August 2021
e 27-29M August .

» 18/19" September -

The mformatlon we need foreach date i is{do not cIlck respond to all as this wn!l
-make your- information available to all ENSURE that you send your comments to
|0hn mccullough@mldkent gov. uI< and duncan havnes@mldkent EQV. uk)

a. Your Name Address and Postcode. -

=

not notice please indicate this as well)
What was the last time you noticed noise from the eveni and questlon
A brief description ofwhal you could hear. ‘
. Was the noise uniform or didjt go up and down, . -~ :
* . Were there any specifically bad times when it appeared worse.:
How it disturbed you during the day (where, and how)
How it disturbed you at night {did you have windows open or closed ete) '
Any other comments on the noise that you thlnk would be usefyl to us in
, assessmg the rmpact -

T F®m e oo

Page 111

What time did you first notice noise from the event in q-uestio_nL' (If you did. .




Appendix B

Afyou would 1|ke to dISCUSS this or any other matter further pFease contact me at the :
.acldress email or telephone number given below

" Best regards, '

: thh M@Qullough BSc.(Ho_nS;) MSe MCTEH CEnvH MIO A
 Mid Kent Shared' Sefvice' o .

_ Semor EnwronmentalHealth Ofﬁcer -

T 01622 602767 . |

o ]0]’11‘1 mccullough@mldkenl POV, uk .

Town Hall Royal T‘unbndge Wells Rent ’I'Nl IRS

WWW, tlmbrldgewells ooV, uk

<[‘mage001.plng> .4image002.jpg> <image063.png>"

Page 112

ST L e s 2 i e e i



Appendix B

Duncan Haynes L L
Fram: . . John McCuHough o ok I e ¢ g
Sent: - . 701 October 2021 12:18 | " -

To: Duncan Haynes ' '

‘Subject; o _ . PW Latest” Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday ZOth September ~ our

ref 21/515028/NAMP Update 25th August 2021

. Sent: 23 September 2021 12 39
~ Tea: John McCutlough <lohn, McCuHough@MtdKent gev uI<> _
: Sub]ect Re: Latest Event at Colebrook La kes North Farm on Saturday 20th September our ref 21/515028/NAMP

Update 25th August 2021

John,” S o o i -

Thenks for your trme Juet now. As dlscussed

. -we heard all four events SR g
- the undated first section describes the erst three i -
- the fourth was louder and is described by the. sectron headed 17 September but you. are correct thrs
~should refer to 18 September ‘
- all the events we've heard have been on Saturdays ‘
- we have heard wedding music from Honnington Ferm a coupie of tlmes (mcludlng Sunday 19th) this .

- summer buit not at a level mentlng compielnt

- -F’Ieaee do add us to any dletnbutlon list around schedutmg of evente and live complamt mechememe

Thank you
R Y

Get Outlook for Android

" From: John McCuHough"cJohn Mct‘ul!ough@l\/!idi(ent.gox).ub

Sent: Thursday, September 23 2021 12: 22 26 PM

' Subject RE: Lates Event at Colebrook Lakes North Farm on Saturday 20th September our ref 21/515028/NAMP
Update 25th August 2021 . , ‘

L i,
Just tryingto clarffy

You said second section for the 18" but-the second sectlon is r:el!ed the 17" Sept. The flrst bit undated so is this the
18111? .

~ If s0 are you saying you' had music at 11am to 12pm (noon) on the 18t“ Are you saymg there was music on the 17%
as well? - : . ,

I take it you did not hear anything on the other dates as you have not mentioned them.

- ~ Bestregards

Page 113

H
. 4

T



Appendix B

* John McCullough-

. Sent; 22 Se pternber 2021 08 03

.To: John McCuIlough <John, McCulIough@MldKent J={o)A uk>

Ce: Duncan. Haynes <Duncan.Haynes@MidKent.gov.ulk> ' ‘

Subject: Re: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes North Farm on Saturday 20th September our ref21/515028/NAMP

Update 25th August 2021

'John N

' Thanks for your email. Ptease find my lnformatlon below. Fomﬂrﬁ hre egetesmw r@w@m
. same, and | have added & second. sec’uon for 18 September covenng the pomts of drfterence

Please Iet me know if you need anythrng further
Kind regards.. o

 Your Name Address and Po‘st_code_‘.- |

What trme did you flrst nohce nolse from the event in questron (If you dld not notice please mdrcate thrs as. -
‘well) - : ,

Between ‘11 SOam and 12pm-

o What was the Iast tlme you notrced norse from the event and questlon ,
Some tlme between mrdnlght and ’Iam ' .
A brief desoription of whet yo_u could,hear. o o
Thumping base music.

Was thee n-oiee uniform or did it go op and 'down o

It went up and down dependlng on the track that was playmg but was audrble all day There may have _
been a patoh arcund 5pm when it wes less auchbies but it. soQn g@;&gd ét%?%a'“‘ g ”’é

U o S 0

Were there any epecrfucatly bad times when |t appeared worse. .

it seemed to get worse into the evenmg, but this may be due to the sound travelhng better then lt was
promment throughout the day though. . , , o

How it dlsturbed you durlng the day (Where and how) :

Very. We live over a mile away as the crow fhes and oan‘t use our garden or-go for a walk in the Weald
giveir rt is extremely irritating and dominates the senses. . : o

In the houss, it was less audible (aithough you could hear it if you b stened for |t) and-you could drown it out
with the television or radio (not that we should have to ail day on a Saturday). _

' How it disturbed you at night (did ydu have windows. open or olosed eto)

Windows we're closed but it could still be heard in any room in which we didn't have a television or radio !
on. Both me and my wrfe couldn't sleep through it and therefore were very tired the next day.
€ |



Appendix B

Any dther'-comm’ents on the noise that.you think would be us’eful to us in assessing the impact

‘ ffmd the noise very distressing. We have recently moved to the area with two young chlldren One of the
attractions was that we were moving to an AONB that was remote. Since we moved In in mid August,”
we've effectively had to lock ourselves in the house arid drown out the sound or go out for the day to avoid :
iton 50% of Saturdays. In myview, the commercial interests of the farm cannot justify the impact this is C
having on residents' ability to use their properties and gardens The duration i is also unreasonab!e gzven |t ‘ l
generates 12- 13 hours of constantt thumprng base. . = - . . L

17 Sept. o T - S [
Abriefdeecription efwhat yod .‘co'uld hear..- . : - _ . - " " B o }
o Tndmping Base, but noticably Iouderthan the previous events. | N |
. Was the noise unlform or did it go up and down o
' As above. 7
‘Wera there'any“'sp'eciﬁcally. bad times w-hen it'appeaved worse,
'Asabove.- S | o ' . e . i
'.How'it disturbed yeu during the day '(whei;e and'hew) . R ' S
Even worse than above It was reall y ioud in the garden and in the Weald

- lt was also very audible in every room in the houee even over the teIev;s:on and radlo ThIS caused my
- wife significant anxnety o . _ _

How it d isturbed you at night (dld you have wmdows open or. cloeed etc)

" Windows were closed but it was promlnenf in every room L had the radlo on loudly-in my offlc:e and yet had
to work through it as it overpowered the radio. We then couldn't sleep unless we put in-ear headphonea in
and played whlte HOISQ wh[ch of course is extremely uncomfortable ‘ S

Any,other comments on the noise that you think would be useful to us |n assessmg the lmpact

" As above, save that this weekend s event made Qur whole house unusable WhlGh }Hind tota!ly
unacceptable While the garden and Weald have been unusable on all events, we have at least been able
to hide in the house. We shouldn't have to, but there was at least some escape This weekend there was

‘ nowhere to run - every room was dominated by it.

-

Get Outloek for Android

From: John McCuliough <John, McCuIIough@MndKent £OV. Lk
Sent: Tuesday, September 21, 2021 5:24:14 PM .
Cc: Duncan Haynes <Runcan.Havnes@MidKent . gov, uks '
Subject: FW: Latest Event at Colebrocok Lakes, North Farm on Saturday ZOth September our ref 21/515028/NAMP

Update 25th August 2021

Other g:empf,amants,
‘Sorry | may have inadvertently left you off the ist.
See bulow and eimall e Dack with youi Loniineniy.

Page 115




Appendix B

~ Best regards,

From Jehn McCullough

Sent: 21 September 2021 13:12 - : ‘ '
To: Hugo Pound (Clir} <Hugo.Pound @TtmbrrdgeWeHs gov.ules; 'paul. barnngton king@kent.gov.uk' <paul. barrmgton-

king@kent.gov.uks>; 'Boh Backhouse {bobbackhouse@gmail com)' <bobbackhouse@gmail.com>; Gary Stevenson
<@Eary. Stevenson@Tunbrrdgewells gov.uk>; Hugh Patterson {Clly) <Hggh_,_ﬂaﬂtt“erson@TunbrrdgeWelIs gov.ule>; Lance -
Goaodship (CNr} <tance Goodship@TunbridgeWells.gov.ulk> .
‘Cc: Duncan Haynes <Duncan. Haynes@MidKent.gov.ulk>; Tracey Beattie <Tracey. Beattie @MidKent.gov.uks
Subject: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday ZOth September our ref21/515028/NAMP

Update 25th August 2021

Al

Some new people have been added 9 the circulation list. | have blind carbon copied you into this email to protect

your privacy as nobody else will be able to see your emalil-address. There have baen previous updates detailing the
~ Environmental Protections actions and options for control ete. If you nead thls historic. :nfo please contact me and |
" ¢an forward you (mdtwdually) copies of |mportant emads o

There was an event held on 17 September that was again monltored by the Enwronmental Protectlon Team. We
" are had a new set of complamts which | have added to the circulation list.

What Would be useful to us Is détails that relate to events. We need to imow what you actually heard and observed
directly {no third- -party information or general supportive commerits just focused on actual flrst hand evidence) as
this is funda mentai in gettlng to the facts of the case and for us bunldmg a case,

There have been four events and we will be trying to piece together fnfarmation relating to the number of speaker
systems the orientation of the speaker systems etc to gettoa better understandlng of what happened and |
‘why. The four dates were, - .
= 79" August 2021
e 14 16% August 2021 . _, 7 _
e 27-29" August C E . ‘ -
18/19" September ' e ' : -

‘The informaticn we need—for each date is (do not click res_p_ond to all as _th‘is _wilf'make your information a\railable-to :
all ENSURE that you send your comments tojohn. mecullough@midkent.goy.uk and duncan.haynes@midkent.gov.uk

)

a. Your Na me’ Address and Postcode

=

well)
“What was the last time \fou noticed noise from the event and quest!on
.- A brief description of what you could hear, -
~ Was the noise uniform or did it go up and down.
Were there any speqﬁcelly bad times when it appeared worse.
" How it disturbed you during the day {where; and how} ' -
How it disturbed you at night (did you have wihdows open or closed etc)
Any other comments on the noise that you think would be useful to us in assessing the |mpact

'-—"rqa moaon

If you would like to discuss this orany other matter further p[ease contact me at the address, emall or te ephone
number gwen below : ‘

Best regards,

Page 116

What time did you first. notice noise from the event in questlon (If you did not notice piease lndlcate this as -




John McCallough BSc (Hons) MSc MCIEH CEan MIOA

‘Mid Kent Shared. Service
“Senior Environmental I—Iea]th Ofﬁcer

“T: 01622 602767

- Er john. 1ncou110ugb@m1dkent gov uk

Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TNI IRS ,

. WWW, tunbndgewells gov.uk : -
e Tunbridge

Wells oo

5 (“mm ’

Page 117

Appendix B




Appendix B

- Pagel18



Appendix B

- Duncan Haynes

IFrom: ' _ i ~ Jehn McCullough
Sent: . - . 01 October202112:19
To: _ o ~ Duncan Haynes
‘ lSubject:f o o Fw Dlsruptlon to normal life from Colebrook Park

From: Gt nananE -
Sent: 23 Septem ber 2021 ao: 22 _
To: john McCullough’ <john. McCuIIough@MrdKent gov ule

~ Subject: Disruption to normal life from Colebrook Park -

‘ I didn’t hear‘anyth_ing' 749th August L - ” \ ‘
. ldidn"t hear anything 14-16th Aygust S '
I didn’t hear anythrng 18 16th September

27 291:h August . '
It started with th umping base at about 1lam Fnday 27th August and continued un‘nl early tours I went to bed wh:ch

is a the back of my house at about 10pm | kniew that the only way | was going ta get any sleep was to put.ear plugs
in but | didn’t sleep'that we!l due to-the ear plugs and.when | woke in the night and removed an ear plug | could still
hear thumpmg base sound My double glazed wrndows were shut The noise was about the same level all the time.

~0n the Saturday 28th August I went eut about 8, 45am and when I returned home in the afternoon as soon as !got
out of my car | could hear thumpmg hase sound. | had planned to do some gardening in the afternoon but didn’t due
to the thumping base scund-which was even louder in my back garden. The thumping sound continued at the same
tevel as Fiiday. | went to bed about 10pm again with double glazed windows shut and ear plugs in again awoke in
-early hours due to.ear plugs and when i rermoved them could till hearthumprng sounds. | didn’t check the timeas|
don‘t want to know what time my sleep has been disturbed. Iusually sleep all mght wrthout ear plugs.

Slinday 29th August it started again at 11am I was in my bedroom which is at the back of the house and | had toturn .

. up the television so that | could hear it over the thumping bhase sound even with the double glazed window shut. It

sounded Touder than Friday or Saturday, | then went out as | didn’t wanrt to hear the thumping sound alt afternoon

and evening and possibly into early hours. | returned home about bpm | was very reluctant to return home and as
soon as | got out of the car | could hear the thumping base sound. cauld hear sings but the words werg not clear -
enough to hear what the song or what the tuhe was. It sounded louder and as if it was coming from the houses at

“the bottom of Ashenden Walk. | went to bed about 10pm doubla glazed windows shut ear plugsin. | had trouble
getting tosleep as. the ear plugs had become uncomfortab[e after hawrrg to use them 3 nlght runnmg

 For several days after the thum prng base sound stopped | kept gettmg anxious that rt was about to start again.

There is Irttfe traffec in Ashenden Walk as it not a through road and the area is generally quret At the bottom of mv _
garden are woods then industrial buildings. There have been alarms that have gone off from the buitdings that have

disturbed the peace from time to time over the years and sometimes if | am awake early in the morning in the week
* I hear what sounds like a metal container being dropped but nothing that stops me sleepmg or wakes me lrke to
“thumping base sound from Alfresco Festival over the August bank holrday weekend

‘Page _119

g e B e e Len e e




~ Appendix B

After 3 nights of dlsturbed sleep | was unable to enjoy ‘August bank holiday Monday as | was too tired to do
anythmg _

-Pauline
Sent from _m;} iPad -

s WA ARG i

B 4;%}«?%4&&%5?’” P

f T

]

M‘#« 23 ‘ra,{\r? :m

E Page 120




‘Appendix B

_Duncan Haynes -

" From:

John McCUII‘ough

Sent: 01 October 202112:20.
To: Duncan Haynes T ‘ : -
- Subject: FW: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our
o ' ref 21/5'15028/NAMP Update 25th August 2021 - :
 From: EUE T

" sent: 22 Septemberzoz:L 12:30

. To:John McCul

Iough <john. McCuﬂough@MldKent gov. uk> -

C Cex Duncan Haynes <Diincan. Haynes@MidKent.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our ref21/515028/NAMP

- Update 25th August 2021

' Helloplease‘ensure these‘oom ments, including. My name and addresrs' ara treated confidentially.

Please note my specific comments on the below events. -

7 9"‘ August 2021- Very loud wedd:ng dance floortype ofmusm aud|ble from early
.avening until late in the night - heard until around midnight through closed windows. Loud
~ enough to be able discern‘the words 1o the songs! Got louder as the evening carried

on. ‘Loud enough to wake me up. repeatedly Last heard around midnight, ‘cannot.

remember when | first heard it.: Could hear a ‘DI type voice at times, = - -

- 14- 16‘“ August 2021 Out of country but next door nerghbour who was to concerned

drrectly tor complarn mentioned they heard it over the weekend.

*27-29" August - Away for the weekend 50 cannot comment dlrectly but agaln same

' nelghbour mentioned it.

.'L8/19th September Extremely Ioud drum and base audlbfe from garly afternoon ! notlced
it from around 3.30pm when we came home until around 11. 30pm when [ finally managed
10 fa[l asleep. Again loud enough that despite closed windows you could hot i ignore the .
music from wrthm the house (it was like a radic was playing in the house) and made being i in

‘our usually quiet garden unpleasa nt as the noise was intrusive. Gave me a

headache with the repeated manotonous banging noise and drsrupted my Children's ablhty ‘

to get to sleep at night. Noise sometimes was intermittent appearing to fade and come

back over a course of 5-10 seconds. My neighbours whase house is behind mine (in theory

shelterec hy my house} messaged me to complain as they thought it was coming from my
car and+ had left the radio on all night. All in seemed unnecessarily loud and-intrusive,

 Page 121




Appendix B

&

on 21 Sep 2021, at 17:}_24, thn MchIlough <John.McCulIeugh @MidKent.gov.uk> wrote:

Other ccmplainarnts,-
. Sarmry | hway have inadvertently .Ieft“)ou_off-the list.
- See below and emall me back with your comments.

Best rege'rd_s,g

From: John McCuIlough e
Sent: 21 September 2021 13:12 - e tr
- To: Hugo Pound {ClIr) <Hugo. Pound@TunbndgeWel!s Eov, uk> paul barrmgton kmg@kent gov uI<
<paul:barringion-king@kent.gov.uk>; 'Bok Backhouse (bobbackhouse@gmail.com)’ .
< babbackhause @gmail. com>; Gary Stevenson <Gary,Stevenson@Tunbridgewells.zov., uk> Hugh
_Patterson (Cll} <Hugh.Patterson@TunbridgeWells.gov.ulke; Lance Goodsh:p (Cllr) :
<Lance.Goodshiv@Tunbrides Wells.gov.uk>
~ Ce: Dunean Hayties <Duncan; Haynes @ Mid. Kent.zov, uk>: Tracey Bea‘me
<Tracey.Beattle @MidKent.zov.uk> T '

Subject: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September our ref

' 21/515028/NAMP Update 25th August 2021

Al

Some new people have been added 10 the mrcuiatlon fist. | have
email to- protce::t your privacy as nobody else will be able to see your emall address. There have
- been previcus updates detailing the Environmental. Protectlons actions and options for contral
etc i you head th|s historic info p[ease contact me and | can forwarci you (individually) copies of

important emalls '

There was an event held on 17’th Septemberthat was agaln monitorad by the Env:ronmental
‘ Protectlon Tearn. Weare had a new set of complamts which | have added to the circulation |ISt

' .What would be useful to us is detads,that relate to events., We_ need fco know what you actually
heard and obsarved directly {no third- -party information-or ganeral supportive comments }ust '
focused on actual first-hand ewdence) as thns is fundamental in gettmg 1o the facts of the case and
for us building a case. - . :

'_There have been four events and we will be trying to plece together Information relating to the
number of speaker systems the orientation of the speaker systems etc to get toa batter
understanding of what happened and why. The four dates were, :
o 7-9" August 2021
e 14-16" Augist 2021
o . 27-29% August _
. 31.8/19'Ch September .

“The mformatlon we need for each date Is (do not chck respond to a[l as this will make your
information available to-all ENSURE thal you send your comments - :
tojphn mccullougf@mld kent.gov.uk and duncan havnes@mldkent ECV. uk)

oA Your Name Address and Postcode
“b. What time did you first notice noise from the event m questlon (f you did not notice pIease

, indicate this as well) : ‘
¢. What was the Iast time you noticed noise frcm the event and quest:on

“Page 122

lind‘carbon co;;i'ed you‘mtb this -




Appendix B

A brief description of what you could hear.

Was the noise uniform or did it go up and down.

Were there any speclfically bad times when it appeared worse,

How it disturbed you during the day (where, and how)

How it disturbed you at night {did you have windows open or closed etc) ,
Any other comments on the noise that you thmlc would be: useful to usin assessmg the

impact.: 4

ECIEERCEE O~

- =

M you would fike te dlscuss this ar any other matter further please contact me dt the address email’

or telephone number given below, -

Best regards,

. J ohn McCu]lough BSc (Hons) MSC MCIEH CEnVH MIDA i

Mid Kent Shared Service. S

Senior Environmental Health Ofﬁaer : : _ _

- T: 01622 602767 . - | L S
E: john. mcculiougl_l_@mldkent gov.uk PR o '

‘Town Hall, Reyal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN1 IRS ,

- www.tunbridgewells.govauk
, <|mage_001 png> <|mage002 Jpg> <|mage(303 png>

Page 123




. Page 124

Appen_dixB o



Appendix B

- Duncan Haynes

© From: ' 7. - John McCullough .
. Sent: - . - 01 Octobef 2021 12:20
Ta: - o * Duncan Haynes
Subject: ' ' FW; Latest Event at Colebrook takes, North Farm on Saturday 20th September - our

" ref 21/515028/NAMP Update 25th August 2021

- Sent: 22 September 2021 10 41 T ' - ;

' To: John McCullough <John. McCuIIough@MldKent gov. ulg> ' o

. Subject Re: Latest Event at Colebrook Lakas, North Farm on- Saturday 20th September our ref 21/515028/NAMF'
"+ Update 25th August 2021 : ,

4

Hello John -

- Here are my -det"fa Wﬁ'ﬂﬁ@*&‘ues’ced TRCase” A"t gotthem on emall

The 'ﬁr'st evant, -7-9‘August - [ did not hear this one-at all

The second event 14 16 August - | on!y heard it on the last clay, Sunday, in the afternoon and evenmg unhl it
, ﬂnlshed ‘ L

" The third oneand by far the worst one, 27- 29 August {Alfresco} ~ 1 hea rd this one from the start to the ﬁnlsh it was
: extremely loud ali the time, day and night, with windows and door closed, my nelghbour said she could hedr all the

words, I just heard continuous Ioucl base music, sounded like the same song over and-over again. | got no sleep at all '

'when this one was on

-

i The fourth event, 18 Septernber, I heard this one on and offand rt was c!early audible but nowhere as Ioud and the

Alfresco one.

.%Vﬂ .

I've also attackied sor
have set up tegarding even_ts at this site.

Thanks '

Page 125 B

hamresidents WhICh hearc{ it as well who have commented ona petmon 1 '




“Appendix B -

'. :22:1‘:?‘ Mon 20 Sep

Reasons for sngmng

_* See why other Sugpc}rt@fs a;’e si

- For four éoﬂsef;u’tivé weeken | N .
benefit of our garden during -
sound of our TV even withw
Unhi ’thg:a mmw gﬂ{i Wh qu; .

- Page 126




Appendix 2 Maps

Page 127

) Appendix C



. Appendi-x C

Page 128



Appendix C
Colebrook Lakes Complainants: 7-9th Aug |

) /

AZ6 % '
! S
£
b P
Ju o+ 5
o
e "‘
8 L Hou
- "(
h,l
TOHBRIDGE BV.oagc Y%,

. AZ1 5

Az6 o,
o BEs

R -
Y

"

2.9¢ az1 i
i m 4 . t rt
& fa

Colebrook Lakes

e
g
E o
3k o
9
&
Lambert
7o @
]
< '
%
A2l
AZ6
Azl
a.::»
o
= J AZ1
cear®”® ; )
Bap H Fa
FNE OF 2 E
AZ64
Vag
5 ‘.".J.
e
Cr B,
240,
M)
-
A2G
.
)
g
M
) 1
== )
kilometres

Page 129

© Crown Copyright and databasé rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 100019636.




| jAp'pehdi'x C

Page 130



Appendix C

Colebrook Lakes Complainants: 14-16th Aug

L 4
&
HE
o
C;,e
BRIDGE & “p,
“az1 #
AZ6
@
Minapit
@
»
@ ’
AZ6
AZ6A
ix,m"
g,
»;
A
»
AZ6
.
WICH
M
0 1
s =, |
kilometres
Scale: 1:25,000

w7

AZ6

@]
AZ1
@
Colebrook Lakes
e
AZL
AZL
D!
x4 v\“i-
ANE ORD

Page 131

® Crown Copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 100019636.




N Appendix C

Page 132



Appendix C

Colebrook Lakes Complainants: 27-29th Aug

Scale: 1:25,000

. r SN "
| § w=E)=E
q# ¥
& AZ6 ' '
3 ) S
g e
= I
= 2 % W Farh
& 3 00® H
¥ ¢ .
foe,
1IDGE'R e T,
Az N PASs gty
A6 o
hg ALDE
Bra
M
AZ1
@
=y fe
P
s
@
M
® f Colebrook Lakes” i
SMEURY Wy
® [ U s %
A_L:
HE ey H -
® L
e R e 1 B S S . )
@ @
@ &
&
“E ® &
& v @ ®
- ® ® %
®
. L4
ol B LY
@ M
. i w0 F
; Azl
AZ6 < .
Az1
@ 40
y a0
. ®
> AZ1
- ® ot 19 2
5 f
® N OF )
/ Ma
AZ64 WE
e
1‘""’1
Pag
NG h
-
h
AZG
. ®
e
oAl
MLL Lt
0 1
e !
kilometres

Pag e 133 © Crown Copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 100019636.




A_ppe_hdix C

Page 134



Appendix C

Colebrook Lakes Complainants: 18th Sept | N

-
[
a
=
Azl
a6
®
®
@ @
@
®
®
» ..
®
®
A26
®
®
=
AZ64
0,
1,;.,‘.[&
Pk,
a
AZ6
t @
VAR
0 1
I '
kilometres
Scale: 1:25,000

Colebrook Lakes

Page 135

Y

® Crown Copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 100019636.




| Appendix C

Page 136



: Appendix C

Appendix 3 Photographs ,

Event 7-9 August 2021 .

Event August Bank Holiday Weekend

Page 137



Appendix C

Page 138



Appendix C

Page 139



Appendix C

Page 140



Appendix C

Page 141



Appendix C

Page 142



Appendix C

Page 143



Appendix C

Page 144



Appendix D

/—‘\
PREMISES LICENCE Tunbridge

The Licensing Act 2003 Wells Borough

Schedule 12, Part A \ < Council

Premises Licence Number 19/04133/LAPRE

Part 1 - Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including Post
Town & Post Code

Colebrook Park

Colebrooke Lakes

Land East Of Kingstanding Way
Royal Tunbridge Wells

Kent TN2 3UP

Telephone number 07710 760166

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Not Applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Plays

Films

Live music

Recorded music

Performances of dance

Anything of a similar description to the activities of live music, recorded music or the performance of
dance

Sale or Supply of Alcohol

Late Night Refreshment

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Plays (Both Indoors and Outdoors)
Every Day 09:00 - 23:00

Films (Both Indoors and Outdoors)

Sunday to Wednesday 09:00 - 23:00
Thursday 09:00 - 00:00
Friday - Saturday 09:00 - 02:00

Bank Holiday Sundays 09:00 until 02:00 No films to be shown outdoors after 23:00

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 1 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.E?&@@ﬂ_&‘é@oaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004




Appendix D

Live music (Both Indoors and Outdoors)

Thursday 18:00 - 23:00
Friday 12:00 - 03:00
Saturday - Sunday 10:00 - 03:00

As decided by the Licensing Sub Committee on Monday 7 September 2020

The Premises Licence will allow the Premises Licence Holder to run two large events in 2021 for
persons between 1500 and 4999 over a period of three days to enable the Environmental Health
Department to carry out proper testing of the noise management plan prepared by SPL Track and
provide live data to the committee.

Therefore on the Friday and Saturday of one of the events the terminal hour for the provision of live and
all recorded music will be 04.00 hours

On the other event the terminal hour for the provision of live and or recording the music will be 03.00
hours

Recorded music (Both Indoors and Outdoors)

Thursday 18:00 - 23:00
Friday 12:00 - 03:00
Saturday - Sunday 10:00 - 03:00

As decided by the Licensing Sub Committee on Monday 7 September 2020

The Premises Licence will allow the Premises Licence Holder to run two large events in 2021 for
persons between 1500 and 4999 over a period of three days to enable the Environmental Health
Department to carry out proper testing of the noise management plan prepared by SPL Track and
provide live data to the committee.

Therefore on the Friday and Saturday of one of the events the terminal hour for the provision of live and
all recorded music will be 04.00 hours

On the other event the terminal hour for the provision of live and or recording the music will be 03.00

hours

Performances of dance (Both Indoors and Outdoors)
Every Day 11:00 - 23:00

Anything of a similar description to the activities of live music, recorded music or the performance of
dance (Both Indoors and Outdoors)

Every Day 11:00 - 23:00

Sale or Supply of Alcohol

Monday - Wednesday 10:00 - 23:00
Friday, Saturday and Sunday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 00:00

In the camp site when in use for Category 1, Category 2 and Category 3 events the terminal hour is
03:00For the avoidance of doubt, there will be no consumption of alcohol outside the site area but
alcohol can be purchased in on bar area and consumed elsewhere within the site.

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 2 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.E?&g$21€4@10aks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004




Appendix D

Late Night Refreshment (Both Indoors and Outdoors)

Sunday to Thursday 23:00 - 02:00
Friday - Saturday 23:00 - 02:30

The opening hours of the premises

Every day 00:00 - 00:00

The non-standard opening hours of the premises
Not applicable

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the premises.

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email address (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence

Mr Robert Sheridan Bowie

Honnington Farm

Vauxhall Lane

Southborough

Royal Tunbridge Wells

Kent

TN4 OXD

Mr lain Nicholas Love
17 Franklin Road
Brighton

BN2 3AD

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
Registered Business Number Not Applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence
authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mr lain Nicolas Samuel Love
17 Franklin Road

Brighton

East Sussex

BN2 3AD

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 3 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020

Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.E?ag$21€4v?noaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence Number: 1445/3/2017/03935/LAPER
Licence Authority: Brighton And Hove City Council
Gary Stevenson

Head of Environment and Street Scene
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 4 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.E?ag$21€4810aks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
The supply of alcohol

- Where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following
conditions:-

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -

(a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence,
or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his

personal licence is suspended.

- Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

Mandatory conditions in force from 28 May 2014

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1-
(a) "duty"is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula— P=D + (D x V)

where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value

added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price
actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 5 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.E?&g$21€48noaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

4. - (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a
day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a
result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Mandatory Conditions in force from 01 October 2014

1— (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities,
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol
for consumption on the premises—

(a)games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—

(iydrink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii)drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b)provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c)provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d)selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-
social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e)dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

3.— (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—

(a)a holographic mark, or

(b)an ultraviolet feature.

4. The responsible person must ensure that—

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 6 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020

Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.P&@@ﬂ_%@woaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

(a)where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale
or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—

(i)beer or cider: ¥2 pint;
(i))gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii)still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b)these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(c)where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol
to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available."

/b Exhibition of films

- Where the film classification body is specified in the certificate, unless subsection (3) (b) applies,
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that body.

- Where -

(c) the film classification body is not specified in the certificate, or
(d) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the certificate that this subsection
applies to the film in question,

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that
licensing authority.

In this section -

"children" means person aged under 18; and

"film classification body" means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of
the Video Recordings Act 1984 (¢.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for
classification).

Door supervision

- Any premises which includes a condition that door supervisors must be at the premises to carry out a
security activity, shall ensure that each such person is licensed to conduct such activities by the
Security Industry Authority.

Annex 2 - Embedded conditions
Not applicable
Annex 3 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

Categories of event:
Category One
A Category One event is an event taking place on a Friday, Saturday and/or Sunday where:

Live music is provided indoors and outdoors until 23:00, and indoors only until 03:00 on the
Friday and Saturday, and indoors only until 24:00 on the Sunday; or

Recorded music is provided indoors and outdoors until 23:00 and indoors only until 03:00 on
the Friday and Saturday, and indoors only until 24:00 on the Sunday; or

The capacity of the event (on any given day) is more than 1500, but less than 4999 not
including staff and contractors

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 7 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence |ssued by:
The Licensing Partnership PE) noaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

Category Two
A Category Two event is an event taking place Friday, Saturday and/or Sunday where:

Live music is provided indoors and outdoors and ceases at 23:00 on the above-mentioned days;
or

Recorded music is provided indoors and outdoors and ceases at 23:00 outdoors on the above-
mentioned days and indoors at 01.00 ; or
. The capacity of the event (on any given day) is more than 1500, but less than 4999 not
including staff and contractors.
Category Three
A Category Three event is any event taking place on any day or consecutive days where:

The capacity of the event (on any given day) is less than 1500 not including staff and
contractors.

Live music shall not be provided outdoors after 23:00

Recorded music shall not be provided outdoors after 23:00

Conditions in relation to categories of events
The total number of Cat 1 and Cat 2 events to be held at the Premises the total number must
not exceed that permitted in the licence granted to Sound and Light Management Ltd and any events
run by Sound and Light Management Ltd will be taken into account in determining how many Cat 1 and
Cat 2 events can be run by the Premises Licence Holder
There shall be no more than one (1) Category One event per annum (January to December)
There shall be no more than two (2) Category Two events per annum (January to December)
There shall be at least 28 days between the end of any Category One event and any Category
Two event
. There shall be at least 28 days between the end of any Category Two event and a second
Category Two event
The duration of any Category One or Category Two event shall not exceed 3 days (72 hours)
There shall be no restriction on the number of Category Three events

General - all four licensing objectives

1. Stage and Zone Managers will have direct radio contact with medical and emergency services
on site

2. All staff will be fully briefed on evacuation procedures

3. Age verification checks are undertaken prior to the issue of adult wristbands on entry to the
premises

4, The event organiser, contractor and any staff employed thereof shall comply with the conditions
of this licence

5. The Premises Licence Holder or their authorised representative shall prepare and submit to the

Licensing Authority, Kent Police, EHO Tunbridge Wells and EHO Tonbridge and Malling and KCC
Highways for each Category One or Category Two event, at the site a specific Event Management Plan
(EMP). The EMP shall deal with, but not be limited to, the following issues:

a) Event profile and overview

b) Management structure, chain of command, event management responsibilities, emergency
liaison team

C) Public and worker safety including security and crowd management within the premises

d) Major incident plan including emergency vehicle routes, evacuation procedures and places of
safety

e) Premises information detailing by zone, including but not limited to, fire safety, temporary

structures, barriers, fencing, sanitary washing and welfare facilities, lighting and electrical provision, fuel
storage and use

f) Health and safety policy and specific risk assessments for activities undertaken pre-event,
during and post-event

g) First aid and medical services plan

h) Arrangements for cleansing the premises and the welfare activities to be provided pre-event,

during and post event

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 8 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.P&@@ﬂ_%/znoaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

i) Lighting (which shall include a plan detailing suitable and sufficient security, safety and amenity
Lighting in respect of all events)

J) Camping plan

k) Signage (including details of signage to be displayed at the entrance and exits of the premises,

drinking water points signage and crime prevention measures e.g. location of secure property lockers if
provided)

1) Traffic management (including a public transport plan and traffic impact assessment)
m) Evacuation Plan including forward control facilities
6. The Event Management Plan shall be submitted to the Licensing Authority, EHO Tunbridge Wells

and EHO Tonbridge and Malling and Kent Police no later than Calendar 2 months prior to the event in
qguestion or such other period as may be agreed between the Premises Licence Holder, Kent Police and
the Licensing Authority

7. The Premises Licence Holder shall comply with the provisions of the Event Management Plan at
all times during the event to which it relates

Notice of Events

8. The Premises Licence Holder shall submit to Kent Police and the Licensing Authority a proposed
calendar of events at the premises including any events outside the scope of the Licensing Act 2003.
This calendar shall be submitted annually in January detailing the events planned for the following 12
months. Any additions, amendments or alterations to the calendar of events shall be notified to Kent
Police, EHO Tunbridge Wells and EHO Tonbridge and Malling and the Licensing Authority in writing (by
letter, email or fax) as soon as practicable

. For all category one and category two events the period of notice to be given shall be three
months prior to the proposed event unless prior agreement is obtained in writing from Kent Police

10. The Premises Licence Holder or their authorised representative shall attend Safety Advisory
Group (SAG) meetings whenever an event to be held at the premises is on the agenda.

11. The Premises Licence Holder shall provide on the request of Kent Police, EHO Tunbridge Wells
and EHO Tonbridge and Malling or the Licensing Authority figures for pre-event ticket allocation, such
information to be supplied within 24 hours of any such request so far as possible

12. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that risk assessments are produced for each
Category One and Category Two event, and that these shall be made available to the Licensing
Authority, EHO Tunbridge Wells and EHO Tonbridge and Malling and Kent Police no less than 28 days
before the event where practicable

13. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that external organisers or promoters are issued with
an agreement for hire of the Event Site, or part thereof. That agreement shall include the conditions
attached to the Premises Licence and, if relevant, those agreed as a result of meetings of the Safety
Advisory Group

14. For Category One and Category Two events the DPS or at least one Personal Licence Holder
shall be present during the whole time alcohol is sold. Details of the nominated deputies shall be
provided to the Licensing Authority and Police at least 30 days prior to the commencement of a
Category One or Category Two event

15. When alcohol is sold at a Category One or Category Two event the following conditions will apply
to all bars, both for the public and in hospitality areas:

a) Unless otherwise agreed with the relevant members of the Safety Advisory Group, bars will be
closed at least 30 minutes before the event finish time with the exception of the Camp Site Area.

b) Bars will not be permitted to run price promotions, happy hours or other promotions designed to
encourage excessive drinking

c) Drinks will not be sold or served in glass vessels or containers

16. Upon reasonable request, authorised enforcement officers of the Responsible Authorities:
Environmental Health Team, Kent Police and Fire Service, must be provided with security passes for full
and free access at all times to each and every part of the licensed area

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 9 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.E.) @21 oaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

17. A communication system must be provided to ensure the effective operation of the site under
both normal and emergency evacuation conditions. The Premises Licence Holder must provide an
adequate incident control centre and a rendezvous point for the Police and other emergency services

18. Adequate drinking water points in suitable locations must be provided and maintained to the
satisfaction of the Safety Advisory Group or their authorised representative

19. Adequate sanitary accommodation must be provided and maintained to serve the licensed
event to at least the standards contained within the "Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at Pop
Concerts and Similar Events", or as advised by the Environmental Health Team. Suitable arrangements
must be made for the collection and disposal of used hand towels, sanitary towels and other refuse
from the sanitary accommodation

20. Details of the proposed location, level of provision and means of effective maintenance and
servicing of sanitary accommodation must be submitted to the Safety Advisory Group or their
authorised representative if requested

21. Details of the proposed location, level of provision and means of effective maintenance and
servicing of sanitary accommodation must be submitted to the Safety Advisory Group or their
authorised representative if requested

The prevention of crime and disorder

22. For Category One and Category Two events the Premises Licence Holder will provide a full list of
security numbers for each event including team leader details one week prior to the event opening to
the public

23. For Category Three events the Premises Licence Holder shall operate events under a risk
assessment. SIA door staff shall be employed on a risk assessed basis. Risk assessments for Category
Three events shall be available to the police and Licensing Authority upon request

24, The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that all Security Staff and Stewards receive a written
statement of their duties, which may be electronic

25. All Security Staff and Stewards shall be capable of communicating instantly with one another by
way of radio or other simultaneous system of communication

26. All Security Staff shall wear distinctive clothing to clearly identify them as Security Staff

27. For events identified by Kent Police the Premises Licence Holder will provide suitable
receptacles to dispose of alcohol, glass, drugs, needles and weapons on entry to such an event and
such provision must be made at all entrances to the event. Placement and number of bins must be
agreed with Kent Police prior to any area of the event opening to the public

28. Searching as a condition of entry will be mandatory when directed by Police following
consultation with the Premises Licence Holder based on audience profile and police intelligence prior to
any event

29. Searching with a fully trained drugs dog will be mandatory when directed by Police following
consultation with the Premises Licence Holder based on audience profile and police intelligence prior to
any event

30. Plain clothed members of staff are to be engaged during Category One and Two events. Their
specific and only task is to watch out for incidents and any form of drug consumption sale or supply.
Security staff will be informed of such activity as witnessed and procedures agreed with the police in
relation to detention and arrest of suspects to be implemented

31. Ticket conditions shall indicate that searching will be undertaken. Signage shall be displayed at
all entrances indicating searches will take place

32. The Premises Licence Holder shall put up a clearly visible notice advising those attending that
the Police will be informed if anyone is found in possession of controlled substances or weapons

33. A clear and unequivocal message shall be placed on all advertising and publicity material
created by the Premises Licence Holder that the premises operate a zero tolerance policy towards drugs
whether it be in relation to possession, dealing or using

34. The Premises Licence Holder shall maintain a register of all drugs found or seized within the
premises and notify Kent Police or any such items as soon as practicable. Drugs will be kept within a
secure storage facility and will only be removed on collection by a Police Officer or PCSO

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 10 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.E.) @21 oaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

35. Crime and disorder prevention advice shall be written in consultation with the Police and any
agreed crime prevention advice shall be displayed on signage around the Event Site during Category
One and Category Two events and shall also be publicised on the event's website and any agreed
appropriate social media sites

36. The Campsites, Car Parks and Event Site shall be patrolled by security and stewards in
accordance with the Security and Stewarding Plan during a Category One or Category Two Event

37. No glass containers or bottles shall be allowed inside the Event Site during a Category One or
Category Two event, with the exception of approved event traders. Bottle banks shall be located at the
entrances to the Event Site to facilitate disposal

38. During Category One or Category Two events all sales of alcohol and other drinks shall be
provided in polycarbonate or similar non-glass drinking vessels. All glass bottled drinks shall be
decanted at point of sale

The prevention of public nuisance

39. A dedicated telephone line shall be set up and staffed by the Premises Licence Holder at all
times during any event when reasonably required by the Licensing Authority so that members of the
public can contact the Premises Licence Holder with any problems they may have. The Premises
Licence Holder is to log all calls which are received and include what action has been taken, the log is
to be available for inspection by authorised officers upon request. The number of this telephone line
shall be publicised at least two weeks prior to the start of the event to residents likely to be disturbed by
the activities at the event

40. The Premises Licence Holder will take all reasonable steps to ensure that amplified music will
not cause a nuisance

41, The Premises Licence Holder shall appoint a suitably competent person(s) who shall prepare
and implement on and off site Traffic Management Plans (TMP's) which shall be included as part of the
EMP. The Off Site Traffic Management Plan shall include detail on:

Parking provisions

Road signage and offsite infrastructure

Internal sighage to car parks and campsite

Road cleaning

Bus and coach station provision

Rail and ride provision

Road closures

Contingency plans for ground surfaces

i Provision and management of a public drop off and collection point

42, Any queue which forms outside the premises shall be stewarded at all times to ensure that
minimal disturbance is caused

43. The Premises Licence Holder shall encourage customers not to congregate outside the
premises after the event has finished

44, Promotional literature and tickets will contain information regarding public transport options
and shall request persons to leave the area quietly

45, A sufficient number of easily identifiable, readily accessible receptacles for refuse must be
provided, including provisions for concessions/outlets. Arrangements must be made for regular
collection. Public areas must be kept clear of refuse and other combustible waste prior to, and so far as
is reasonably practicable during events

46. Litter bins shall be provided throughout the Campsites, around the Event Site and in the Car
Parks and shall be regularly emptied by the litter teams to prevent a build-up of waste

47. After any event any litter remaining will be collected and removed from the site as soon as
physically possible, either overnight or starting daybreak the following day if it is considered impractical
to collect the litter in darkness

48. The following noise conditions shall apply:

a) The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that a noise control consultant shall be appointed,
who shall liaise between all parties including the Premises Licence Holder, promoter, sound system
supplier, sound engineer and the Environmental Health Team on all matters relating to noise control
prior to the event.

S0 oo o

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 11 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.E.) @21 oaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

b) For the purposes of monitoring music noise levels during the event and sound check, the noise
control consultant shall contact the Environmental Health Team not less than 14 days before the event
unless otherwise agreed in writing and agree noise sensitive locations which are to be used to monitor
compliance with conditions (d), (e) and (f).

c) A noise propagation test shall be undertaken in consultation with representative(s) of the
Environmental Health Team prior to each Category One and Category Two event in order to set
appropriate control limits at the sound mixer position. The sound system shall be configured and
operated in a similar manner as intended for the event. The sound source used for the test shall be
similar in character to the music likely to be produced during the event.

d) The Music Noise Level (MNL) shall be managed to achieve whichever is the lower of background
noise + 15dB or 65dB with MNL and background noise as defined in the Pop Code

e) In addition, the music noise in the 63Hz and 125Hz octave frequency band shall be managed
S0 as not to exceed 15dB above the numerical value of the corresponding MNL

f) After 23:00 the MNL shall be managed so as to be as low as reasonably practicable but shall
not be less than 40dB and not greater than 45dB

g) Rehearsal and sound check times shall be limited between the hours of 10:00 and 20:00.
Notification of the time(s) and duration of sound checks shall be provided to the Environmental Health
Team at least 24 hours beforehand.

h) The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that the promoter, system supplier and all individual
sound engineers are informed of the sound control limits and that any instructions from the noise
control consultant regarding noise levels shall be implemented.

i) A communications link should be provided to enable condition (g) above to be complied with
and any numbers / radios shall be made available to the Environmental Health Team prior to the event
starting.

J) The appointed noise control consultant shall continuously monitor noise levels at the sound
mixer position and advise the sound engineer accordingly to ensure that the noise limits are not
exceeded. The Environmental Health Team shall have access to the results of the noise monitoring at
all times. The Environmental Health Team shall have access and facilities to enable them to carry out
their own monitoring.

k) The speakers must be located to the satisfaction of the Environmental Health Team.

49, The premises licence holder will supply a general noise management plan to the Licensing
Authority and EHO Tunbridge Wells and EHO Tonbridge and Malling annually in January alongside the
calendar of events. The plan will deal with issues including:

a. How noise from events will be controlled to prevent public nuisance

b. How noise from public address systems and other noise sources will be controlled to prevent
public nuisance

C. The contact details for any acoustic consultant(s) appointed for any Category One or Category

Two events taking place that year. The acoustic consultant(s) should have appropriate qualifications
and experience in undertaking noise monitoring. Should the Licensing Authority disagree with the
choice of acoustic consultant(s) then the Licensing Authority shall notify the Premises Licence Holder in
writing and an alternative acoustic consultant(s) shall be appointed where practicable

d. The locations of any noise sensitive premises where noise monitoring is proposed to take place
during any Category One or Category Two events

e. The equipment to be used by any acoustic consultant(s) appointed for any Category One or
Category Two events for noise monitoring

f. Details of how communication between the acoustic consultant(s) and mixing desks or noise
control operators will be managed

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 12 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020

Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.P&@@ﬂ_%@woaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

g. Details of how communication between the acoustic consultant(s) and the Environmental
Health Team will be managed

h. A proposed format for a post-event report following any Category One or Category two event
50. Following any Category One or Category Two Event the premises licence holder shall submit to

the Licensing Authority a post-event report giving noise monitoring data and details of any complaints
received on the complaints hotline during the event. The report will be submitted to the Licensing
Authority within 28 days of the event

51. Residential properties and the relevant amenity group(s) in the immediate vicinity of the Event
Site will be contacted as soon as reasonably practicable (and in any event no later than 14 days) prior
to any Category One or Category Two event advising them of the times of the event and any sound
check or rehearsal times and giving them a telephone number to contact in the event that they have
any complaints.

52. During the build-up and break down of the events site, any activities that might cause noise to
be audible outside the Event Site will be limited to the hours of 08:00 to 20:00 Monday - Friday, and
10:00 and 18:00 Saturday - Sunday

53. Any generators, refrigerators or other machinery running overnight will be silenced, screened or
sited so as not to be audible outside the Event Site

54, Unless agreed in writing with the Licensing Authority there shall be no use of fireworks or
pyrotechnics at any Category One or Category Two event

55. The Premises Licence Holder shall make arrangements, to the satisfaction of the Licensing
Authority, for the cleansing of litter and waste in the vicinity of the Event Site during and after Category
One and Category Two events

56. A Noise Dispersal Plan will be prepared in respect of each event held at the premises

Public safety

57. The Premises Licence Holder shall identify a competent event safety officer for all events and
circulate their name to the Licensing Authority and Kent Police in order to provide a specific point of
contact in relation to all matters pertaining to safety, before, during and after events. The Event Safety
Officer must have the authorisation and an ability to act unhindered on any issues relating to safety
58. Adequate medical and first aid cover and facilities appropriate to the licensed event must be
provided

59. Emergency exits and entrances to the event area must be kept clear at all times and must be
provided with clearly visible signage

60. Adequate stewarding within the licensed area must be provided at all times during the licensed
event

61. Stewards will be easily distinguishable from members of the public and other SIA or Police
personnel and shall wear reflective clothing clearly marked "Steward" or other appropriate word
signifying their duties

62. For all events all Stewards will be trained in their duties prior to allowing members of the public
onto the premises to ensure they have a full understanding of the operation, safety and emergency
procedures applicable to the event. All training records will be kept by a responsible person and be
available for inspection upon reasonable notice being given

63. No event likely to exceed a capacity of 1500 people shall be held unless there are two
operational entrance/exits from the event site onto the adopted road network unless written agreement
is obtained from the SAG

64. The Premises Licence Holder will ensure that there are adequate means of control to ensure
that only permitted numbers of persons gain access to the event site

65. Details of all marquees, tented structures and temporary structures should be provided
including emergency exits and signage, fire warning and firefighting equipment

66. A schedule detailing types and locations of firefighting equipment must be submitted to the
Safety Advisory Group or their authorised representative as required

67. For all category one and category two events full structural design details and calculations of all
and any structures to be erected within the licensed area, must be submitted to the Licensing Authority
14 days prior to the event unless a shorter time has been agreed in writing. A certificate from a
competent person or engineer that a completed structure has been erected in accordance with the

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 13 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020
Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.P&@@ﬂ_%/?noaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

structural drawings and design specification must be available for inspection prior to a relevant
structure being used during the licensed event

68. The Licensee must maintain a regular fire patrol at all times when the public are present in the
licensed area to check for and guard against possible fire hazards. The area underneath the stage to be
kept clear of flammable materials

69. All parts of the Event Site intended to be used in the absence of adequate daylight and all
essential safety signage shall be suitably illuminated. Details of the locations and level of illumination
must be submitted to the Safety Advisory Group

70. Unless otherwise agreed, the Premises Licence Holder must ensure an Egress Management
Plan is presented to and agreed by the Safety Advisory Group, or their authorised representative, no
later than 28 days prior to the event or as soon as practicable

71. The Premises Licence Holder shall appoint a suitably qualified competent person who shall
prepare and implement a Trader Information Management Plan which shall be included as part of the
EMP

72. Details of the food and drink outlets shall be provided to the Licensing Authority at least 30 days
prior to the event or as soon as practicable, to include:

a. Location of each individual outlet on plans provided to the Licensing Authority

b. Name of each outlet, trading name, food business operator and contact details, local authority
with which the outlet is registered

73. Food and drink outlets shall be monitored and managed to comply with food safety legislation,

have in place a food safety management system which shall be available for inspection by the festival
management and the Licensing Authority and that each is registered with a local authority

74. Any outlet found to be contravening any conditions of this licence or the EMP shall be prohibited
from trading on the Event Site during a Category One or Category Two event and asked to leave the site
75. The Premises Licence Holder shall appoint a suitably qualified competent person who shall
prepare and implement a Campsite Management Plan which shall be included as part of the EMP

76. In the event of a serious incident the lights will be turned on and the show shall be stopped

7. During Category One and Two Events a suitable physical barrier shall be put in place to prevent
patrons gaining access to the body of water on the Event Site. This barrier shall be maintained at all
times the Event Site is open to the public

The protection of children from harm

78. There shall be a welfare point (or equivalent area) for the reporting and management of lost
children. The welfare point will be staffed by trained (and appropriately certified by the Disclosure and
Barring Service) members of staff who will be in radio contact with the head steward and the safety co-
ordinator

79. A recognised 'Proof of Age' scheme (Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 as appropriate) shall be
implemented to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority and the Police with signage being displayed
in all locations relevant to the sale of alcohol

80. The Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS), or a person on their behalf, shall provide suitable
training or instruction to all staff engaged in the sale of alcohol in relation to the prevention of sales to
persons under the age of 18 years and to persons who are, or appear intoxicated with alcohol. A written
record shall be made of such training and be made available to the Licensing Authority or Police upon
request

81. NO person under the age of 18 shall be permitted to serve alcohol

82. Soft drinks and free drinking water shall be available on site as an alternative to alcohol.

83. No person under the age of 13 shall be permitted access through the entrances to the main
secured site unless they are accompanied by an adult. Persons under the age of 18 shall be supplied
with a tamper proof child specific wristband

Glossary of terms:

Event Site means any area for the provision of licensable activities in the form of the supply of alcohol,
regulated entertainment and late night refreshment

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 14 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020

Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.P&@@ﬂ_%&oaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



Appendix D

Campsite(s) means any area set aside for the provision of camping

Car Park(s) means any area set aside for the parking of motor vehicles or other modes of transport
EMP means the Event Management Plan

SAG means the Safety Advisory Group

Licensing Authority means Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

Premises Licence Holder means Mr lain Nicolas Samuel Love and Mr Robert Sheridan Bowie or any
subsequent transferees

Annex 4 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Licensing Sub Committee Monday 7 September 2020.

The Premises Licence is amended to allow the Premises Licence Holder to run two large events in 2021
for between 1500 and 4999 persons over a period of three days to enable the Environmental Health

Department to carry out proper testing of the noise management plan prepared by SPL Track.

On the Friday and Saturday of one of the events the terminal hour for the provision of live and all
recorded music would be 4 AM

On the other event the terminal hour for the provision of live and or recording the music would be 3 AM.
These events will replace one Category 1 event and one Category 2 event otherwise all existing
conditions of the licence will continue to apply for 2021.

Annex 5 - Plans

Please see attached

Licence Number: 19/04133/LAPRE Page 15 of 15
Issue Date: 23/09/2020

Licence issued by:
The Licensing Partnership P.P&@@ﬂ_%@noaks Kent TN13 1GP
Telephone number: 01732 227004



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E

From: Luke Johnson

Sent: 13 October 2021 14:56

To: Licensing

Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

Dear Sir, Madam,

| write in connection with the review of licence with respect to Colebrook Park.

| object in the strongest possible terms to the Category 3 licensed events continuing in their
current form. At a minimum, the conditions requested by the EP Team should all be imposed
(or the strongest form of them where expressed in the alternative).

The five events that took place over August and September this year caused significant
disruption to my family. We live on Vauxhall Lane, which | understand is over a mile away
from the venue (as the crow flies). Despite this distance, on the dates in question loud,
thumping base music was audible from around midday to well past midnight. This made our
garden unusable and ruined the natural ambience of the Weald.

The music penetrated the house at night time even with all windows shut. This made it
impossible to sleep until the event ended. During the day, the music could be heard in any
room where the radio or television was not being used to drown it out. It is not reasonable to
require residents to flood their houses with noise all day just to drown out the sound of these
events. | would also note that such method of drowning the noise out is rather ineffectual
given the ability for base beats to be heard over "regular" noise.

I understand from the terms of the license that these events are intended to be for all
practical purposes inaudible. As | hope the above demonstrates, this is emphatically not the
case. These events are causing significant disturbance to residents of the area. Immediate
steps need to be taken to control the noise output and successfully render them inaudible. If
that cannot be achieved, they should be prohibited.

Yours faithfully,

Luke Johnson

Page 161



Appendix E

From: Andrew Pentecost

Sent: 15 October 2021 14:15
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

Further to recent correspondence with Tunbridge Wells Borough Council, | write to advise of
the effect on us of the Alfresco Festival in Colebrook Park this year.

| live at Sandhurst Park TN2 3SZ.

In previous years we have been subjected to 3 days of loud music booming out (especially,
of course, bass and drums).

This year, we didn’t really hear anything during the day but music was evident when we went
to bed and continued until well after midnight. It was not excessively loud but was,
nonetheless, disturbing at that time of night.

Regards

Andrew

Page 162



Appendix E

Name: Mrs Emma Underwood

Address: Southborough, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN4 OAP
Comments Details

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application
Reasons for comment: - Noise Disturbance

Comments: 11:13 AM on 19 Oct 2021 | suffered extreme disturbance from two recent
events at Colebrook Lakes, on 27 to 29 August and 18-19 September. The Alfresco event
was the worst of the two. | was disturbed from excessive noise throughout the whole festival
during the day and the night. One night until 3am. | lodged a complaint at 1.30am on one of
the Alfresco evenings and the following day at 5pm. The noise from both events that
disturbed the most was the loud base. It sounded like it was thumping through the walls of
my house and | could feel the beat through the bed and through my body. The noise
definitely increased in volume as the evening progressed. For example, during the Alfresco
festival , the noise was more low key at 11am and seemed to get louder at 5pm and then
louder again at 10pm and was unbearable when | was in bed. The noise appeared worst in
the evenings and the early hours as there was no other ambient noise around to muffle it. |
was disturbed in the day too but this was less upsetting as | could get on with my day. | was
very upset at night as | couldn't sleep and | had to close my windows when it was very hot.
The noise appears to get funnelled up to Brian Crescent, where | live, as we are in an
elevated position bordering woodland. | noticed that the noise was not noticeable down in
the industrial estate but back at my house if felt as though my house was on top of the
festival. Loud music until 3am is not fair on residents. No-one should be subjected to the
level of noise the Alfresco festival generated and certainly not to 3am. It should finish at
9.30pm. Why should the majority of residents who pay high council tax have to suffer such
intolerable noise for the minority who want to party? | can't put into words how much stress
was generated by the Alfresco festival. | can't imagine having to live through that year after
year and | know all my neighbours in Brian Crescent feel the same.

Page 163



Appendix E

From: Joanne Funnell

Sent: 27 October 2021 11:06

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

Please see below my comments for the above hearing regarding the Colebrook Park Events.

I am one of the local residents who has had to endure these awful music festivals over the
past few years. Every time they are here there are complaints about the volume and base
from the events. Every time people call and complain and all that is done is calls are logged.
Nothing is done at the time of the event so as soon as it starts we know its going to be like
that all weekend. We are trapped and feel very annoyed that nothing can be done. Why
should our weekends be ruined by these events. The organisers and licence holders are not
very sympathetic. | have spoken to both in the past and they say they will do something but
they do not and probably have no intention of doing anything. | have severe anxiety and |
cannot leave the house which is why | feel like | am trapped in my own house when these
events are on, they are simply awful and should not be allowed to go on at this site which is
surrounded by houses. | understand there was 54 complaints from the last events which
incidentally were on every weekend throughout August giving us no weekend respite from it.
These events make me ill to the point | can’t eat, | get very anxious even when | see a event
is going to happen at that site because | know what is going to happen. Please can you do
something as these events have been allowed to go on for years now at the same high
music level and it is simply not acceptable to us locals who have to put up with them every
year. Even writing this | am feeling anxious as | really want something done about this but
am unable to attend to get my point across. Please please think about the residents when
reviewing the licence, we shouldn’t have to feel trapped in our own homes and feel ill
because of licence holders and organisers who don’t care about the noise they make to the
local residents. Thank you. Joanne Funnell

Ive also attached some comments from a petition | started regarding this which incidentally
has over 300 signatures which gives you a indication of the amount of people it affects.

Page 164


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

22:37 Sun12 Sep

22:37 Sun12 Sep

Appendix E

= 62% @ )
& change.org
Reasons for signing
See why other supporters are signing, why this petition is important to them, and share your reason for
signing (this will mean a lot to the starter of the petition).
alice swan
2 weeks ago
A whole week of thumping bass, day and night
Q1 |
Steph Collie
2 weeks ago
Events that are this loud should not be able to go past midnight when there are so many residents
living nearby. An earlier cut off time should be introduced for loud music on evenings before the
standard work days. (On Sun 22nd loud music continued beyond 12am.)
Q1 | 1}
Alexander D
2 weeks ago
The events at Colebrook are an absolute menace. The licensing allowing that allows these to continue
until 3am makes absolutely no consideration for the volume of people living nearby. This needs to be
changed.
Q1 | 1}
= 62% @ )

@ change.org

" Linda Basins
2 weeks ago
I live in High Brooms & can hear the thumping beat from the Festival day & night. Last night the

thumping beat went on until 3 am in the morning. | had trouble sleeping. | believe all live music should
cease at midnight.

Q1 L |

® Megan Colclough

@) 2weeksago
The noise from this festival was incredibly loud and disruptive, particularly at night. | understood it was
meant to end at 11:30pm but it goes on much later than that, until 3am. Can’t have windows open
because of the noise, and during the day can't sit in the garden. It’s been across 3 days so our whole
weekend ruined, and other festivals on this site are similar - this year they have been on consecutive
weekends.

¥3 [ Share W Tweet .

Clare Hardy
2 weeks ago
It's an unsuitable site for loud music with a penetrating bass that travels up to 5 miles until 3am, and

not just the one festival any more, but multiple festivals every weekend. It's way too close to residential
areas. “Having fun” by some, shouldn’t mean causing misery to others.

Q1 |}

Page 165



Appendix E

22:37 Sun12 Sep = 62% @ )
@& change.org

Richard Groves

2 years ago
These noisy events at Colebrook are causing a lot of distress to many residents across the area
including myself and need to be stopped because they are simply too close to thousands of homes. The
sound travels for literally miles and is far too loud; furthermore the organisers have treated residents
with contempt when they have complained and additionally the events sometimes continue into the
early hours of the morning when the licence requires them to stop before midnight.

92 [ Share W Tweet '.'

Chloe Comeau
2 years ago

| live very close to Colebrook Lakes and am fed up of the bass noise coming into my house when | am
trying to have a relaxing bath at night time. Am also pregnant so need my sleep but with the noise from
these damn festivals it makes sleep extremely difficult!

If people want these festivals they should go somewhere like Glastonbury and leave us all in peace!

We moved here thinking it was a quiet area to bring up a family but it seems we were proved very
wrong. These festivals actually really get me down and make me want to move house. 3

92 [l Share W Tweet .

Page 166



Appendix E

From: D Lambert

Sent: 27 October 2021 15:59

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

Hello | tried to comment on review 21/02689, but got an error message when | tried to
submit my comment. I've copied the comments below and would grateful if you would
forward them to the appropriate person. | am commenting as a member of the public, and
the reason for my comment is Noise disturbance.

Thank you
Comment begins:

We agree with the grounds for review of the licence as stated by Duncan Haynes. We are
speaking as residents affected by events held at Colebrook Lakes both this year and
previous years..

» Whether Class 1 or 3 events - the noise levels remain the same. As for making a distinction
between inside/outside events - a marquee hardly counts as inside

* We had 3 day festivals on 3 consecutive weekends. Should never be so close together,
gives no respite, should spread apart and 1 day only

There seems to be no noise reduction in operation. The only mitigating factor | have found is
the wind direction. Events held 7/9,14/16 August, the wind was blowing from the SW - blew
any noise away from T Wells.

However, 27/29 August, the noise was noticeable because wind was blowing towards the
town. We live about 2 miles away in a dip close to Hilbert Park. The noise woke us 2.30am
Friday 27, Saturday 28 about 1.30am, despite wearing ear plugs and bedroom windows
closed. It sounded as if it was very close.

*» Events should cease at 11.00pm.

We went out for the day on Sunday 29th to avoid the noise, but when we came home, it was
very loud, coming across in waves as wind direction changed. Inside the house, we heard
the beat above the TV with all the windows closed. At one point | thought it was a car parked
outside the music was so loud.

When we went to bed, we closed the bedroom windows and wore earplugs and yet still
heard the relentless base beat. | was so angry about the disturbance | contacted our
councillors and councillors for Sherwood the next day.

On 18/19 Sept, noise was audible from 10pm. At first | thought it was a party, but realised it
was coming again from North Farm direction.

We would have booked to go away on 27/29 August to avoid the noise, but it was too
expensive. It just seems unfair and impacts on residents in the area. We personally would
guestion the wisdom of allowing loud music events so close to a densely populated area. JP
& DA Lambert

Page 167


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Linda Playne

Sent: 27 October 2021 17:00

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/Review

Good afternoon

I would like to lodge my objection to the licencing of events at Colebrook / North Farm.
Tunbridge Wells.

As local residents we have on numerous occassions been subject to loud music late into the
night from events at this location over the last few years.

This year the Alfresco Festival that was held over the August Bank Holiday weekend was
unacceptable - loud music from lunchtime through until 3am disturbed us all weekend
making sleeping difficult and spoiling the daytime as we couldn't even relax in our garden.
This is just the worst of a number of events that have caused us issue both this and previous
years.

| do hope you give due consideration to the well being of local residents when looking at the
renewal of the licence for this venue and choose not to renew.

Best regards

Mr & Mrs Playne

Tunbridge Wells
TN2 3HW

Page 168


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Samantha L Porter

Sent: 27 October 2021 12:05

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

COLEBROOK PARK LICENCE REVIEW 21/02689/REVIEW
Dear Sirs

Our property is situated approximately 700m away from the heart of the Colebrook venue
with only open land and the A21 in between. For clarification, our property is located at the
'Autoright’ pin on Google Maps shown when our postcode, TN11 OFW, is searched. We
have lived here for just over 2 years.

After being disturbed by loud music and heavy bass noise for the first time on Saturday 7
August, we looked into the matter. We noted that according to the current Licence
(19/01433/LAPRE) live and recorded music both indoors and outdoors is permitted on
Thursdays 18.00-23.00, on Fridays 12.00-03.00 and on Saturdays and Sundays 10.00-
03.00. Potentially causing us considerable disturbances for a total of 54 hours for every
weekend of the year.

We were then horrified to learn that an application had been made by the Licencees to
extend these hours for 4 'large' events per year and that, if approved by the Licensing
Committee, all music could play both inside and outside until 04.30 for a total of four days
over bank holidays. The application also requests that the time period between these 4
events be shortened from 28 days to the 21 stated in the current licence. This is in addition
to the 54 hours of music permitted for every other weekend. Although we can find no
evidence of the Licensing Committee approving this variation, we assume it has been
granted as we have discovered that a 4 day event is planned at the venue for 6-9 May 2022
(Tribal Village Outdoors) and tickets are already on sale via accessallareas.org.

The noise management plans specified within the licence for the larger events do not apply
to the smaller Category 3 events. Whilst outside music must finish by 11pm, indoor music is
permitted until 03.00. Indoor music at Colebrook is played in a marquee which evidently
provides hardly any soundproofing qualities and we feel that any indoor provisions should be
removed from the Licence for all categories of events, therefore ensuring that all music finish
by 11pm at the venue. Together with noise management plans for all categories, keeping
disturbances to local residents to a minimum. Limiting the total number of events at the
venue and increasing the respite period between them would also be welcome.

Current noise levels and event durations, we feel, are excessive and regular disturbances as
permitted under the current Licence will affect not only the way in which we enjoy our
property, but also the state of our mental health.

Details of our experience of disturbances are outlined below.

We were first disturbed by the loud music, heavy bass and overly loud p/a systems on
Saturday 7 August. We believed this to be a local residents’' wedding celebration and
therefore did not make a formal complaint as it would have been a 'one-off'. The disturbance
started at lunchtime - just as our own family lunch began in our garden. The disturbance
was non-stop until 3am. The music, bass and p/a system could clearly be heard during the
whole event and seemed to be worse once the A21 traffic lessened at about 9pm. We had,

Page 169


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

by then, retired to the house and closed all of our windows in an attempt to escape the noise
- to no avail. Even with windows closed, the noise could be clearly heard over the tv and
until 3am. As a side note, it was a very warm night and having to close the windows was
extremely inconvenient.

We had the exact same experience on Sunday 8 August and decided to investigate. We
found the Colebrook event advertised on social media and realised that this was one of
several events planned by the venue during the coming month.

Again, we did not complain as we firmly believed that there would have been numerous
complaints from the local community about the event and that the Council would step in to
address the noise issue before the next event.

The noise was disturbing again on 13 August. We drove the local area as it sounded as
though someone was sitting in their car close to our house with their radio blaring. Finding
nobody, we realised that it was another Colebrook event and the Council had, despite
numerous complaints about the previous event, failed to take steps to reduce the noise.

Again, we could clearly hear music, bass and p/a systems until 3am on the Friday and
Saturday, both in our garden during the day and during the evening, inside with windows
closed and over the tv. We are unsure of the time the disturbance started on the Friday and
Saturday or stopped on the Sunday as we failed to make a note of it. We made a formal
complaint to the Council about this event due to sleep deprivation.

We were, again, disturbed from around lunchtime on Friday 20 August until the early hours,
we are unsure of the hours on Saturday and until Lam on Sunday 22 August. We had the
same problems as on the previous two events. The music during this event was slightly
quieter than on the previous two but we could still clearly hear it and the bass and p/a
systems seemed to be just as loud as before.

The event on 27, 28 and 29 were just as disturbing - particlarly the bass noise. We are
unsure of times for the Friday and Sunday but were disturbed until 3am on the Saturday
night. Again, over tv and windows closed.

Fortunately, we were away over the weekend of the 17th September when the last event
took place.

To be clear, when we say we are unsure of the times of disturbances, this is not because we
were not disturbed. We were disturbed for the whole duration of all events during August.
We did not, unfortunately, make a note of all starting and finishing times for all of the
‘festivals'.

To sum up, for every weekend in August, the enjoyment of our property, both indoors and
ouside, during the day and at night, was compromised due to excessively loud music, bass
and p/a systems.

Tony and Samantha Porter
TN11 OFW

Page 170



Appendix E

From: Katherine Slessor

Sent: 27 October 2021 12:22

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: Colbrook noise

Hi,
I have already made complaints at the time, but | was told to do this also.
If | don't give enough information please let me know.

We were disturbed on every night of the events, the exception being the one in September
which did not disturb us. This might have been the wind direction, or the measures they put
in place.

The August dates on affected us from 10pm onwards, our son had just come out of hospital
(having been there 3 months and now being disabled) so sleep was really really important.
But every night they seemed to get louder between 1pm and 2pm.

It was warm, and we wanted the windows open but this was impossible. So we run fans to
try and dull the noise, and keep us cool. It was the bass that was terrible, just a thud thud
thud continuously until 2am.

My husband is a nurse at Pembury hospital, and he was going into work having had only 4
hours sleep which is unreasonable.

We have no issue with the event on a Friday and Saturday night until 12, that seems
reasonable. But that level of noise until 2am is intolerable when we live in a village not a
town next to a night club. Sunday night is also unreasonable when people have to get up for
work having had very little sleep all weekend.

If you need anything else just let me know.

Thanks

Katherine Slessor-Pavely

Pembury
TN2 4ER

Page 171


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: simon charlesworth

Sent: 26 October 2021 16:03

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

My name is Simon Charlesworth and | live on Vicarage Road in Southborough.

| wish to complain about the noise pollution coming from several events at Colbrooke Farm
over the summer.

These events have seriously disturbed our quality of life, caused loss of sleep and
enjoyment of a bank holiday weekend and other weekends over the summer.

The licensing of these events is unacceptable, unnecessary and an intrusion into our lives
and permission for future events should not be allowed.

My house backs on to the wooded valley and farm land that runs across the valley towards
the a21.

We have been disturbed regularly during previous summers by loud electronic music,
certainly over the summer bank holiday weekend but have not known the source.

We know understand that this is coming from Colebrook lakes or the industrial estate in
Tunbridge wells.

This summer has been worse than usual.

On the weekend of the August Bank holiday, we had loud electric music, from early
afternoon to the early hours of the night on Saturday and Sunday and during the day | think
on the Monday.

The drum and bass beat is very clear when siting in my garden - can occasionally hear the
DJ and some higher frequencies. Very intrusive and spoiled a nice weekend.

In the house, even with the double glazed windows closed, the bass beat in clearly audible.
With the windows open, this was highly intrusive and disturbed or sleep.
Last weekend, was worse.

Music again starting in the afternoon, even louder and clearer... highly irritating in the
garden.

Again clearly audible inside the house, even with the windows open.
Very unhappy about this.

The sound is clearly audible all down Pennington road and I’'m sure anywhere having access
to the woodlands and beyond.

Page 172


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

It is many miles cross country between vicarage road and the source of the noise - traveling
along the valley with or without wind.

These events are highly disturbing and intrusive on our enjoyment of our outside spaces, but
also inside our property.

I’'m happy to talk about this as is my wife, as it's completely unacceptable to have to suffer
this..../:

I’'m sure that there are many unhappy people and these events should not be approved by
the council.

Appreciate your assistance in ensuring that these type of events are no longer tolerated, or
that extensive sound reduction methods are made to eliminate, not just reduce this noise
pollution.

Regards

Simon Charlesworth

Page 173



Appendix E

From: Hugh Patterson (Cllr) <Hugh.Patterson@TunbridgeWells.gov.uk>
Sent: 26 October 2021 17:02

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>

Cc: Duncan Haynes <Duncan.Haynes@MidKent.gov.uk>; John McCullough
<John.McCullough@MidKent.gov.uk>

Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW Colebrook

Dear sir/Madam,

As the councillor for Capel Ward on TWBC | would like to to support the views of my
constituent quoted below who is one of the residents who want to see the licence at
Colebrook reviewed by the licensing partnership. | would add the inhabited part of the ward
| represent is some considerable distance from the venue and | was surprised how badly the
residents of Half Moon Lane, Tudeley were affected by the disturbance in the summer.
Please see the quote below from an email Mr Hodgson sent me at the time (20th

August) which | believe explains his and his neighbours' experience very well.

Kind regards Hugh Patterson

As you may already be aware, on Friday evening there was very loud music coming from
across the countryside to the west of us, keeping us both awake until around 2am. |
assumed it was a private party that had gotten a bit wild, and didn't really think much more of
it. | am generally fairly tolerant of such things, and don't mind the odd one-off disturbance,
but | was surprised to hear the thumping bass resume at about lunchtime on Saturday. That
evening, we had guests staying with us, both of whom were looking forward to a peaceful
break with us in the countryside as they have two young children, but we were all kept
awake again until long after midnight. My heart sank when | heard things resume for a third
day on Sunday. Although the disturbance on Sunday continued late into the night, | was so
tired from the previous two nights that it didn't prevent me from sleeping.

| was amazed to discover that this significant disturbance was coming from a presumably
licenced multi-day event at Colebrook Park. We walked from Tudeley to Matfield and back
on Sunday, and incredibly we could still hear it across the countryside at least 3 miles from
the venue. ... It strikes me that, on balance, it is unreasonable to allow the disturbance of a
significant number of people who live in an otherwise quiet rural area, for such a significant
length of time, continuing so late into the early hours of the morning, for multiple weekends —
ultimately for the benefit of the operators of this venue and event.

It seems like this disturbance impacted many other neighbours — | saw a lot of discussion
about it on social media (namely: Facebook and NextDoor) over the weekend.

I made contact with the venue over Facebook in a sleep-deprived state on Saturday
evening. To their credit, a representative from Colebrook Park responded promptly and
politely, however they were quite insistent that they were compliant with the terms of their
license. Given that such compliance is presumably of existential importance to them, | have
no particular reason to disbelieve (nor believe) their claim, and suspect that fault may lie with
whichever authority granted the license. | am very surprised that a licence was issued and
have to charitably assume that this was issued with oversight as to the considerable impact
to residents East of the venue.

Page 174


mailto:Hugh.Patterson@TunbridgeWells.gov.uk
mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk
mailto:Duncan.Haynes@MidKent.gov.uk
mailto:John.McCullough@MidKent.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Harry Dale

Sent: 26 October 2021 17:18

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

| wish to complain in the strongest possible terms about the noise from Colebrook Lakes
(21/02689/REVIEW) over the August bank holiday weekend; allowing a festival so close to a
residential area shows a complete disregard to not only the local residents but also the local
wildlife. Should future events this be allowed to go ahead one can only surmise that the
licensing committee only care about money.

We were disturbed on the 27th & 28th August, my details are as follows:

e Harry Dale
e Greggs Wood Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 3HU
e Both nights | could hear noise from about 10pm until about 12am.

The noise was largely thumping bass and general music noise, rather than noise from
festival goers.

It wasn't uniform as presumably not all songs were equally loud and there were gaps
between songs/DJs, etc.

It seemed to get worse as time went on, but that may have been because there was fewer
other noises.

We were only disturbed at night, when trying to sleep. We had our bedroom window open as
it was summer.

Having such a noisy festival less than a mile (as a the crow flies) from a residential area is a

disgrace. Events at Colebrook Lakes should never be allowed to go past 8:30pm. I'd love to
know who was responsible for OKing this so | could arrange a festival outside their house!

Page 175


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Perry Harlock

Sent: 26 October 2021 17:58

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: Licence review reference 21/02689/REVIEW

I would like to let you know how the events at Colebrook Park over the summer affected our
household, specifically the Alfresco festival on the August Bank Holiday weekend 27th - 29th
August 2021.

Whilst other festivals on other dates could be heard from our house (Barnetts Way) they had
finished by 10pm which we felt was acceptable. There was no disruption to our sleep.
However, the level of music (especially the bass) coming from the Alfresco festival over the
3 nights on a Bank Holiday Weekend until 3am felt excessive. The music could be heard
during the day which is fine, but trying to sleep at night was extremely difficult with a loud
thumping bass being clearly heard in our bedroom until 3am. By the end of the weekend we
felt exhausted and like we had had our weekend ruined.

My partner and | were kept awake on all 3 nights and in the end had to resort to wearing
headphones to attempt to block out the noise which was extremely uncomfortable. Whilst |
appreciate other people's right to have fun | don't feel this should be at the expense of
residents' sleep (especially over a Bank Holiday Weekend when you would hope to relax
and recharge). 3am feels like an unreasonable time for a festival to finish when it can be
clearly heard by the surrounding residents.

| reported the disturbance to the Environmental Health Team at the time and would like you
to take my complaint into consideration when considering the review of the licence for this
venue.

Many thanks
Perry Harlock
Barnetts Way

Tunbridge Wells
Kent

Page 176


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Amanda Vokes

Sent: 26 October 2021 18:38

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW Colebrook Park

I am Amanda Vokes, , The Ridgewaye, Southborough, Tunbridge Wells, TN4 OAD and am
writing with regard to the events at Colebrook Park through August 2021 - as follows:s

7 — 9" August 2021 - we were away from home in The Lakes
14-16™ August 2021 - we were away from home in Cornwall

27-29" August - we could hear amplified music from about midday but not too
annoying as all the other day time noises blended it out! By early evening the noise
was very loud - it sounded as if it was coming from the bottom of the garden. The
music got louder through the evening and was easily audible through the double
glazing. We had to put ear plugs in - my son has never had to do this before - he's 16
and could not sleep through the noise. We had to shut all windows and put on all
fans to try to create our own white noise. The heavy bass was beating through the
wall until at least 2am when | finally got to sleep (fan on, ear plugs in).

e 18/19"™ September - as above but continuing for less time. Much louder this time
though - we could hear the whole dance tracks as if we were in the tent with the
speakers. Really awful on the Yew Tree Road playing fields.

The landscape forms a natural amphitheatre unfortunately - which | think means that the
problem is not solvable unless you change the topography! The venue is just too close to a
massive residential area - Colebrook Lake is not Glastonbury. | want to stress that | am not
complaining about faint sound levels of a distant music festival, or the odd bass note coming
across on the breeze, but in fact noise levels meaning we hear a full soundtrack of a raging
music festival as if it was in the back garden - hour after hour after hour. The noise is
inescapable and hard to carry a conversation over. When a situation like this occurs, ie. one
that is entirely inescapable and beyond our control night after night - no recourse whatsoever
- it affects our mental health, our anxiety levels and we are now dreading next August. This
is our home, not a festival ground. Put plainly, it's just rude.

Kind regards,
Amanda Vokes.

Page 177


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Alison Penn

Sent: 24 October 2021 19:27

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW Colebrook Park

I am writing concerning the pop festival held in Coldbrook Park on bank holiday weekend in
August 2021.

I live in Andrew Road, with my garden backing onto the allotments, so facing towards
Colebrook Park.

The music was easily heard - in the day time it was less of a distraction. Although as the
weather wasn't particularly good, | was sitting outside less than normal.

However in the evening there was an incessant deep bass noise which went on past

11pm. My bedroom backs onto my garden and | could feel and hear this noise even with the
windows closed. | found myself moving to my front bedroom in order to sleep.

| think given the proximity of Colebrook Park to the residential area, the issue of the
loudness of the noise, the deep bass thudding noise and the timing of such a concert need
to be addressed.

Thank you

Yours faithfully
Alison Penn (Dr)

Page 178


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: PAULINE SMITH

Sent: 19 October 2021 13:09

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: Licence Review 21/02689/REVIEW

I would like to object to any future licenses being issued for loud music festivals at Colebrook
Lakes, Park Lane, Kingstanding Way, Tunbridge Wells TN2 3UP. The area is rural and
generally quiet and with residential properties nearby is not suitable for noisy thumping
music festivals which can be heard for miles causing disruption to every day life.

Detailed below is how my life was disrupted by Alfresco Festival over August bank holiday
weekend this year.

Pauline Smith
Ashenden Walk
Tunbridge Wells
TN2 3UJ

27-29th August

It started with thumping base at about 11am Friday 27th August and continued until early
hours | went to bed which is a the back of my house at about 10pm | knew that the only way
| was going to get any sleep was to put ear plugs in but | didn’t sleep that well due to the ear
plugs and when | woke in the night and removed an ear plug | could still hear thumping base
sound. My double glazed windows were shut. The noise was about the same level all the
time.

On the Saturday 28th August | went out about 8.45am and when | returned home in the
afternoon as soon as | got out of my car | could hear thumping base sound. | had planned to
do some gardening in the afternoon but didn’t due to the thumping base sound which was
even louder in my back garden. The thumping sound continued at the same level as Friday. |
went to bed about 10pm again with double glazed windows shut and ear plugs in again
awoke in early hours due to ear plugs and when | removed them could still hear thumping
sounds. | didn’t check the time as | don’t want to know what time my sleep has been
disturbed. | usually sleep all night without ear plugs.

Sunday 29th August it started again at 11am | was in my bedroom which is at the back of the
house and | had to turn up the television so that | could hear it over the thumping base
sound even with the double glazed window shut. It sounded louder than Friday or Saturday. |
then went out as | didn’t want to hear the thumping sound all afternoon and evening and
possibly into early hours. | returned home about 6pm | was very reluctant to return home and
as soon as | got out of the car | could hear the thumping base sound | could hear sings but
the words were not clear enough to hear what the song or what the tune was. It sounded
louder and as if it was coming from the houses at the bottom of Ashenden Walk. | went to
bed about 10pm double glazed windows shut ear plugs in. | had trouble getting to sleep as
the ear plugs had become uncomfortable after having to use them 3 night running.

For several days after the thumping base sound stopped | kept getting anxious that it was
about to start again.

There is little traffic in Ashenden Walk as it not a through road and the area is generally
quiet. At the bottom of my garden are woods then industrial buildings. There have been
alarms that have gone off from the buildings that have disturbed the peace from time to time
over the years and sometimes if | am awake early in the morning in the week | hear what
sounds like a metal container being dropped but nothing that stops me sleeping or wakes

Page 179


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

me like to thumping base sound from Alfresco Festival over the August bank holiday
weekend.

After 3 nights of disturbed sleep | was unable to enjoy August bank holiday Monday as | was
too tired to do anything.

I have checked the map and the noise is coming from 1.1 mile from my home. | have lived in
Ashenden Walk TN2 3UJ since 1987 and this has only become problem since late night
music started at Colebrook Park and every year since it started it has been on it has been
been a noise problem and | have complained to the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council every

time but it continues except last year when it was peaceful when it was cancelled due to
COVID.

Pauline

Page 180



Appendix E

From: Jill Newton

Sent: 29 October 2021 11:23

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>

Subject: Colebrook Park Licence Review 21/02689/REVIEW

21/02689/REVIEW

| was disturbed quite severely by the first festival at the beginning of August. The noise was
very loud and booming. There was a noticeable bass which was very uncomfortable.

Not only was it loud but the time was really anti-social. It was very hot , so obviously the
windows were open. | live in The Gill in Pembury. TN2 4DJ. It started early , around
7.30pm. It carried on, with no reduction in volume until at least 3am in the morning. We had
the noise on the Friday and Saturday night. It was slightly reduced on the Sunday night.

Even at Glastonbury and London they have end times. There should be no noise after
11pm. After all the festival site is very close to houses and the noise obviously travels
across the valley to Pembury. This is not fair on residents.

The other festivals that took place were not so noisy but there was no mistaking the boom,
boom beat that went on for hours.

| feel that these festivals are for the benefit of people outside the area. Residents' wishes
and well being should be taken into account. | am an OAP and need my sleep. Not only
that | had a young child overnight the first weekend and he had a very distubed night.

So, to sum up, there should be strict time constraints on this kind of activity, similar to other
venues close to residential areas, and there should be a strict level of noise allowed. |
understand that because it is in a covered area it is classed as indoors. Well, unless the
walls are of a solid , brick construction this surely should be taken into consideration. The
laws of physics are clear. Sound is stopped more effectively by bricks! Heavy tarpaulin, not
so much!

Thank you

Jill Newton

Page 181


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Nicola Johnson

Sent: 29 October 2021 12:02

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: Colebrook Park Events

21/02689/REVIEW

As aresident of a nearby estate, | am writing to protest about the renewal of the licence for
the above company. This summers events especially the festivals went on into the early
hours of the morning with a constant booming noise mixed with crowd noise, rendering sleep
impossible for 3 nights in a row for myself and my neighbours.

| contacted the TWBC at the time to register my complaint.

| do think it is unreasonable to expect local residents to put up with this noise until 2 or 3am.
Besides keeping young children from their sleep, residents could not enjoy the peace of their
gardens due to the constant and | mean constant noise.

| do hope you will take these comments into consideration before granting a similar licence
again.

Yours faithfully

Nicola Johnson (Mrs)

Page 182


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

Address: Colebrook Park Colebrooke Lakes Land East Of Kingstanding Way Royal
Tunbridge

Wells Kent TN2 3UP

Name: Mrs Sophie Carpenter

Address Admiral Walk, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN2 3XY
Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application
Comment Reasons:

- Noise Disturbance

- Opening Hours

- Prevention of Public Nuisance

Comment:8:34 PM on 30 Oct 2021 Here is the letter | sent to Licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk
in

case anyone needs somewhere to start:
Obijection - 21/02689/REVIEW

I would like to formerly register my objection to the lateness and volume of the festivals that
are

allowed to take place at the Colebrook Lakes.

| believe these events should have the volume significantly limited well below their current
levels

and the hours needs bringing forward to an 11pm finish in line with similar events in
Tunbridge

Wells such as Pub in the Park in other residential areas.

These events that can be heard over a mile away, meaning that my daughter cannot have
her

bedroom window open on summer nights due to the noise making it impossible for her to
sleep. In

addition, we have have no peace and quiet for whole weekends and bank holiday weekends
when we would like to be able to enjoy our own garden.

These feativals go on for far too many weekends over the course of the year are not
acceptable so

close to residential housing.
Kind regards,

Sophie Carpenter

Admiral Walk

Page 183



Appendix E

From: Megan Colclough <

Sent: 31 October 2021 13:05

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk>; John McCullough
<john.mccullough@midkent.gov.uk>; duncan.haynes@midkent.gov.uk

Subject: Comments on Colebrook Lakes Licensing Review - ref. 21/02689/REVIEW

Good afternoon,

| understand there is to be a licensing review for Colebrook Lakes and | would like to add my
comments please.

My partner and | live at Ashenden Walk, Tunbridge Wells, TN2 3UJ (our house backs on to
Home Farm Lane, at the back of the industrial units). We have lived here for 3 years now
and this is the first year we have particularly noticed the noise from the festival site (granted,
last year was obviously slightly different circumstances).

The noise was noticed on each of the weekends a festival was held (probably from about
mid-afternoon). The worst was by far the Alfresco festival, with its loud thumping music
lasting well in to the night. In fact, it seemed to get louder the later it got. We usually have
the windows open at night, but had to close them to try and make it quieter (not that it made
much difference); it was also quite a warm night on that occasion so sleeping was made
even more difficult. I'm also not sure it finished at the stated 2am time.

As we could hear it thumping away throughout the day, we also were disturbed if we wanted
to do anything in our back garden for the whole weekend (i.e. have a bbg or meet with
friends, which we ended up not doing because of the noise).

The other festivals were similarly noisy and disruptive - difficult to sleep at night, constant
noise throughout the day. They seemed to perhaps finish a little earlier though, and the
music wasn't quite as thumping.

I think one of the main problems, other than the noise, was that this was a number of
disruptive events across a short period of time and over consecutive weekends. We work all
week and to then have our down time at the weekend disrupted was not appreciated.

No warning was given to residents about the upcoming events and possible disruption,
which just created further bad sentiment towards the organisers. Yes, | heard they offered
free tickets to local residents for one of the festivals but to be honest, | doubt many would
have taken up that offer - it was of no interest to us and | am certain it was of no interest to
our elderly nextdoor neighbours!

If these festivals were to take place in somewhere like Dunorlan Park and cause as much
disruption there as they have to us | feel more action would have been taken (if a licence
would even have been granted there!) but because of our location, less was done to
consider the nearby residents. | personally don't think the site should be used, or at least not
for weekend long events, because the music carries so loudly and it's not fair to the
residents nearby to have a number of our summer weekends disrupted. It seems that profit
from the festivals was preferred over the welfare of the council tax-paying residents.

Thank you.

Best wishes,
Megan Colclough

Page 184


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk
mailto:john.mccullough@midkent.gov.uk
mailto:duncan.haynes@midkent.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Claire Coxon <

Sent: 31 October 2021 10:57

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>

Subject: Events at Colebrook Lakes, North Farm. 21/02689/REVIEW

Dear Sir/Madam,

Please find below details of dates on which we have been disturbed by music events held at
Colebrook Lakes. We would greatly appreciate your consideration of the disturbance when
granting licensing at the venue as the increase in very noisy events is having an extremely
negative impact on our home life.

Event 7-9th August 2021
Nothing of memorable disturbance here but we do hear the music in the distance.

Event 14-16th August 2021
Nothing of memorable disturbance here but we do hear the music in the distance.

Event 27-29th August 2021
Mrs Claire and Mr Nick Coxon - 1 Doon Brae, Southborough, Kent. TN4 OTF

We noticed noise from this event on all dates above, it was particularly noticeable in the late
afternoon/early evening from 6pm. We did not complain about the noise at the time because
we appreciate that people want to have fun over the bank holidays, but did not expect to be
disturbed every single night over that weekend.

On each date we were disturbed and were able to hear music and particularly the base
beating inside our home (double glazed) with the windows shut. It was not pleasant to be
outside in the garden in the evenings with a constant thumping from the event. We don't
have a note of the exact time the music stopped but it was definitely 1am and possibly later.
Each night we hear music from Colebrook Lakes, we feel obliged to try and stay awake until
the event has finished because we know it will be very hard to sleep. Our young daughter
who has just started secondary school also struggles to sleep whenever these events are
held.

Event 18-19th September 2021
Mrs Claire and Mr Nick Coxon - Doon Brae, Southborough, Kent. TN4 OTF

We first noticed noise from this event at around 6pm and were completely shell shocked at
the volume. | was so shocked that | made a call to the Councils 'out of hours' phone number
at around 7.15pm. The noise, music, DJ and base vibrations were at an absolutely
horrendous level. We closed all windows and doors and could still hear and feel the music
inside the house. Even with the television on we could still hear the festival over the
programme noise!!

The noise heard was as mentioned above, the DJ whipping up the crowd, the music songs
identifiable and the horrendous level of base. The volume was consistent throughout and
only subsided when the particular song eased ready for the base to be blasted out again.
We have NEVER, EVER heard such a terrible amount of noise from and event in all of the
8/9 years of living at this address. At one point we even felt it may be necessary to contact
the police for advice. My daughter was extremely upset because there wasn't a chance of

Page 185


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk
x-apple-data-detectors://5/
x-apple-data-detectors://6/
x-apple-data-detectors://9/
x-apple-data-detectors://10/

Appendix E

sleeping through the noise, even though we had all windows and doors closed. Not pleasant
on a warm evening.

We are very concerned that Colebrook Lakes venue are a business hoping to cash in on the
festival scene and make these event more regular and event bigger in capacity. Believe me,
we enjoy a party as much as the next person but these events are taking the absolute biscuit
now. They seem to be hosted almost every weekend (certainly over the summer months),
they are definitely becoming louder and to be honest they are making our weekends a bit of
a misery. We work hard all week, my husband and | and also my daughter at school. We
would like to be able to relax and sleep at the weekend but this is becoming very difficult at
times.

The level of noise from the last event was truly horrendous!!! I've never heard anything so
intrusive in my life. Ever.

Yours sincerely

Claire and Nick Coxon

Page 186



Appendix E

From: Andy Rankine <

Sent: 31 October 2021 17:07

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Cc: John.McCullough@midkent.gov.uk
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW - Represention

Dear Sir,
Re: Colebrook Festival Events - 21/02689/REVIEW

Andrew Rankine
Tudeley Lane
Tonbridge

Kent

TN11 ONL

Colebrook Events:

7-9th August 2021 - D:Estival (02:30 finish +/- 45 mins)

14-16th August 2021 Live Forever Festival (03:00+ finish +- 45 mins)

20-22nd August 2021 - Love Hangover Festival (03:00 finish +/-45 mins)

27-29th August 2021- AlFresco Festival (unknown finish time as we intentionally left home
for the Bank Holiday weekend having been disturbed for many previous years)

18-19th September 2021 D:Estival Il (02:45 finish)

| wish to raise serious concerns about the ongoing licensing for the events at Colebrook
under the organisation of Nick (lain) Love. | appreciate that the organiser has been working
the Environment team to limit the noise pollution and disturbance to local residents during
2021 but these festivals have been plaguing the North of Tunbridge Wells borough (as well
as a significant proportion of Tonbridge and Malling) for a number of years. The efforts made
this year to limit that disturbance resulted in no significant improvement in the quality of life
for those residents directly impacted. Although it was noticeable from the Social media
“chatter” that the festivals later in the “season” affected the Tunbridge Wells residents for the
first and only time as opposed to just those in Capel, Pembury and Tonbridge (South).
Welcome to our world, as they say.

The noise limiting measures put in place over the course of event this year (2021) made little
or no difference to the disturbance at my home in Park Farm (1.97km from the main stage)
with the exception of the Alfresco Festival - but that information is taken from second hand
reports from immediate neighbours who are usually disturbed to the same degree as we are.
We left for Northern Ireland that Bank Holiday weekend...for no reason other to escape the
incessant noise disturbance that Alfresco has caused us for countless previous years (with
the exception of 2020 thanks to COVID-19).

There was no noticeable attenuation of noise from any of the efforts made from the
Environmental team (although | am aware they were working with the organisers with hay
bales and the direction of speakers etc.) throughout the summer festival season. Which
noticeably was weekly. Which made August a very unpleasant, sleep deprived month for
our entire household.

On that point, | thought that the license at Colebrook was granted for events with a minimum
time limit between events? As you can see from the scheuldue of events listed at the top of
this email the events were weekly throughout August. | have a suspicion this in itself
breaches the Terms and Conditions of the original licence. Happy to be corrected on this
point - but having just reviewed the conditions, | think | am correct.

Page 187


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk
mailto:John.McCullough@midkent.gov.uk

Appendix E

A final point of note in terms of "Category of Event" definitions: does a fabric marquee really
qualify as being “indoor” when the very construct of the building offers little, if any, sound
suppression? There is a reason that music and dancing clubs in town centres are
historically, and actually, housed in basements. Not on the top of hill, in an Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty, 850m from an RSPB nature reserve and with main stage
speakers facing out towards rural communities who normally have to, at best, put up with
combines bringing in the harvest.

In my opinion, as a resident of the Capel and a resident of Tunbridge Wells for 25+ years,
this license needs to to be revoked. At worst, it needs time limiting to midnight at weekends
and 11:00 on weekdays. There is no reason on God’s earth that people need to visit this
beautiful borough and subject the local residents, their children, pets and livestock (not to
mention the rich, abundant and diverse wildlife we are blessed to be surrounded with here)
to that level of noise,base thumping and discombobulation until 03:00 in the morning.

Best Regards,

Andy Rankine

Andy Rankine

Page 188



Appendix E

From: Lance Goodship (Cllr

Sent: 30 October 2021 12:09

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: Representation - 21/02689/REVIEW

Re: 21/02689/REVIEW

Colebrook Park Colebrook Lakes Land East Of Kingstanding Way Royal Tunbridge Wells
Kent TN2 3UP

Dear Sir or Madam,

I would like to make a representation in person as a TWBC borough councillor concerning
my personal experience living opposite the live music events enabled by this license and
complaints sent to me by residents in my ward and other affected wards.

I would also like to present and talk to a petition concerning the impact of the live music
events allowed with the license at Colebrooks lakes covering this year and previous years.
At the time of writing there are 302 signatories to the petition. Please let me know if you
need a copy of the individual petitioner names and addresses.

https://www.change.org/p/stop-late-night-events-at-colebrook-lakes

Please see below for an overview of my personal submission that | sent to the environmental
officers:

Your Name Address and Postcode.

o Lance Goodship, Golding Road, Knights Wood, Tunbridge Wells, TN2 3FN
@)
e What time did you first notice noise from the event in question. (If you did not notice
please indicate this as well)
@)
= 7 -—9" August 2021 - from around late afternoon onwards
= 14-16" August 2021 - from around late afternoon onwards
= 27-29" August - | went away for the weekend to avoid being impacted
by the noise from the music events.

= 18/19™ September - from around 7:30pm onwards

+ What was the last time you noticed noise from the event and question.

o 7 -9" August 2021 - just after midnight

o 14-16™ August 2021 - around 1am to 2am

o 27-29" August - | went away for the weekend to avoid being impacted by the
noise from the music events.

o 18/19" September - around 10:30pm

e A brief description of what you could hear.

o 7 -9"August 2021 - continuous music with the same monotonous tones with
a strong bass

o 14-16™ August 2021 - continuous music with the same monotonous
tones with a strong bass

Page 189


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk
https://www.change.org/p/stop-late-night-events-at-colebrook-lakes

Appendix E

o 27-29" August - | went away for the weekend to avoid being impacted by the
noise from the music events.
o 18/19" September - continuous music with a strong bass

e Was the noise uniform or did it go up and down.

Music impact was fairly uniform expect for the weekend of the 14-16th August
where it was much more noticeable in volume both indoors and in the garden, particularly
after 9pm

o Were there any specifically bad times when it appeared worse.
On the 14-16th August from around 9pm to just after midnight
e How it disturbed you during the day (where, and how)

I had to close all the windows and couldn't use my garden due to the noise impact.
Build up of heat in the house from not being able to open the windows also had a stress
impact.

e How it disturbed you at night (did you have windows open or closed etc)

| closed all the windows and air vents to try and reduce the noise impact so
myself, my wife and son could sleep. However, even with triple glazed windows the noise
was too disturbing and we couldn't get to sleep until around 3am on the weekend of the 14-
16th August which is why we decided we had to book a last minute trip away for the
following event on the 27-29th August.

e Any other comments on the noise that you think would be useful to us in assessing
the impact.

Background noise is what you expect to a certain degree in a semi-urban area, however the
type of sound with continuous monotonous bass beat sound is actually very stressful when
you are trying to relax at home after a busy week at work when it goes on hours on end. All
the other live music events in Tunbridge Wells that | am aware of end at around 10:30pm
which seems the right balance and they don't run over all the bank holiday weekends in the
summer. The balance of the license for Colebrooks Lakes seems disproportionate to how we
license the other live music events within the urban areas of Tunbridge Wells in terms of the
number of events allowed and also for it to go on after 11pm.

Regards,

Lance

Lance Goodship
Borough Councillor (Sherwood)

Page 190



Appendix E

From: faye.horsman
Sent: 30 October 2021 15:14

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk>
Cc: Lance Goodship (ClIr) <lance.goodship@tunbridgewells.gov.uk>
Subject: Objection - 21/02689/REVIEW

I would like to formerly register my objection to the lateness and volume of the festivals that
are allowed to take place at the Colebrook Lakes.

| belive these events should have the volume significantly limited well below their current
levels and the hours needs bringing forward to an 11pm finish in line with similar events in
Tunbridge Wells such as Pub in the Park in other residential areas.

Events that can be heard over a mile away, meaning that my daughter cannot have her
bedroom window open on summer nights due to the noise making it impossible for her to
sleep. In addition, we have have no peace and quiet for whole weekends and bank holiday
weekends when we would like to be able to enjoy our own garden. These go on for far too
many weekends over the couse of the year are not acceptable next to residential housing.

Kind regards,
Faye Horsman
Golding Road
TN2 3FP

Page 191


mailto:faye.horsmank
mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk
mailto:lance.goodship@tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: William Wu

Sent: 03 November 2021 09:12

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

Hello,
I hope you are all well. My family and | live at:

Doon Brae
Tunbridge Wells
TN4 OTF

We would like to object to the licence granted to Colebrook Park.

On both the August Bank holiday (28/29th) 2021 and September Bank holiday (18/19th)
2021 weekends, we suffered substantial noise disturbance from Colebrook Park (there have
been previous incidents noise disturbance but we did not link them to Colebrook Park until
realising later on). Here are the details:

We noticed the noise early to mid-afternoon. Both weekends we had been tidying up the
garden, a necessary task we had to curtail because of the constant noise of the bass and
"music" which made being outdoors terribly unpleasant.

Both weekends, we could still hear the noise at 10pm over our television but had to go to
bed soon after, so did not stay up waiting for the noise to abate.

The type of noise was of a thumping bass, indistinct "music" of the pedestrian, repetitive,
tuneless nightclub variety.. It was mostly uniform but intermittently the bass would get louder
and be more obtrusive.

The disturbance at night was worse, unsurprisingly, given the reduction in traffic and general
noise. We could hear the bass over our television. We had all windows closed but could
hear the "music" from all rooms of the house (whether facing the woods or at the front of the
house). At bedtime we had to sleep without fresh air (i.e. with windows tightly shut) and with
earplugs and still my husband could hear the "music"”, so we had to switch a fan on to further
mask the noise.

The noise was audible from all rooms of the house. Doon Brae and the surrounding roads
are quiet residential, almost semi-rural areas, and | imagine that is the primary attraction and
reason why the residents chose to live here. The sort of music and noise emanating from
Colebrook Park's events is inappropriate and disproportionate. If | wanted to hear such
insipid, cacophonous "music", I'd have bought a flat in a town centre close to a garden-
variety nightclub instead.

Many thanks,

William Wu

Page 192


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Mathew Fenner

Sent: 03 November 2021 19:31

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

To whom it may concern.
I write following my complaint to Tunbridge Wells Borough Council relating to the noise
experienced following concerts that were permitted at the Colebrook Estate. The noise
nuisance was suffered after 11pm and the volume was at such a level that the words to the
songs could be heard as well as the extensive percussion.
| set out below as issued to the Borough Council the details of the complainants.

14-16" August 2021

Your Name Address and Postcode
Mathew Fenner

Newlands Road

Tunbridge Wells

Kent

TN4 9AU

What time did you first notice noise from the event in question. (If you did not notice please
indicate this as well)

The noise was noticed from around 9pm on both nights
What was the last time you noticed noise from the event and question.

Noise was still being heard well after 11pm | could not say exactly as we were trying to get to
sleep.

A brief description of what you could hear.

Music could be heard with many of the words audible. lots of instruments and the annoying
beat of drums.

Was the noise uniform or did it go up and down.
The sound level stayed the same
Were there any specifically bad times when it appeared worse.

We only heard it when we went to bed as the bedroom faces the direction of North Farm
(although a considerable distance away)

How it disturbed you during the day (where, and how)
No disturbance

How it disturbed you at night (did you have windows open or closed etc)

Page 193


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

The noise of the music and percussive beats were so audible that my wife could not
sleep. Windows were open. it is the summer and we have the right not to over heat and
enjoy quiet (especially at unreasonable times)

Any other comments on the noise that you think would be useful to us in assessing the
impact.

The biggest concern was generally the time. it went on far too late.

27-29" Auqust

Your Name Address and Postcode
Mathew Fenner

Newlands Road

Tunbridge Wells

Kent

TN4 9AU

What time did you first notice noise from the event in question. (If you did not notice please
indicate this as well)

The noise was noticed from around 9pm on friday and saturday but seemed louder
on the Saturday evening.

What was the last time you noticed noise from the event and question.

Noise was still being heard well after 11.30pm | could not say exactly as we were trying to
get to sleep.

A brief description of what you could hear.

Music could be heard with many of the words audible. lots of instruments and the annoying
beat of drums.

Was the noise uniform or did it go up and down.
The sound level stayed the same
Were there any specifically bad times when it appeared worse.

We only heard it when we went to bed as the bedroom faces the direction of North Farm
(although a considerable distance away)

How it disturbed you during the day (where, and how)

No disturbance

How it disturbed you at night (did you have windows open or closed etc)

The noise of the music and percussive beats were so audible that both my wife and | could
not sleep which led to me issuing a complaint. this was issued at 23.36 and still the noise

was far too loud. Windows were open. it is the summer and we have the right not to over
heat and enjoy quiet (especially at unreasonable times)

Page 194



Appendix E

Any other comments on the noise that you think would be useful to us in assessing the
impact.

| complained at 23.36. this is far too late!

18/19" September

Your Name Address and Postcode
Mathew Fenner

Newlands Road

Tunbridge Wells

Kent

TN4 9AU

What time did you first notice noise from the event in question. (If you did not notice please
indicate this as well)

The noise was noticed from around 9pm on friday and saturday .
What was the last time you noticed noise from the event and question.

Noise was still being heard well after 11.00 | could not say exactly as we were trying to get to
sleep.

A brief description of what you could hear.

The dull rhythm of a beat.

Was the noise uniform or did it go up and down.

The sound level stayed the same

Were there any specifically bad times when it appeared worse.

We only heard it when we went to bed as the bedroom faces the direction of North Farm
(although a considerable distance away)

How it disturbed you during the day (where, and how)

No disturbance

How it disturbed you at night (did you have windows open or closed etc)

The noise of the percussive beats were so audible that both my wife and | could not
sleep. Windows were open. it is the summer and we have the right not to over heat and

enjoy quiet (especially at unreasonable times)

Any other comments on the noise that you think would be useful to us in assessing the
impact.

None

| trust this clarifies. In general the issue was that the noise went on far too late in the
evening and was contrary to my expectation of quiet enjoyment.

Page 195



Appendix E

Can you please clarify the next steps in dealing with this complaint.
Regards

Mathew

Page 196



Appendix E

From: Martin Rohan

Sent: 04 November 2021 08:31

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

Importance: High

To whom it may concern
Colebrook Festival Events - 21/02689/REVIEW

Martin Rohan
Tudeley

Kent

TN11 ONL

Colebrook Events:
7-9M 14 -16M 20 - 22", 27 - 29" August and 18" — 19" September

| wish to raise serious concerns about the ongoing licensing for the events at Colebrook. The
noise pollution is completely unacceptable and cannot be allowed to continue until the
previous timings of 2am or 3am in the morning.

I have regularly attended Pub in the Park which has a hard stop to alleviate noise pollution
and disruption and the Colebrook events should be managed under the same licencing
restrictions. | am guessing that it is a "Category of Event" definition regarding the licence but
given the exceptional noise pollution | urge the revaluation of the licence given the events go
on during the day and they could easily finish at 20pm or 11pm.

Thanks, Martin

Page 197


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

Comments were submitted at 8:15 PM on 04 Nov 2021 from Mr David Kitley.

Address: Colebrook Park Colebrooke Lakes Land East Of Kingstanding Way Royal
Tunbridge Wells Kent TN2 3UP

Name: Mr David Kitley
Address: Yew Tree Road, Southborough, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN4 0BJ

Comments Details

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application
Reasons for comment: - Noise Disturbance

- Opening Hours

- Prevention of Public Nuisance

Comments: 8:15 PM on 04 Nov 2021 We are strongly opposed to the allowance of loud
music from Colebrook Lakes.

We could hear loud thumping music that continued after 10pm at night and we had to shut
our windows in order to sleep This happened on several occasions on Bank holiday
weekends during the summer of 2021. We live in a residential area, so this noise would have
affected 100s of other homes also in this area.

We would therefore strongly object to a licence being issued that would allow such music to
continue till 3am, and would be happy if it could only continue till 9pm. Even that would not
be good for young families.

We sincerely hope that no further permission for such music will be given

Page 198



Appendix E

From: David Parker

Sent: 04 November 2021 10:50

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>

Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW Corrected, please delete my previous!

Re 21/02689/REVIEW

Thank you for the opportunity to air my reasons for objecting to the licence for “festivals” at
Colebrook Park.

Throughout this summer we have been disturbed on weekend evenings by the continual
thump of bass music reverberating across to our home and beyond towards Tudeley. Other
families with young children in the road were equally disturbed.

We invited Mr Nick Love (co-licensee) to attend our property and he was surprised at the
sound level that we were experiencing as all his computer projections had indicated that we
would not be affected.

My understanding from John McCullough is that being in marquees counts as “indoors for a
Cat 3" so both live and recorded music can continue until 3am - anyone who has spent a
night under canvas would appreciate the absurdity of this with regards to noise attenuation,
indeed Mr Love admitted to me during a visit to the site that the taut skin of the marquees
didn’t help the situation as they acted as drums and amplified the bass notes!

The festivals were held every weekend from the beginning of August until into September.
Music was audible from noon to 3am every day over extended weekends (Friday to Monday
inclusive) - For comparison Glastonbury runs for only 5 days throughout the whole of the
year!

Allowing a 3am finish is allowing the unacceptable noise levels to continue much later than
any other venue in the area (Dunorlan Park).

The level of complaints on social media during the time these festivals were running was
extremely high. A number of people also took their complaints up at the time with TWBC
(Gary Stevenson), local councillors and environmental Health (John McCullough). Sadly as
it's now November memories are fading of the dreadful noise which the residents had to
endure and I’'m assuming the number of representations to the licensing committee will be
lower than they would have been at the time. It would have been useful if duplication (or
even triplication) of complaints hadn’t been necessary and then the true level of frustration
would be visible to the licensing committee now.

I live in a Grade 2 listed property (single glazed as that’s all I'm allowed) in an area of
outstanding natural beauty which we obviously paid a premium for to ensure peace and
tranquility but sadly we were unable to enjoy evenings outside due to noise levels.

Geographically Half Moon Lane lies almost immediately due east of the site at Colebrook
Park and with a prevailing westerly wind and a lack of trees between us and the site, |
cannot see any way that the noise levels could be attenuated to a suitably low level to not
cause annoyance to residents on our road. Mr Love attempted various methods, turning
loudspeakers into the marquees and surrounding them with hay bales — that didn’t work,
tweaking bass levels — again with no appreciable affect. On only one weekend were we not
disturbed by the noise and that was a result of the wind changing direction to a north

Page 199


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

easterly and Mr Love changing the orientation of his loudspeaker arrays — this led to a
barrage of complaints from the Sherwood area!

As an airline captain, | work odd hours and days of the week. | require a good restful night’s
sleep before flying hundreds of passengers who expect their pilot to be alert — this just was
not possible to achieve this summer.

In short....

No efforts at mitigation have been successful in reducing noise (bales of hay around speaker
stacks, realigning loud speaker arrays, computer modelling etc)

The number of days that festivals are allowed to operate on this site is excessive in relation
to other festival sites (Glastonbury, Reading, Hyde Park etc)

Other festivals have curfews well before the 3am curfew currently offered to messer's Bowie
and Love.

Kind regards

David Parker
Half Moon Lane
Tudeley

Kent

TN11 OPS

Page 200



Appendix E

From: Ben Hodgson

Sent: 08 November 2021 22:22

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>

Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW - Representation re: Colebook Park license review

Good evening,
| write regarding the licence review for Colebrook Park, ref. 21/02689/REVIEW.

Thank you for conducting a review into this premises license, and for giving residents an
opportunity to comment. | object to the current licence.

My wife and I, as well as many of our neighbours and visitors to our home, were significantly
impacted by amplified music from events at Colebrook Park in August this year. These
events ran all weekend, sometimes starting at lunchtime, and ending very late — around 3am
on multiple occasions. We could hear bass very loudly inside our property with all windows
closed. This impacted our sleep, and caused stress throughout these weekends. We
typically go walking in the countryside to relax at the weekend, but this disturbance was
inescapable — on one day we could still hear thumping bass almost as far as Matfield. This
was patrticularly distressing, as it made it very apparent that there was nothing we could do
to escape the noise. After several weekends of multi-day disturbance, on one occasion we
had to just leave our home and stay overnight with family.

We live in a grade Il listed property, which limits our ability to attenuate sound, as installing
double glazing is not permitted. Colebrook Park's events notwithstanding, this is generally
not a problem, as we are located in a rural and very peaceful area, inside the High Weald

Area of Outstanding National Beauty.

| can only imagine that the current license's terms were conceived under the assumption that
the impact on residents would be much lower than it actually is. Given the impact on
ourselves and our neighbours, from the volume of response regarding these events to
Environmental Health, and more anecdotally from the size of the response on local social
media, it is clear to me that such an assumption is incorrect. It seems utterly unfathomable
that events at Colebrook Park can disturb residents so significantly for multiple weekends in
a row, for three consecutive days each time, from the daytime until 3am, and still somehow
still be operating within the terms of the license.

The current licence's allowance of indoor music until 3am is particularly flawed. The tents
used for some of the events at Colebrook Park do very little to attenuate noise. In fact, the
tight tent roofs appear to help transmit bass frequencies.

I was in contact with licensee Nick Love after the first weekend's event. To his credit, he
seemed very sympathetic to the disturbance that my neighbours and | experienced. He
visited our property during at least one of the events, later expressing surprise at the high
level of noise which could be heard, and seemed motivated and willing to take action to
resolve the problems. From a number of conversations | had with Mr Love, including one
during a tour of the site at Colebrook Park which he kindly gave on one occasion, |
understand that a number of attempts have been made to lessen the impact on residents,
including: changing the positions of speakers, adjusting the levels of certain sound
frequencies, surrounding speakers with hay bales, and loosening the tension of venue's
tents' roofs. Unfortunately these measures were generally ineffective, from my experience. |
should note that for one of the final events of the series, sound levels were noticeably
reduced for us compared to the other weekends. | am not sure whether this was due to
intervention by the licensee, or a change in wind or weather, however it was clear from
social media that this just shifted the disturbance onto a different set of residents to the

Page 201


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

South and to the West of Colebrook Park.

In case it is helpful, | include below verbatim the account | provided to Duncan Haynes and
John McCullough at Environmental Health, which they requested during late summer this
year.

7-9th August: I do not recall being disturbed, however we were at our neighbour’s wedding
on the 7th until 1-2am on the 8th.

13th—15th August (you asked for 14th—16th, but | believe the event was actually one day
earlier than this). We were significantly disturbed until very late for all 3 days of this event. |
started hearing loud bass from about lunchtime on Friday but didn’t think much of it at first.
We were kept awake until about 2am but wrote it off as maybe a one-off party that had
gotten out of hand. The nature of the noise over the whole weekend approx noon—2/3am
was mostly thumping bass. The noise levels went up and down over time (maybe due to
wind?), but was almost continually present during these times. On Sunday the 15th, we
walked to Matfield and back and amazingly could still hear bass quite loudly from 2.5 miles
away across the countryside (this would have been at about 5pm). This was pretty upsetting,
as we knew it would be worse when we got home as we were walking back.

20-22nd August (you did not ask about this date, but there was another event, the "Love
Hangover" festival on these dates, see publicity here). We were significantly impacted in the
same way as the previous weekend on Friday 20th August. After another sleepless night
and the prospect of another weekend of the same, we went away to visit my sister in law
overnight on Sat 21st to get an undisturbed night's sleep. We returned on Sunday at about
6:30pm. My neighbour and | were in contact with Nick Love (licensee), who we met in
person for a tour of the venue on Monday 23rd August.

27th-29th August: After the repeat on the previous weekend, we went away again to visit
my parents and sister overnight on Saturday. We were at home for the 27th and 29th,
however, and although we could faintly hear some intermittent sound from Colebrook on
occasion, we couldn't hear it inside, and | would not describe the event as having disturbed
us.

18th-19th September: We didn't hear anything from Colebrook Park this weekend, however
there was another very loud event at The Hop Farm running for 2 days that weekend which
would have masked it. This event ended at about 10pm, however, and | didn't hear anything
from Colebrook after that.

Regards,
Ben Hodgson

Half Moon Lane
Tudeley, Kent, TN11 OPR

Page 202


https://lovehangover.co.uk/

Appendix E

From: Hannah Johnson

Sent: 08 November 2021 12:02

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

Re: Colebrook Park Colebrooke Lakes Land East Of Kingstanding Way Royal Tunbridge
Wells Kent TN2 3UP

Dear Sirs / Madam

I would like to raise my objections to the Category 3 events license granted to Colebrook
Park on the basis of an ongoing and unacceptable noise generated from music to my

property.
I live in the Castle Hill area (TN11 0QF), in close proximity to the event.

The noise from the event is unbearably loud and extremely intrusive inside my property, with
events running for an entire weekend, Friday, Saturday, and Sunday night into Monday
morning at 3:00am.

I have previously made contact with event organisers and they insist they are working within
the parameters of allowed noise but this cannot be the case. | appreciate it may have an
impact on exact location of event and direction of speakers but it has made our experience
very unpleasant on occasions. | have also reported via TWBC website for noise and never
had a response.

Running music events into the very early hours of the morning at such high music volumes
has a significant negative impact of the enjoyment of my property and my general wellbeing
and is wholly unacceptable.

Kind regards
Hannah Johnson

Page 203


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Jonathan Rugg

Sent: 08 November 2021 10:56

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>

Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW | Review of licence | Open for Consultation | Colebrook Park
Colebrooke Lakes Land East Of Kingstanding Way Royal Tunbridge Wells Kent TN2 3UP

21/02689/REVIEW
Colebrook Park Colebrooke Lakes Land East Of Kingstanding Way Royal Tunbridge Wells
Kent TN2 3UP
08" November 2021

Dear Sirs,

| Would like to raise my objections to the Category 3 events license granted to Colebrook
Park on the basis of an ongoing and unacceptable nuisance generated from music to my

property.

I live in Castle Hill Farmhouse (TN11 0QG), with less than a mile of open farmland between
my property and the event.

Having purchased the property at the beginning of this summer, for myself and my family of
young children the noise generated by the event night after night until 3:00am throughout the
summer has created a LIVING HELL of headaches and sleepless nights:

1. | have three small children; the noise is so excessive inside our house that they are
simply unable to sleep whenever Colebrook Park is running a music event. To be
clear we cannot even begin to initiate bedtime with them until after 3:00am after the
music has finished. This has been our experience on Friday, Saturday and Sunday
nights, an entire weekend of deprived sleep has inevitably caused severe emotional
and psychological distress to my children. The current licencing arrangement fails to
safeguard their wellbeing.

2. We live in a listed property, with historic single pane casement windows, which are
easily penetrated by the extreme noise from the event, that has them shaking in their
casements. We also have open fireplaces in most of the downstairs rooms and the
bedrooms above, which carry external noise into the house. Our house is not a
modern acoustically insulated property, and given its listed status we have no means
by which we might make it so. Noises outside are clearly audible inside, at times the
noise is so loud that it is difficult to have a conversation in our garden, which is
reflected inside too.

3. Over the summer we had to cancel a family party, which was due to be held in our
garden because it was just not feasible to entertain people in our garden due to the
noise from the event. The events that run at Colebrook Park prevent us from enjoying
our own property.

4.

I have to say that this was our first summer in our new house, when the first event started we
were in utter disbelief at the level of the noise (!), this disbelief was only surpassed when we
realised that the event ran until 3:00am (!)... and then again when we realised the event ran
Friday, Saturday and Sunday night, all the way through to 3:00am Monday morning (!!!), a
couple of hours before my family and | get up for work. | simply cannot fathom how
Colebrook Park could have been granted a licence to run such events given the close
proximity of residential properties.

Page 204


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

| cannot believe that the licence would have been granted if any member of the council lived
at my property and | would invite them to spend a night at my house when an event if being
run and challenge them to achieve any sleep.

Your sincerely

Jonathan Rugg

Page 205



Appendix E

From: Glenys Charlesworth

Sent: 08 November 2021 21:48

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21//02689/Review Colebrook Park

Dear Sir / Madam
| am writing to submit a representation regarding the license review of Colebrook Park
reference number 21/02689 / REVIEW.

The events at Colebrook Park in August and September 2021 were annoyingly loud and
could clearly be heard both in our garden and inside our house (even with the windows
closed).

We were particularly badly affected by the Alfresco Electronic Music Festival on Friday 27th,
Saturday 28th and Sunday 29th August. The music was loud, repetitive and had a persistent
thumping base beat (electronic dance music). It went on over the whole weekend and well
after midnight on Friday and Saturday which had a terrible impact on my sleep. The weather
was hot and we couldn’t open the windows due to the noise which was irritating and
stressful. | could not sleep even with earplugs and felt extremely tired after the weekend.
This continued on the weekend of 18th and 19th September. The music could clearly be
heard, to the extent that | could hear song lyrics. | found it irritating that it went on for so long
and we could not enjoy our garden.

Please please do not grant any further licences for this type of event at Colebrook park. It is
a public nuisance and prevents local residents from using their gardens during the day in the
peak summer months, affects their sleep and is enormously stressful (which in turn for
some has an impact on health).

Yours faithfully

Glenys Charlesworth
Vicarage Road, Tunbridge Wells TN4 OSN

Page 206


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Sharon Hutchins <

Sent: 08 November 2021 12:17

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/review

Dear Sir/Madam
I wish to oppose the review on Colebrook Lakes west of Kingstanding Way Tunbridge Wells.
This is due to the hideous noise all summer.
4 consexetive days on numerous weekends throughout the summer from morning till late at
night.
This is not acceptable
Yours sincerely
Sharon Hutchins
Tonbridge
TN110QG

Page 207


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Jeff Crocker

Sent: 09 November 2021 18:02

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Cc: john.mccullough@midkent.gov.uk
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

Dear Sir/Madam,

| wish to register my strong objections and concerns to the prolonged nuisance caused by
the summer music events- Live forever festival 7-9th August 2021 3.00 am finish! - love
hangover 20-22ndAugust 2021 3.00 am finish! -Al fresco Festival 27-29thAugust 2021. D
Festival 18-19 September 2021 2.45 am finish!

While It maybe acceptable to hold the occasional event for those unfortunate minority of the
conurbations the ruin of our summer weekends and then sleep disturbance is really
unacceptable. Is it possible that the council/licensing authority condoned such prolonged
disturbances in this quiet and beautiful rural area an AONB in fact! | awoke from a nightmare
believing | was in greater London. It all appears fishy | must say and | wonder does it
contravene the licence agreement?

Concluding | would very much appreciate your very best endeavours to prevent this
diabolical illogical nuisance from polluting gods country.

Your faithfully

Jeffery Crocker & Sharon Hunt
Tudeley

Page 208


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk
mailto:john.mccullough@midkent.gov.uk

Appendix E

From: Maria Owen

Sent: 09 November 2021 23:12

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.qov.uk>
Subject: 21/02689/REVIEW

Colebrook Park Colebrooke Lakes Land East Of Kingstanding Way Royal Tunbridge Wells
Kent TN2 3UP

09th November 2021
To whom it may concern,

I would like to raise my objections to the Category 3 events license granted to Colebrook
Park on the basis of an unacceptable nuisance generated from music to my property.

| live on the Sherwood estate (TN2 3HY), and during August of this year could both hear the
music and see the lights from our property.

The noise from the event is unbearably loud (making it impossible to have any windows
open) and extremely intrusive inside my property, with events running for an entire weekend,
Friday, Saturday, and Sunday night through to 3:00am.

Running music events into the very early hours of the morning at such high volumes has a
significant negative impact on the enjoyment of my property and my family's wellbeing which
| feel is wholly unacceptable.

Kind regards

Miss M Owen

Page 209


mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix F

Support Comments for Mr Love

From: Andy Lenthall <

Sent: 08 November 2021 08:56

- To licensing@sevenoaks.gov.uk

> o _ ‘
“Subject: Representation in support of Premises Licence holder — Colebrook Estate

To whom it may concern

I've known Mr Love for over 17 years, mainly during my tenure as the General Manager of

- the Production Services Association,Nick has been an exptremey supportive member of that
association for as long as l.was there (up until July 2021). Nick has been a rich resource of
information and support when_it comes to event production, safety and licensing, taking part
in panels and seminars at industry events, sharing the benefit of his dedication to personal
professional development married to real world experience, from Glastonbury to Wimbledon.
NICk S standlng withing the event management and safety sector is hlghly regarded

| also note that, in respect of enwronmental noise management Nick works with some of the
‘best in the business. | am surprised to hear of the review hearing as | know he passionate -

- about working with residents and authoritiés to prevent problems. | know he will go to the nth
degree to resolve any problem to prevent it recurnng :

Kind regards |

Andy Lenthall
CEO

Festival Insights
UK Festival Awards
T: +44 7869 344826

Page 211




Appendix F

From: John Farquhar Smith

Sent: 09 November 2021 05:50 .
To: licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk ' ' | :
Cc: Trevor Horner <Trevor. Horner@TunbrldEeWells g0V, uk>
Subject: NICK LOVE

To whom it may.concern
I have known Nick Love for twenty-seven years

We first worked together on the opening of the Furotunnel Project in 1994 wherehe led the site-
management team in this, ground-breaking, project. : . s _}

During this time he has become one of the Event mdUstry s best Health and safety Consultants with .
a broad experience and quahﬂcations :

His metier is outdoor events where his innate understanding of the process makes him a fantastic
‘supplier to work with always looking at the quotidian challenges with experience knowledge and
‘good humour :

His spemallsat:on into Health and safety means that he understands the process of dellverlng events
‘whilst ensuring every part of the process

follows the legal and pract|cal req uirements without compromise or cuttlng fmanuai corners at the -

© ‘cost’ of safety :

Since 1994 we have worked together on over sixty projects of different sizes From The launch of St
Pancras Station and a massive celebratory festival in Port Harcourt on the Niger Delta

_He is a consummate professional with extenswe knowledge and experlence in dellvermg events of
every type.

Over the years | have trusted Nlck and his professional judgement on hundreds of occasions and
continue to do so :

I rarely deliver a project with his experience and counsel

if you require any more information please do not hesitate to contact me

Kind regards,

. John

John Parquhar-Smith
LConsulting Producer

Page 212




Appendix F |

From: Paul Stanbridge

Sent: 09 November 2021 18:38

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> _ _

Subject: Representation in support of Premises Licence holder — Colebrook Estate

To whom it may concern

" This email is in support for Licence holder - colebrook park Tunbridge Wells regarding Nick Love.
I've worked with Nick for few year and | manage medical cover for the events at colebrook park.
Nick has all ways managed a good site and has all way advices his clients hiring the land for festivals
regarding noise levels and advised on best sound system to use to reduce noise travel.

Every event that I've covered Nick is constantly checking sound levels and where needed informing
" clients regarding sound tevel which have reached a level.that needed reducing. '

nick Love has many years experience as a Licensing and H&S Consultant.

The venue bring visitors to local community and hotels restraints ect . . .
The venue it self has opportunity to support Tunbridge Wells and Tonbridge with revenue.

~ Regards
Paul stanbridge

Page 213




Appendix'F

From: Giles
Sent: 08 November 2021 20:50
“To: licensing@sevenoaks.gov.uk’
Cc: Trevor Horner <Trevor.Horner@TunbridseWelis.gov. uk>;
Subject: Representation in support of Premises Licence holder— Co]ebrook Estate

To whom it may
concern

7th November 2021

Mr Nick Love -

I am the founder and Managing Partner of Gallowglass Security. As sole trader, then Ltd
Company and LLP, we have been in existence since 1998. Over these years we have
specialised in Event Security in its whole spectrum. We have successfully covered
innumerable events from concerts and festivals with attendance in the tens of thousands,
including thirteen years at Winter Wonderland Hyde Park, with an attendance figure of
several millions over a six week period, as well as very high profile events involving heads of
~ states-and Very prominent p011t1c1ans and Royalty. : :

I have known Mr Love for circa twenty years and even in those early years he was already a
~ highly experienced and accomplished Event Industry professional. We have worked together
on innumerable events large and small, and he has always been a consumate professional.
Indeed, many a time we have turned to him for help and advice,and this has always been
forthcoming and spot on: In terms of both his knowledge and experience of licensing
requirements and Health and Safety, I can safely say that there very few people in this
country to match him.

I hope this helpful, and if I can be of any further assistance, please do contact me at any time. -
Yours

Giles Turnbull

Managing Partner

Gallowglass Security Partners LLP
07958 649 555

Page 214




Appendix F

B

Ethix Management Limited

Unit 15 Kempton Gate business centre
Oldfield Road ‘ '
Hampton ’

TW12 2AF

08 Noverrber 2021

To Whom it Méy Concern:

" | have known Mr Nick Love for over 10 years and have worked both alongside him and on @ consultant-based engagement
and would not hesitate to engage with Mr Love on any fevel in the future. S o
We have worked together on a global basis and on soma of the mast challenging and environments within the events
industry where a pragmatic and level headed approach are an essential characteristic to ensure the safe professional delivery
of large scale events, Nick has proven time and time again that under immense constraints he is able te remain calm and
fogical in his approach, ensuring that the highest level of delivery Is possible in respect of his exceptional ability and
experience, | would rate Nick as an industry leader and foremost professtonal and with his continuing input and objective
approach we look forward to ensuring that as & business (Ethix) are heiped to deliver some truly incredible events well into -
the foreseeable future. . - ) :

Without &oubt the UK events industry delivers some of the world’s best and safest events: Having the professional skilf set
of Nick is something we are very proud to be associated with and this resonates within the business commumnity.

Sincerg

Paul lones : _
Director ' : D : ;
Ethix Management Limited ' '

Ethix Management Ltd. Unit 15 Kempton Gate Oldfield road Hampton TW 12 2AF
Registered in England No. 03488144 VAT Reg. No 735 4491 22

Page 215




Page 216

Appendix F




Appendix F

" Andrew Béber MSc CMIOSH FRSPH
' FRGS

4 lvy Dene Lane

Ashurst Wood

- West Sussex RH18 3TN

~ Phone: 07810 884 892
Email: aboe@asltc.com (work)

mﬁ(pnvate)
2 Trevor Horner

Licensing Officer
_ Tunbridge Wells Borough Coungil
Phone: 01892 554026
Email: trévor. horner@tunbridgewslis.gov.uk /
licensing@sevenoaks.gov.uk '

Re_presentation in s_upport of Premises Licence holder - Coiebrook Esfate-

This is my personal statement for Mr. Nick Love W|th regards to representahon in support of Premlse
Licence holder.

I have professional employ Mr. Love in the Role of Health & Safety Manager, as part of my team, in -
the capacity of my own role as the Head of Health & Safety at the All England Lawn Tennis Club (The
Championships) Limitéd since 2015,

Mr. Love role supports the delivery of The- Championships, with a ‘contract typically running from

- March - August each.year. This is technically demanding period and requires considerable
competence, net just in just with health and safety but alsg licensing. Approximately 12 weeks of this -
is focused on the build, before moving into a 3 weeks event petiod (include the Qualification Week),

- across four venues, with over 500,000 people attending the Main Grounds for 13 days, with a typically
event day of 13 hours, working splits, and demanding a comprehensive understand of numerous

- sectors. This Championships is also regarded as Britain largest outside broadceast event in the

- sporting calendar, as well as Europe’s largest food event. Following the event, we move into a period

~ of de-rig which can last 21-days, during which Mr. Love is pivotal in the venues transitions back to a
* private Members club, with a Museum and tours open to the publ;c and w:th major constructlon works
reengage.

Aside from his high level of competency, Mr. Love has shown himself to be a hardworking, diligent,
passionate, and personable. | am confident that he is a valuable asset on has other ventures, as he is
" a valuable asset to my own team at the All England. - '

. His range of professional experience include countless festivals, and notably having worked on the
BBC Safety Unit for show such as Top Gear, independently as a production safety advisor at
Glastonbury Festival, as well as recently for The Walt Disney Corporation on a major feature films. |

‘know Mr. Love to hold NEBOSH qualifications, as well as several Emergency Planning College
qualifications and necessary industry tickets for Temporary Demountable Structures and other plant

Page 217




Appendix F

machinery. Principally is he also a technical member {TechlQSH) of the Institution of Qccupational -
Safety & Health (IOSH). This is a'professional allocate from Britain's only charted health and safety .
organisation, that recognises the qualifications and experience needed by professionals working in a
range of operational health and safety roles. To maintain his status of TechlOSH he is required to
keep his skills, Knowledge and experience up to date, which must be recorded through the IOSH
Continuing. Professional Development (CPD) programme. - °

| hobe this reference ekpresses the trust | have in the abilities of Mr. Love to fulfil the duties required
with respects to Premise Licence holder. Should you require any further information from me with
respects to my statement’ please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours Sincerely,
Andrew Bdber MSc CMIOSH FRSPH FRGS -
siosh;

@

"9 November 2021

“Chariered Safaty and
Heaith Practitionsr

» Page 2

Page 218




Appendix G

17, Franklin Road, Brighton BN2 3AD
8™ November 2021

Att’n Licensing Officer,
Licensing Team,

Town Hall,

Tunbridge Wells

Kent TN1 1RS

Dear Sir,
Response to Application for Review — Colebrook Park Licence

It is no secret that since March 2020 the Music Industry has been brought to its knees. No events of
any description were run at Colebrook Park in 2020 although Al Fresco had booked 3 events that
were scheduled to take place over 3 months as per the schedule submitted to the council in January
2020. With the exception of our Noise Consultant all suppliers are based locally and have lost
income because of the impact of the pandemic on our business.

| decided | would only hold 6 events this year. All Category 3 events. We have faced enormous
pressures. In May | made enquiries about obtaining hay bales but a combination of poor weather
and problems with delivery meant that this year they were in short supply. Farmers needed to keep
the hay they had for their stock. There is an adequate supply to meet demand for next year.

With relaxations being lifted in early July both the Industry and Members of the Public were keen to
get back to a semblance of normality. Destival asked if they could run 2 events, Al Fresco booked 3
events. The other event involved non licensable activities.

| retained Chris Beale and his firm SPL Track to provide noise monitoring equipment and put in noise
meters to check levels from the sound equipment used by promoters were not causing a nuisance.
The Promoters were asked to contact SPL Track to agree the proposals but sadly this did not occur.
We were supplied with a map of potential complainants from EHO and positioned the location of
noise meters to avoid a nuisance in these areas. Sadly some residents we approached to work with
us to check no nuisance was being caused refused to allow us to instal meters.

The main reason seemed to be that they did not think that what we were doing was part of the EHO
process of monitoring noise to enable us to monitor levels and prevent a noise nuisance occurring.
We hope this can be positively addressed going forward.

The system works on the basis that noise levels are measured in real time and any potential noise
nuisance addressed immediately. It is easy for persons to be mistaken as to the cause of a problem
and incorrectly attribute this to us.

On 7™ August Paul Broughton EHO at TMBC contacted me alleging there was a noise nuisance from
14.30. The complainant described the noise as loud disco music with a loud MC vocal. He identified
the complainant’s postcode to be TN9 2JJ The Destival event on this date did not begin till 1500, and
as a dance music event, did not feature disco music nor an MC. In fact, there was no vocal
microphone on my stage. Paul gave my mobile number to the complainant who contacted me
directly, giving her address as 130b Pembury Road.

| drove to the location at 20.00. There was a very faint beat discernible, but this was mainly drowned
out by traffic noise. | returned to that address at 2230, when bass beats were faintly audible. | called
in and reduced levels until the noise was inaupj @dztlrged to monitor every 90 minutes, and the
noise was barely audible. | monitored over the next 3 events and the noise was inaudible. The



Appendix G

property was vacant for the first 2 of the 3 events. | and EHO monitored over the Alfresco event and
found that event to be inaudible.

In a later conversation with a complainant David Parker at Tudeley, he stated that he heard nothing
on the 7th August due to him holding his wedding at his home address. He had a live jazz band, and
DJ. To quote, "He could hear nothing on that date". | believe that was probably the source of the
nuisance complained of by the resident at no 130b.

This is just one example of the steps and my staff took to minimise any potential noise nuisance.

Another example relates to an incident when | received a complaint from David Parker on 21st
August, and immediately contacted him to say that | was on my way to monitor his location. On
arrival, bass beats were distinct with some vocal also apparent. | called in to lower levels to a
virtually inaudible level. Mr Parker had asked me to call in to discuss, which | did. | was offered tea
and cake, and was introduced to his new wife, Helen. He was very engaging and seemed
sympathetic to my efforts. Noise levels were satisfactory to him after my intervention. He ventured
that they were hosting a family Christening the following day. | asked him to advise me of the
timings so that | would endeavour to ensure they were not disturbed. | quote his reply

'60 assorted people here from noon onwards.
Thanks for popping in to see us yesterday.
There’s a fair number of kids / bouncy castle / screaming etc so don’t be concerned about noise!'

| advised him of future events and assured him that | would continue to monitor all future events. He
suggested that part of the problem may be due to the removal of a large copse of trees at the head
of the valley. (He is a very active opponent to the proposed development of Half Moon Lane). He
also stated that he would be away working as a pilot, but his wife may be disturbed. | monitored
continuously over the 3 days, and spoke to Mrs Parker on the Sunday night, who said that the event
was inaudible and thanked me for my diligence.

| then drove to the residence of Mr Ben Hodgson, speaking to both him and his wife Helen. Both
agreed that the event was inaudible and thanked me for my diligence in the matter.

Ben Hodgson

Mr Hodgson complained by Facebook on 15th August at 00:44. | do not monitor Facebook, so did
not respond until 15:14 later that day, so only became aware of this issue after the event finished.
He replied 'l appreciate that it’s probably not particularly straightforward managing sound levels at a
venue like this, so thanks for engaging with me. Good luck!'

This complaint being on the final day of the event, | was unable to respond, but promised active
monitoring of Half Moon Lane. | monitored that location and reduced volumes to inaudible.

| invited Mr Parker and Mr Hodgson to visit Colebrook to see the set up on Monday 23rd Aug, and
see the mitigations | was putting in place for the Alfresco event, including imposing a 00:00 curfew
on Sunday night. They both seemed happy with my attention to their complaints. EHO monitoring
will confirm inaudibility in the Tudeley area.

There were problems with wind direction over the Al Fresco event and mistakes occurred because of
the relative speed that the events were put together once relaxations were lifted and the fact that
despite requests the Promoter did not consult with SPL Track to ensure appropriate sound systems
were installed.

| strongly believe that my proposed management plan, aligned with Para 7 of the EHO suggested
terms will prevent any future recurrence. EHO data rightly identifies that | failed to meet the criteria
of inaudible or even virtually inaudible. | monitored Knights Park continuously (at times with EHO
present too) and failed to meet virtual inaudi\?i | sh dd to the Management Plan that | will
procure and retain a suitable quantity of stra tgggo ide mitigation where required.



Appendix G

Knights Park is an area that | will be supremely focused on as part of my ongoing Management Plan. |
have learned many lessons learned from this season, and will work tirelessly to prevent any
nuisance in this, or any other area, attributable to my business activity at Colebrook Park.

As a start | have reviewed the type of event to be held at Colebrook in line with the Category 3 style
as follows for next year and am pursuing other types of hires and have some interest from

e afood festival and hot smoked barbecue competition

e a Christmas illuminated sculpture trail

e aHalloween experience

e outdoor cinema

e aseries of one day concerts with a 2300 curfew

e aHealth and Wellbeing weekend

e corporate away days featuring Mexican barbacoa and cooking over real fire

| have revised my management plan a follows

Colebrook Park Management Plan for Cat 3 Events
As per the existing licensing condition, the licence holder will inform RTWBC Licensing Department
of the proposed diary of events for the coming year. That already happens.

Colebrook Park Terms and Conditions will be issued, and subject to acceptance, contract will be
signed and deposits taken. This has always been the intention, but was thwarted by the pandemic
and subsequent embargo on public gatherings. | have already instructed a Contract Solicitor to work
on this and am hoping for a final version by mid December

Terms and Conditions will include the following:

e Only suitable sound systems for the site as agreed by SPL Track will be permitted.

e Hirers must use a PA supplier from the Colebrook Park approved list of preferred suppliers.
These suppliers (3 of) will be selected for their proven expertise in working in noise sensitive
environments. These suppliers will all survey Colebrook Park to familiarise themselves with
the topography and historical locations of complaints. This will be carried out in conjunction
with the advice of SPL Track (Chris Beale). | have already begun talks with companies who
operate at The Natural History Museum and Hornnimans Gardens. All of whom, | have
worked with before in my role as a Production Manager.

e No more than 3 stages with amplified music will be permitted at a Cat 3 event.

o The Hirer will submit a site plan showing the positions of all stages and the direction of the
sound systems, along with confirmation of which of the preferred supplier they have elected
to use. This will be passed to SPL Track for approval.

e On approval, SPL will produce a NMP for any music event with a terminal hour past 00:00 to
be submitted to EHO no less than 28 days prior to the event, to allow EHO time to assess
and advise on sound levels.

e Any deviation from the approved site layout, and NMP will be deemed a breach of contract,
resulting in cancellation of the event.

e The Hirer will only be permitted to use Colebrook Park’s approved Security Provider. This will
ensure that the licence holder retains control of the event and has the ability to enforce any
decision necessary to uphold the licensing objectives. It also means that NL is building a team
with thorough knowledge of the site operationally

e The Hirer will only be permitted to use Colebrook Park’s approved Medical Provider. See
above re:Security.

For any 3 day music event, the music curfew will be 00:00 on the Sunday. Low level background
music will be permitted in bar areas after tha
Page 221

In the application for review Duncan Haynes states:



Appendix G

The Environmental Protection Team requests that the review panel consider the imposition on
category 3 events of a combination of the suggested measures below to successfully resolve the
noise issues. These measures may be used in isolation or combined to be most effective.

| have considered all of the steps proposed. The first 6 steps would be disproportionate and not
allow the flexibility for the different types of event that can be held under Category 3. | have also
asked Mr Beale to review what went wrong and provide a clear report as to how any potential issues
can be successfully addressed without breaching the licensing objectives going forward. He has sent
a report to my solicitor that | have asked him to forward to the Licensing authority and will
implement his proposals going forward.

My objective is to run this site without causing a nuisance and compromising the economic viability
of my business but put in place events, processes and procedures that will successfully achieve
compliance with the licensing objectives.

The condition proposed in section 7 will work as it does address the concerns that have been raised.
This reads:

o Condition the creation and implementation of a noise management plan for cat 3 events.
This to include but not be limited to,
e use of an in-house sound system agreed with the EP Team (including suppression systems to
prevent unauthorized tampering and band pass filters set to prevent bass issues),
e Setting sound levels to a level to be agreed with EHO
e Sound levels on site are controlled by an in house sound engineer.
e Limit the number of stages and specify their locations and orientation on site.
e Additional fixed monitoring units to cover the gaps in the current system.
e Fixed monitoring units to stages to check the levels of individual stages.
e Provision of a dedicated complaints line that will be manned for the duration of the event
and responded to.

We have been through an extraordinary time and since March 2020 mainly because of the pandemic
I have run no more than 6 events. Mistakes were made but these can and have been addressed
going forward. | would ask the Licensing Committee to impose the condition suggested above as a
safeguard to meet the licensing objectives.

It is a matter of record that | have regularly kept in contact with the Licensing authority advising of
any changes and issues and as my testimony shows in this letter a willingness to engage and work

with residents to avoid problems.

Yours faithfully

Nick Love

Page 222



Appendix H

— Mallory Park Circuit +44 1455 502400
T am Kirkby Mallory www.spltrack.co.uk
TRA CK Leicestershire LE9 7QE info@spltrack.co.uk
United Kingdom @spltrack

Monday, 8 November 2021

Stephen Thomas
Stephen Thomas Law

Dear Stephen,

Colebrook Lakes Events 2021 - Noise Report

1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

2.

2.1.

General

This report references six of events that took place at Colebrook Lakes between 7th

August and 19th September 2021 as follows:

.1.1.7th Aug. Destival. Cat 3.

.1.2.13-15th Aug. Live Forever. Cat 3.

.1.3.20-22nd Aug. Love Hangover. Cat 3

.1.4.25/26th Aug. Golden Path Wellbeing Festival. This event did not involve

licensable activity and attracted no complaints

.1.5.27-29th Aug. Alfresco Festival. Cat 3.
.1.6.18-19th Sept. Destival 2. Cat 3

The events were classified according to size and anticipated environmental impact.
All were categorised Cat 3 (lowest impact).

The licensee provided the site and basic infrastructure to third party promoters under
a rental agreement. There was no contact between the third parties and SPLtrack
Limited prior to the events. Mr. Love passed on SPLtrack standard forms of enquiry to
the promoter however they were not returned. This is not uncommon in the case of

smaller festivals.

Noise monitoring

SPLtrack installed three environmental noise meters that are located on the area map

in figure 1.:

2.1.1.A property to the east south east of the site near to the A21 that is referenced as

‘Karina’s’ in the charts.

Page 223


http://www.spltrack.co.uk
mailto:info@spltrack.co.uk?subject=
http://www.apple.com

Appendix H

—TRACK

2.2.

2.3.

3.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

2.1.2.Lodge Farm to the west of the site. This is the closest residential location to the

west as all other buildings are factory or warehouse premises.

2.1.3.Robinwood House, a property to the south of the site.

The choice of location was driven by the willingness of residents to host the remote
meters. | spent a whole day navigating the area knocking doors until | was able to
find the three locations that we eventually used. | tried to find a fourth location to the
north east of the site to the west of the A21 but the residents were uncertain of my
authority and would have only agreed had the council been involved.

| met John McCullough at the site on two occasions. During the first meeting we
spent some time discussing the new Noise Control steering group and the methods
we were employing at Colebrook Lakes. The second occasion was in advance of the
Alfresco Event when we engaged in a deeper discussion about the individual stages.
John was concerned about lack of hay bales, the overall quality of the sound

installations and the characteristics of the outdoor stages.

Complaints

Of the events referenced in section 1 the Alfresco Festival drew the highest number
of complaints. The noise data for that event is provided in figures 2-4. Wind
conditions were unusually north easterly 5-8m/s gusting 10m/s. This directed noise
from the site towards Knights Park.

The map of complaints provided by Mr. Haynes (figure 7) shows that almost all
complaints received during the Alfresco Festival came from the south west of the site.
It should be noted that the wind was North Easterly at 5m/s gusting to 10m/s
throughout the weekend. Mr. Haynes notes that the sound form the site was ‘coming
and going’ due to wind whilst he was monitoring in Knights Park.

Every effort was made to audibly verify complaints during the series of events but in
some cases noise impact from the event was found to be undetectable or no more
than just detectable. In one case the noise that was audible was not generated from
Colebrook Lakes. It is not disputed that noise was audible in Knights Park and areas
to the west of the site during the Alfresco event. Concrete proposals have been put in

place going forward.

Colebrook Lakes Mondpég@e@?zgom Page 2 of 12



Appendix H

—TRACK

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

41.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

Night time disturbance must be assessed indoors with windows open for normal
ventilation. It is normal to set a reference level at the facade of properties that can be
assumed to prevent sleep disturbance’, however complaints that originate from
public spaces such as pathways, parks and the like are not relevant. In this case
there was no reference facade level set by the licensing authority.

In terms of the available guidance (the Noise Council Guidance on the Control of
Noise at Concerts 1995) daytime receptor levels were low, in fact 15dB lower than
the guidance suggests. The period measurements between 12:00 and 22:00 hours
on the 29th indicate high levels at Lodge Farm however they appear to be quite
unusual and there may have been local contribution to that measurement.

The dBCDb? line on the charts (in purple) indicates where low frequency beats would
have been audible at Lodge Farm. This was the case into the early hours at receptors

to the west of the site on the 29th August. Winds at that time were easterly 5-8m/s.

A note on inaudibility

There has been long debate about what constitutes ‘inaudibility’. Does it mean
completely undetectable, or something other?

In the context of live music it is unlikely that an event would be undetectable in any
rural or semi-rural setting. It may well however be detectable at a level that was so
low that it had no impact at receptors.

A common definition of inaudibility is ‘specific sound that is below the ambient noise
level in the absence of the specific source at the location under investigation.’

In general local authorities accept that event noise levels that are not causing sleep

disturbance or attracting complaints are ‘inaudible’ for the purpose of the definition.

1 The WHO Night Noise Guidelines for Europe offers useful guidance

2 dBCb is defined as dBLCs - dBLCgg, @ measure of the most prominent noise elements relative to background
levels.

Colebrook Lakes Mondpég@ez%gom Page 3 of 12



Appendix H

—TRACK

5. What could be improved for future events?

5.1. The key requirements for successful noise management at outdoor events are:

5.1.1.Control - The licensee must have complete control and cannot trust third parties
to meet environmental obligations.

5.1.2.Planning - site design and the design of sound stages in fine detail is essential.
This requires suppliers who are willing and able to comply with the design brief.

5.1.3.Use of suitable sound equipment - systems designed to project over great
distance and which have uncontrolled dynamic response have no place in
sensitive applications. Such undesirable characteristics are popular amongst
dance music aficionados but must not be permitted at Colebrook Lakes.

5.1.4.Granular monitoring - a properly designed site should require monitoring for
verification rather than enforcement. Between six and eight monitoring locations

should be installed to ensure that all likely receptors are covered.

5.2. Indoor vs Outdoor

5.2.1.1 note the suggestion from the EHO to remove the ‘indoor’ and ‘outdoor’
definitions however this would not be helpful for the following reasons:

5.2.1.1.Indoor’ generally means a marquee of some sort with a fabric roof and
walls.

5.2.1.2.'0utdoor’ means that the loudspeakers are simply stacks of equipment in
open air.

5.2.1.3.Marquees have characteristics that are not immediately obvious and require
very specific loudspeaker design. In brief, incorrectly deployed loudspeakers
within a marquee impact the taught fabric of the roof, causing it to act as a
passive radiator creating omnidirectional bass propagation. On the other
hand, outdoor stages that are correctly designed can have low environmental
noise impact.

5.2.1.4.1t is critical to understand which type of situation one is designing for. A new
definition for indoor marquee venues may be helpful, for example ‘under
tensile canvas’ or similar but abandoning the distinction would be counter-

productive.

Colebrook Lakes Mondpég@e@?gom Page 4 of 12



Appendix H

—TRACK

5.2.2.Figure 1 on the following page shows a typical design for an ’indoor’ marquee
venue. The roof fabric has been shown transparent for clarity.
5.2.2.1.Baffles are used to provide low frequency directivity. This allows the low
frequency sound power to be reduced whilst maintaining audience sound
levels.
5.2.2.2.Because the loudspeakers are outside the scope of the roof the sound
pressure is equalised on the inner and outer surface preventing passive
radiation.
5.2.2.3.The additional space under the roof allows the installation of pedestrian
barriers to separate audience from loudspeakers. This separation is critical for
the protection of the audience, is specified in the guidance and yet rarely
happens.
5.2.3.Figure 2 shows an outdoor venue with delay loudspeakers and baffles. This type
of design allows the sound level throughout the audience to be maintained whilst
reducing overall sound power. The design also allows for good sight-lines to the

stage and safe egress for the audience.

Colebrook Lakes Mondpag@e@?rﬁom Page 5 of 12



Appendix H
SPLrack

environmental

Figure 1 - Marquee system configuration

Figure 2 - ‘Outdoor’ stage configuration

Colebrook Lakes Mondpé@@e@?gom Page 6 of 12



Appendix H

—TRACK

6. Summary

6.1. Whilst overall noise levels were not high in relation to guidance, audible beats were
present at some locations. This would have been mitigated if the promoter had:

6.1.1.Used more suitable sound systems

6.1.2.Implemented proper noise baffles as instructed by SPLtrack

6.1.3.Forbidden ad hoc sound systems that were added to the event without
assessment or prior notice

6.1.4.Engaged in pre-event design meetings and complied with the noise management
plan. SPLtrack is used to a process of design, modelling and close cooperation
with promoters and operators, after which noise management during the show is
primarily a matter of verification rather than intervention. None of this happened at
Colebrook Lakes.

6.2. Inthis case:

6.2.1.The sound suppliers had no plan for containment of sound within the marquee
venues and some systems were simply stacks of speakers in outdoor settings in
the main arena or in the woods.

6.2.2.The preferred loudspeaker system used on all of the stages was a product that is
notoriously difficult to control and which has a reputation for creating
environmental noise issues. It is also the most popular system amongst electronic
dance music sound suppliers and customers (for much the same reason that it is
disliked by noise management companies and environmental health officers).

6.2.3.Some of the outdoor PA systems were deployed as simple stereo stacks either
side of a DJ booth with no thought for directivity or containment. Given the type of
music being played and, in some cases the lack of comprehension on the part of
the sound operator, there was little chance of controlling them using technical
mitigation methods.

6.2.4.1t would be perfectly feasible to operate late night events at Colebrook Lakes
without causing a noise nuisance providing the key requirements of responsible
promotion and detailed audio design are respected. | am confident that will be

delivered.

Colebrook Lakes Mondpég@e@?gzom Page 7 of 12



Appendix H

Jouid dew e oday | asn jo sual | seiBojouypay Jexeyy Hysanig 3 pr] w0l id Buiddewnss ¢ 1707@ 4488w 17070 wep dey

A1enreg

i(1)bavgp
1-170T e3ep 3587 ‘| |9Q)
BULIRY|

“oBw “bm | xm_am_o m_mok

%E

689
0L
£09
o'sy
80

A1aneg

1061 JOAA S,UIqOY
i(1)xewz1gp

:(1)adap

:(1)ba>78P

(1)xewygp

:(1)bavigp

(1011 11-01-120Z *®3ep 3527 °209Q)

POOAA S,uIqOY

sa8essa|y 123l0.y

ulwpy

s1ioday

depy

%S Auonreg

T95 061

618 :(1)xewzigp

- (1)a>ap

8€9 :(1)ba>7gp

695 :(1)xewygp

vy :(1)baviap

(00°01 90-01-120Z *&3p 3587 $090)

w.re4 a3poT

~dew yo.eag

Figure 3 - Noise meter locations

Page 8 of 12

Mondpég@e@gozom

Colebrook Lakes



TRACK

SPL

environmental

Appendix H

— & _ Qwiy pouad
EOOC 2008 BOOE 220t e BlvEE 9062 ES 03z e a0ez ez w2 Bz
NS Rl ooze 2090 0700 ooel 00z 0090 00C0 003k 0zL 00eC 2000 e 0T
o
» s
WA, 2 - ~ o’ ~
g A7 R e N Sk/l,.. A _<,\<. VAW A AR A N Nl AP
v v rz :.B\ o
Bl
0z
sz
o
Se
| ¢
I i - Iy, Mo :
| v Ny i e / A e
\/ )\\. ’ AT 4 o) st
> .(Kfzm Ww _ x;) R ‘2 i,_ Ty i W _\s I [ / %.é
o
{.. f \1.5 AV RTeTY o
.(,(al/ MM oA AT W S\,,\(} fl 0
/.__ iy xx\? }rr o P ¢ YA A A .\....\.« B TJ) ‘
—~ Y/ 1 ! "
3,, ,2 y AN v Sy \¥ A A Vvrng 3
¥ M oahJ Y
d AN n
y wf
v
St A
o0
se
05
95
L
S0k
] (%) 020~ Aiaueg
] — (A€ Clivd oi.
| (WZ1) 661 -
] — (WFAP) 061
H (W) 081 ozt
(WFrNw 01
] - Giowziaeman szl
1 YT, (OUVICD | W)
[T —— tberez ez sen oEL
| —— wemamimimazen
] — wour 52l
= ik 1t vy |
1 - orl
Ll - (ke ptteen BdUKZCL @ BAUSZOL o [educzol dULZOL {68_ 4USZ01 EJUSEOL uncvue -u..&? -282 -nﬁa_
ey 2.9 2491 2.6€1 Y 2061 @ u.o— _E u.mE aTel 299 27l ou: 9:. 9:_ o:_
pac P01 Spnoey L) S._ﬂu Axg in_u $proQ :au g aoo Spo ks ]
e wain
404 nding
L 2 '
Py L] 000 LT
ums T mpemyang ang C) teaddrg C) suddoig ) Loawadruesantag T My C) avs C) sAanagytanids o Bupueg ) meppos G Acmy u auvay T
=T VDE AT dyd'syocaljioleizuaguocayiaugnyepe @ | e O
s} —  aagadegimeg epel sdny @ 20y PenTzs @

B ©

A

@

0 2 @ O

ece [@ G

Figure 4- Karina’s during the Alfresco Festival

Page 9 of 12

Mondpég@e@glzom

Colebrook Lakes



TRACK

SPL

environmental

Appendix H

e e ot ettt ot et et e e i e e e e e e At et et et i .
H\O/ awiy poyag
EOOC 2008 B00E 220t eee BlvEE 062 ES 0z aee a0ee PRz w2 Bz
NS o8l o0zt 2090 0700 ool 00z 0090 o 003: ozt 00'ec 2000 T 0071
o
i
o — kA A ((Js. .v(rtl\l. 5 ‘
Mook ?é),f MAS e J\?\.? v JY ) A 1. N - LR
i) W A AN AN o
2 -
oz
sz
08
| 100y -~
&, r_ L R ‘: rz_v, il oy ?‘) p .\.‘_ . ( ‘Ar P \ _ o
LR 7 WM M 5 ) ) f '
AN TN f J > Wt ! f s
ﬁ.: ,3 (il , { ) ,\E rt;i v
x T, -V b
v ) : . J ~< e S5
W\ ..; ., ) R | ‘\ 1y
1 f LT L i a Al g A »
! h \ . F . ' B
| /" .g ) S 3
&RL! n
o4
v
St A
o
se D
05 .
9% D
ool o
S0k N
(%) 100" Acucg
_ Lesh€l) CLnd ol A
(WZ W) 661 si.
— (HZrNw) 06
ozt @
mEmnanae o
ween (Rpxeazip) wa) SEL
., (o) Wl 0
— W097IG3) 752, 2O oeL
— (00730 JR 297
— o el @
— (idkrwsy 1t Leyy |
by s ol
O — (vt teey ez o [eauwsens o5 [eauzar dUzor A EGS. ausz01 Eﬁme unéﬂ_ -%&n_ -E.Q, esuczor ©
el 2§90 93_ 26€1 o 2051 @ u_s h&. .: u.no_ 2Tl S99 u.\= o.n: o.:. 2681 o:_
P [Ls) SO0 Mg _a.o $pr0Q .:u Ne auu o0 ._nsh o
B wein
dadwndno 0
e 2 '
o PR S9mCY 090 1517 ) umyay n
Ims T Weyng e ) teaddrg C)  suddeig O oawadtursassag oMy C) Qs C) sAanagytanids T Busueg C) aepyon 0 acmy u auvay T -
= T @ @l@ B a2 e o dyd'syocaljioieizuaguocayjdugnyepe  m ) b
®
k") —  omagpadaghame g epell sy Q@ wreens @ g

Figure 5 - Lodge Farm during the Alfresco Festival

Mondpé@@e@ggom Page 10 of 12

Colebrook Lakes



TRACK

environmental

Appendix H

_ 0 _ Swiy pouad
EO0C 2008 [l (27 o062 BvEE 062 0ES 903z k7 a0e2 Bz W2 Bz
NS wnl o0zZL 2090 0700 ol 00z 090 000 003t 02k 0oec 2000 e 00T
- o
- VPG 3 =2 A AL AN | s
- ,7‘14.2,4\/\,)\(' At AN Ve, ;e }.\/\...},.‘I\/\ - ,\,lll;{(..\x ..).r.( A ,.\)))Ca\ - APt {)].\S.\/.J. " ><Ax..\ A
‘ o
St
oz
sz
o2
B A
\ n . Al st
~ , i [
1) 7\ w 4 . or
A cg r N J A T Aty M
(g ('\ r WA 32 )\.\,\f\{})?\c(_r\ ﬁ; - |
‘ 1 | ’ sk
\ ‘
f s
\ W,
| \ aalt s
VY .\..r ~ ~ at .> ‘.. \ -
Yooy A = v ¥ AN A 04
| / !
! | s 3
\/ | n
} o 4
v
St A
0@
52
05
95
0L
S0k
] (%) 1000~ Aiung
1 — k€ OLind o
B (WZIP) 661 it
] — (RFINAP) 061
H (WZINA) 051 ozt
(WFrNw) 011
] oo Glemzmpresn szL
[~ o e mwn
[T —— tberaz) musz. e oL
[T | —— eenmininazen
| — o sel
= (1w 1t Loy |
| — by 1ph b okl
L (ibwnttoa edupzcL @u eauszni o [eduezon dusZ0L 0] Eﬂa_ .._68_ cusza1 E.Bm? b2l E_.&: -282 eaiczon
iy 259 2191 o..n. ub.... @ u_o_ ALt u.ao_ 2Thk ..,-: u:- o.u 4 u.mn. 2691 o:._
P1cD ...zb :mamh u..u a._ma«o Han
BB, Maip
404 ndino
e 2 .
o PO S9REL 000 1517 0 umiey
ums I mwayang ANe C) tesddrg ©) Auddoig ) awasturAastag oMy C Qv C) seawagyranids I susueg ) wepyos ey [ anuvav T
E e | @l@ B2 o dyd'syocaljioleicuaguocayjdugnyepe ]
0 —  snagpndegimeaepe]l sty @ oy etz @

Q 2 @ O

a

ece

Figure 6 - Robinwood during the Alfresco Festival

Mondpég@e@ggzom Page 11 of 12

Colebrook Lakes



Appendix H
SPLrack

environmental

Hammer Dyke

Colebrook Lakes Complamants 27-29th Aug A
e e

I 7 Tudeley Hale /
e { ?{’i Sheranden Farm
— o User Pstern Ot i :{‘ {
t Ny s

——

Square Wood —’ -
The I.'vdsy < LY &, ¢
? Ny Tudeley "~ Bank Farm Cottages Five Oak Green
g ( . >

W 0

a1 Park Farm House
! X |

- Crockhurst Street

Tyand Pl N
. Mabledon Farm L /

D
N T Nmmlo Wood
Mlbhdon Shaw, /
Little Rook Wood

le s. \Bmm o \I I : \ER Burgess nnush
| o p/.,—/c‘/ 27 : P
/ Annise w;ad

N I (4N
Minepit Wood , ,
A ¢ Castle Hill Farm Cottages > )
(W [ N e Codga Wood = g &\ ’ 5 e s
4 Pilgrim's Wood (R /‘ﬂ Milrough Wood
LA ‘ A-.- ¢
. < Pembury Hall Fa nl\/ Lot
4 &

o ' \;

Fairthorne Cott

aiwood| AT T

Huwﬁw-ll Farm cm-us %

a ( S &3 .'lt'mrluvlood f
: Kréx' \q - ", c l l Hawkwell Business Centre

Celebroe LaKés

| " &@ :A/

\ﬁa

uarb? Shaw .rspr!u‘ﬂww !
' »
mnu.u Flm\

,_,,...uvtud ‘\L%ﬁm

X Va

o / o Court Lodgs, Down
Golf Caure :

Y - il ParkWood

kilometres
Scale: 1:25,000

Figure 7 - Alfresco Festival complaints distribution

Colebrook Lakes Mondpég@e@gzpom Page 12 of 12



	Agenda
	1 Chairman's Introduction
	2 Apologies for Absence
	3 Declarations of Interest:
	4 21/02689/REVIEW - Determination of an application for a review of the premises licence for Colebrook Park, Colebrook Lakes, Land east of Kingstanding Way, Royal Tunbridge Wells, TN2 3UP
	Appendix A - review application form
	Appendix B - Email complaints
	Appendix C - Maps and photos
	Appendix D - Premises Licence
	Appendix E - Representations supporting review
	Appendix F - Representations supporting Mr Love
	Appendix G -  Mr Love's response to review
	Appendix H  - Colebrook Lakes Noise Management Report  8.11.21


